Public Document Pack

e

Council

Mon 27 Feb REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL

2023

7.00 pm (or, if later, as
soon as the Executive
Committee meeting
immediately preceding
Council has finished)

www.redditchbe.gov.uk

Council Chamber,
Redditch Town Hall,
Walter Stranz Square
Redditch

B98 8AH



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jess Bayley-Hill

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3072)
e.mail: jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS

At the current time, seating at the meeting will be placed in such a way as to achieve
as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect meeting participants.

Please note that this is a public meeting.

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not
hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Members and Officers who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a
new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need to consider
wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during proceedings.

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE

Members of the public will be able to access the meeting to observe proceedings if they wish
to do so. Members of the public who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are
encouraged to take a test on the day of the meeting. Attendees who do not have access to
LFTs are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any
of the following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high
temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have
to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For
agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded.


mailto:jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL
—_— '

Council
Agenda Membership:
Cllrs: Ann Isherwood

1. welcome
2. Apologies for Absence

3. Declarations of Interest

(Mayor)

Tom Baker-Price
(Deputy Mayor)
Salman Akbar
Imran Altaf
Karen Ashley
Joe Baker

Juliet Barker Smith
Joanne Beecham
Juma Begum
Juliet Brunner
Michael Chalk
Brandon Clayton
Luke Court
Matthew Dormer

Monday, 27th February, 2023
7.00 pm

Council Chamber, Redditch
Town Hall, Walter Stranz
Square, Redditch B98 8AH

Peter Fleming
Alex Fogg
Andrew Fry
Lucy Harrison
Bill Hartnett
Sharon Harvey
Joanna Kane
Sid Khan
Anthony Lovell
Emma Marshall
Nyear Nazir
Timothy Pearman
David Thain
Craig Warhurst

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other Disclosable
Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of those interests.

4. Minutes (Pages 7 - 20)

5. Announcements

To consider Announcements under Procedure Rule 10:

a) Mayor's Announcements

b) The Leader’'s Announcements

C) Chief Executive’s Announcements.



Council
Monday, 27th February, 2023

6. Executive Committee

Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 7th February 2023
(Pages 21 — 32)

6 .1 Independent Remuneration Panel Report 2023/24 (Pages 33 - 48)

6 .2 Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 (Pages 49 - 60)

6 .3 2023/24 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2023/24 to 2025/26
(Including Treasury Management Strateqy and Capital Programme)
(Pages 61 - 120)

Note that under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is required to take a
named vote when a decision is made on the budget calculation at a
budget decision meeting of the Council.

6.3.1 Alternative Budget (Pages 121 — 122)

Note that under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is required to take a named vote
when a decision is made on the budget calculation, including in respect of any
alternative budgets that are proposed, at a budget decision meeting of the
Council.

Recommendations from the Executive Committee meeting held on 27th
February 2023

Council will be invited to consider recommendations made at a meeting of the
Executive Committee immediately preceding the Council meeting on 27" February
2023.

6 .4 30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset
management strategy for council housing (Pages 123 - 156)




Council

10.

Monday, 27th February, 2023

6 .5 Council Tax Resolutions 2023/24

(To follow)

Under Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, any
Councillor who is 2 or more months in arrears with their Council tax
payments cannot participate in any item at the Council meeting
concerning the budget.

Note that under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is required to take a

named vote when a decision is made on Council tax at a budget
decision meeting of the Council.

Constitutional Review Working Party - Recommendations (Pages 157 - 178)
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2022/23 (Pages 179 - 202)

Urgent Business - Record of Decisions

To note any decisions taken in accordance with the Council’s Urgency Procedure Rules (Part
9, Paragraph 5 and/or Part 10, Paragraph 15 of the Constitution), as specified.

(None to date).

Urgent Business - general (if any)

To consider any additional items exceptionally agreed by the Mayor as Urgent Business in
accordance with the powers vested in him by virtue of Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

(This power should be exercised only in cases where there are genuinely special
circumstances which require consideration of an item which has not previously been
published on the Order of Business for the meeting.)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

REDDITCH BUROUEH COUCIL
=2

Council
Monday, 30th January, 2023

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

N”NUTES Present:

Councillor Tom Baker-Price, Salman Akbar, Karen Ashley, Joe Baker,
Joanne Beecham, Juma Begum, Juliet Brunner, Michael Chalk,
Brandon Clayton, Luke Court, Matthew Dormer, Peter Fleming,
Andrew Fry, Lucy Harrison, Bill Hartnett, Sharon Harvey, Joanna Kane,
Sid Khan, Anthony Lovell, Emma Marshall, Timothy Pearman,

David Thain and Craig Warhurst

Also Present:

Mr James Fardoe

Officers:

Peter Carpenter, Peter Carpenter, Kevin Dicks and Claire Felton

Principal Democratic Services Officer:

Jess Bayley-Hill

61. WELCOME
The Deputy Mayor welcomed all those present to the meeting.
62. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Juliet
Barker Smith, Alex Fogg, Ann Isherwood and Nyear Nazir.

In the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Tom
Baker-Price, chaired the meeting.

63. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.
64. COUNCILLOR GARETH PROSSER
The Deputy Mayor opened this item by leading Members in paying

tribute to the late Councillor, Gareth Prosser, by observing a
minute’s silence.

Chair



Council

Page 8 Agenda ltem 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

65.

The Deputy Mayor subsequently commented on behalf of the
Council about Councillor Prosser’s years of service as an elected
Member. Council was advised that Councillor Prosser had first
been elected as a Councillor in 2015 to represent Crabbs Cross
ward. He had been appointed Portfolio Holder for Community
Safety in 2018/19 and had also served on a number of Committees
during his time as a Councillor. In 2020, Councillor Prosser had
been appointed the Mayor of the Borough of Redditch during the
height of the Covid-19 pandemic and he had been the first
Councillor to go on to serve two full consecutive terms of office as
Mayor. In addition, Members were reminded that Councillor
Prosser’s time serving as a Councillor had followed a career serving
in the police force. On behalf of Members, the Deputy Mayor
commented that Councillor Prosser would be missed.

Members subsequently went on to pay tribute to Councillor Prosser.
Reference was made to Councillor Prosser’s time serving as a
Councillor and Members commented that he had been kind and
considerate, with a good sense of humour. Consideration was
given to Councillor Prosser's many years as a supporter of
Wolverhampton Wanderers Football Club and his visits to watch the
club play at Molineux Stadium.

Many Members made reference to the length of time that they had
known Councillor Prosser, with some having first worked alongside
him during his time serving in West Mercia Police. There were also
tributes paid to Councillor Prosser’s wife and family and Members
commented that he had been dedicated to his family and devoted to
his grandchildren.

MINUTES

Members considered the minutes of the meeting of Council held on
14" November 2022.

During consideration of the minutes, reference was made to Minute
Item No. 57 - Executive Committee - specifically the record of the
debate in respect of the Voluntary Bodies Scheme report. It was
suggested that it should have been noted in the minutes that a
Member had asked representatives of the Voluntary and
Community Sector (VCS) whether they had been consulted on
changes to the concessionary rents scheme and had been advised
in response that this had not occurred.

RESOLVED that,
subject to the amendment detailed in the preamble above, the

minutes of the Council meeting held on 14" November 2022 be
approved and signed by the Mayor.



Council

Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

66.

67.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
The following announcements were made:

a) The Mayor's Announcements

The Deputy Mayor advised that a record of the civic
engagements that had been attended by the Mayor since the
previous meeting had been tabled for Members’ consideration
(Appendix 1).

b) The Leader’s Announcements

The Leader explained that he had attended meetings of the
West Midlands Combined Authority’s (WMCA’s) Economic
Growth Board. A Worcestershire District Leaders’ Board,
comprising the Leaders of the District Councils in
Worcestershire only, had been established and the Leader
had attended meetings of this board together with meetings of
the Worcestershire Leaders’ Board, the latter of which also
involved the Leader of Worcestershire County Council.

c) The Chief Executive’s Announcements

The Chief Executive confirmed he had no announcements to
make on this occasion.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE (PROCEDURE RULE 9)

There were two Questions on Notice submitted for consideration at
the meeting.

Redditch Innovation Centre

Mr James Fardoe asked the Leader the following Question on
Notice:

“As a young person, | have a great interest in the project
surrounding the Innovation Centre, would you be able to update us
on the timeline regarding the demolition of the current police station
and the budgeting of this project?”

The Leader responded by explaining that it was anticipated, subject
to planning permission, that the construction for the Digital
Manufacturing and Innovation Centre would start in winter 2024
with practical completion being achieved in winter 2026. The
construction period was anticipated to last 12 — 15 months.



Page 10 Agenda Item 4

ncil
cou c Monday, 30th January, 2023

On the current programme, the Police Service was due to vacate
Grove Street in Autumn 2023 and the demolition of the current
police station would commence from thereon. It was anticipated that
Redditch Borough Council would then take possession of a clean
development site in Spring 2024 with construction taking place later
in the year. The project budget was £8,000,000.00 and this was
funded by central Government via the Town’s Deal Initiative.

Mr Fardoe was advised that further information could be found on
the Town’s Deal Board’s website.

Mr Fardoe subsequently asked the following supplementary
guestion:

“If the total spend goes over predicted budget where will the extra
money come from?”

The Leader commented that a comprehensive answer to this
question would be requested from the Council’s Finance team to
send to Mr Fardoe after the meeting.

Matchborough and Winyates District Centres — Regeneration

Councillor Joe Baker asked the Leader the following Question on
Notice:

“To ask the Leader of the Council if he would update the Council on
what his plan B is for the regeneration of Winyates and
Matchborough District Centres now that Redditch has lost out on
his government’s funding."

The Leader explained that for Winyates and Matchborough
Centres, final proposals for the centres were awaited from
consultants. When finalised, the plans would be costed up, by the
consultancy team, and the viability gap would then be understood.
When received, the proposals would be submitted formally to
Members to invite endorsement for the purposes of public
consultation. The public consultation, it was suggested, should
include information on the viability gap to manage expectations.
With proposals, viability information and public comments, the
Council would consider all available funding opportunities to
progress with the plans.

Councillor Joe Baker subsequently asked the following
supplementary question:

“Due to the late submission of the bid and the incompleteness of
the report to the Overview and Scrutiny and Executive Committees,
will the Leader apologise for Officers losing the £20 million?”



Council

Page 11 Agenda Item 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

68.

69.

The Leader responded by commenting that the Council had not lost
£20 million as this had not been the authority’s budget but instead
had been applied for in a Government funding scheme. He
suggested that he would not apologise and that he did not feel that
officers needed to apologise for this. Whilst the report that had
been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had
missed some information, the reasons for this had been explained
at the time. The Council had submitted all relevant paperwork to
the Government in accordance with the established process and
further attempts would be made to bid for more Levelling Up
funding in the forthcoming third round of the scheme.

MOTIONS ON NOTICE (PROCEDURE RULE 11)

There were no Motions on Notice for consideration on this
occasion.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Members considered minutes from meetings of the Executive
Committee held on 6" December 2022, 13" December 2022 and
10" January 2023.

Council was reminded that at the meeting of the Executive
Committee held on 13" December 2022 the Committee had made
no recommendations. These minutes had therefore been shared
for Members’ consideration in case there were any questions of
clarification on the content and to enable Council to adopt the
minutes.

During consideration of the minutes of these meetings, the following
reports, that had been debated at those meetings, were discussed
in detail:

Medium Term Financial Plan 2023/24 to 2025/26 — Update

Concerns were raised that the savings detailed in the report could
result in staff redundancies as well as a change to the electoral
cycle at the Council from a system of elections by thirds. In
addition, some Members raised concerns about the proposed fees
for services delivered by Worcestershire Regulatory Services

(WRS).

Council Tax Base 2023/24

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling highlighted that the
Council was required to set the Council Tax Base on an annual
basis. The proposals detailed in the report assumed that the



Council

Page 12 Agenda Item 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

Council would achieve a 98 per cent collection rate, in respect of
Council Tax payments during the 2023/24 financial year. The
Council Tax Base had been calculated at £26,304.94. This was
lower than for many other Councils in Worcestershire as the
calculations were based on the numbers of Council Tax Band D
equivalent properties in the local authority area and the majority of
houses in the Borough were classified as Bands A — C. The lower
Council Tax Base placed the Council at a disadvantage and it was
suggested that the Council should encourage the Government to
take action to change the system.

Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling explained that a draft
report on the subject of proposed changes to the Council Tax
Support Scheme had been considered by the Executive Committee
in October 2022. The proposed changes had subsequently been
the subject of public consultation. A total of 94 responses had been
received during this consultation, of which 87 per cent had
expressed support for the proposed changes.

As part of the process, the Council had consulted with all of the
precepting authorities. Worcestershire County Council had
responded to Redditch Borough Council and had raised some
concerns. However, the issues raised would be offset by the
benefits arising for eligible residents in the Borough. Members
were asked to note that in Worcestershire, only the District Councils
in the north of the county had proposed changes to their Council
Tax Support Schemes, all of which were designed to benefit
vulnerable local residents.

Housing Revenue Account Rent Setting Report 2023/24

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Procurement presented the
Housing Revenue Account Rent Setting Report 2023/24. Members
were advised that the report proposed increasing rents for Council
house tenants. The Government had announced that Councils
could increase rents for Council properties by 3 per cent, 5 per cent
or 7 per cent and the report proposed that in Redditch, Council
rents should increase by 7 per cent. This increase would help the
Council to cover the increasing costs associated with repairs and
maintenance of Council properties and help the authority to ensure
compliance with legal standards.

During consideration of this item, Councillor Joe Baker proposed
the following recommendation:

“We recommend that the Council defers this until we have clearer
and more precise information.”



Page 13 Agenda Item 4

ncil
cou c Monday, 30th January, 2023

The recommendation was proposed by Councillor Baker and
seconded by Councillor Juma Begum.

In proposing the recommendation, Councillor Baker commented
that in his view the report contained limited information clarifying
why the Council had opted to increase rents by 7 per cent rather
than 3 per cent or 5 per cent, as permitted by the Government.
Councillor Baker raised concerns that this increase was being
proposed in a context in which Members were receiving a number
of complaints from Council tenants about the condition of Council
houses and the speed with which repairs occurred. He suggested
that residents might question whether this increase represented
value for money.

Members subsequently debated the recommendation in detail and
in so doing commented on the following:

o The potential for the Council to increase rents by 3 per cent or
5 per cent and that this information would be useful for
comparison with the figures arising from an increase of 7 per
cent.

o The need for tenants to have clarity regarding the amount of
rent they would be paying for Council properties in the
2023/24 financial year.

o The increases that had been proposed to rents for properties
in the private rented sector, which was up to 20 per cent in
some places.

o The costs associated with repairs and maintenance of Council
houses, which were impacted by the costs of inflation and
were also set to increase as a result of new legal duties arising
in respect of damp and mould in properties.

o The need for Members to make informed decisions about rent
increases based on detailed information about the financial
implications for the Council.

o The timescales in which the increases would apply. Concerns
were raised that the report appeared to imply that there would
be a 7 per cent increase in both 2023/24 and 2024/25.

o The discussions in respect of the report that had taken place
at a recent meeting of the Budget Scrutiny Working Group
when the item had been pre-scrutinised and the reasons why
similar concerns had not been raised on this subject then.

o The level of inflation which was 9 per cent on the date of the
Council meeting and the fact that this was higher than the
proposed increase to the rent for Council houses.

o The extent to which it was appropriate to increase rents for
vulnerable Council house tenants during a cost of living crisis.

o The numbers of new, qualified staff who had been recruited
into the Housing Department in recent years.



Council

Page 14 Agenda ltem 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

During consideration of the recommendation, the Interim Section
151 Officer was invited to comment in response to points that had
been raised by Members during the debate. Members were
informed that detail had been provided at a meeting of the Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee held in October 2022 in
respect of the financial implications arising from increasing rents by
3 per cent or 5 per cent and this had set out how those figures
compared to the proposed 7 per cent rise. ~It was acknowledged
that the public consultation undertaken in respect of the proposed
rent increases had related to a two-year period but the proposed
increase to rents for Council houses of 7 per cent would apply for
one year only in 2023/24.

On being put to the vote the recommendation was lost.

Members subsequently returned to discussing the substantive
Motion.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 17.5 a recorded vote was taken
on the substantive Motion in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account Rent Setting Report 2023/24 and the voting was as
follows:

Members voting FOR the resolution:

Councillors Salman Akbar, Karen Ashley, Joanne Beecham, Juliet
Brunner, Michael Chalk, Brandon Clayton, Luke Court, Matthew
Dormer, Peter Fleming, Lucy Harrison, Anthony Lovell, Emma
Marshall, Timothy Pearman, David Thain and Craig Warhurst (15).

Members voting AGAINST the resolution:

Councillors Joe Baker, Juma Begum, Andrew Fry, Bill Hartnett,
Sharon Harvey, Joanna Kane and Sid Khan (7).

Members voting to ABSTAIN:

No councillors (0).
The vote was therefore carried.

Worcestershire Requlatory Services Board — Budget
Recommendations 2023/24

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling explained that the
costs of the Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) shared

service were increasing due to a number of factors. In particular,
the staff pay award and associated pension costs had increased



Council

Page 15 Agenda Item 4

Monday, 30th January, 2023

70.

71.

72.

pressures on the budget. Each partner authority contributed to the
financial costs involved in operating the shared service and the
contribution required from Redditch Borough Council in 2023/24
would be 17.9 per cent.

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Committee held
on 6" December 2022, 13" December 2022 and 10" January
2023 be received and all recommendations adopted.

OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENT

The Deputy Mayor explained that, following the death of the late
Councillor, Gareth Prosser, a vacancy had arisen for the Council’s
lead Member appointed to PATROL — the Traffic Penalty Tribunal
(Civil Parking Enforcement).

A nomination was received for Councillor Lucy Harrison to be
appointed the Council’s lead representative on PATROL - the
Traffic Penalty Tribunal.

RESOLVED that

Councillor Lucy Harrison be appointed the Council’s lead
representative on PATROL - the Traffic Penalty Tribunal for the
remainder of the 2022/23 municipal year.

URGENT BUSINESS - RECORD OF DECISIONS

Members were advised that no urgent decisions had been taken
since the previous meeting of Council.

URGENT BUSINESS - GENERAL (IF ANY)

Officers confirmed that there was no urgent business for discussion
on this occasion.

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm

and closed at 8.08 pm




This page is intentionally left blank



Item 6a — The Mayor’s Announcements — Civic Engagements Undertaken Since the Previous Meeting of Council

Date

Event

Organisation

Thursday 16th November

Christmas Launch for Abbey Spa

Abbey Spa

Tuesday 15th November

Issac’s Foodbank promotion

Issacs Foodbank

Wednesday 16th

November Dorothy Terry House Dorothy Terry House
Wednesday 16"

November The Anti Violence Bee West Mercia
Thursday 16th November | Astwood Bank Club Celebration - Gold award BB ABC

Thursday 17th November | Investment Ceremony Squirrels

Friday 18th November

Shrek the show

Operatic Society

Saturday 19th November | Redditch Dining Club RBC
Saturday 19" November | Masonic Ladies’ Night RBC
Sunday 20th November Civic Event (Consort) MCC
Sunday 20th November Road Peace Roadpeace
Monday 21st November RBL AGM RBL
Wednesday 23rd

November Jazz Night at Beoley Villiage Hall Jazz Club

Thursday 24th November

Terry Spring Open Day

Terry Springs

Friday 25th November

Alliance House - Offical Opening

HoW College

Friday 25th November

Stourport Three Kings

Stourport Council

Friday 25th November

Vernia Springs

Vernia Springs

Friday 25" November

Tour of the Town Hall (Rowan Beavers)

RBC

Friday 25th November

Opening of the Festive Festival

BID

Saturday 26th November

Relief Society of The Church of Jesus Christ of LDS

Relief Society

Saturday 26th November

Switch on of the Lights Astwood Bank

Astwood Bank Club

Saturday 26th November

Redditch Carnival Event

Redditch Bid

LT abed

7 wal epuaby



Item 6a — The Mayor’s Announcements — Civic Engagements Undertaken Since the Previous Meeting of Council

Saturday 26th November

Winter Ball

Redditch Rugby Cricket &
Hockey

Sunday 27™" November

Primrose Fundraiser

When I'm 64

Monday 28th November

Callum Jackson visit to Woodrow (CPR)

Woodrow Resident

Tuesday 29th November | Solid State Tour Solid State
Tuesday 29th November | Steatite Tour Steatite
Tuesday 29th November | Sparlongs - spring makers - Tour Sparlongs

Thursday 1st December

Blessing of the Christmas Tree

Thomas Brothers

Thursday 1st December

30th Anniversary of the Victorian Christmas Fayre

WCC

Thursday 1st December

Christmas Cocktail party

Army Cadet Force

Friday 2nd December

Food bank support (Tescos)

Acts of Kindness

Saturday 3rd December

Redditch Association of the Blind Christmas Party

RAB

Saturday 3rd December

Winyates Carols of the Green

Winyates Com Group

Saturday 3rd December

Country and Western Night

Duck Pond

Sunday 4" December

Primrose Hospice Fun Run

Primrose Hospice

Wednesday 7th

December The Mayors Charity Concert WCC
Thursday 8th December Awards for SEN students for Mayoral logo Design HoW College
Thursday 8th December 25th Anniversary of Nightstop Night Stop
Thursday 8" December Mayoral Christmas Taster Menu Event RBC

Friday 9th December Worcester Male Choir @ Pershore Abbey PDC

Saturday 10th December

Redditch Dinner event

Digbeth Dinner

Saturday 10 December

Handel’s Messiah

RCS

Tuesday 13th December

Supporting Round Table Santa Route

Morrisons

Wednesday 14t
December

Mendip House — Carol Service and Project

Moon’s Moat First School

gT abed

7 wal epuaby



Item 6a — The Mayor’s Announcements — Civic Engagements Undertaken Since the Previous Meeting of Council

Wednesday 14"

December CHBL — Christmas Fayre CHBL
Thursday 15" December | Carols at WMCA WMCA
Thursday 15th December | Farewell event for Ken Williams Redditch BID

Thursday 15th December

The Nativity - The Musical

Box Office Studios

Friday 16th December Christmas celebrations for Service Users MHAG
Thank you meeting with Redditch Local History
Friday 16th December Museum RLHM

Friday 16" December

Opening of Isaac’s second food bank

Isaac’s Food Bank

Saturday 17th December | Carols in the Park Astwood Bank Association ABC
Saturday 17th December | Carol Service and Festive Readings St Stephens
Mayoral Christmas Carol Evening - hosted by the
Sunday 18th December Mayor LDS
Tuesday 20th December | Woodrow Christmas Festivities WCG
The High Sheriff of Worcestershire’s Blue Light Carol
Tuesday 20" December Service wcc
Wednesday 21st
December Jo's Jungle Christmas Party Jo's Jungle
Friday 23rd December Aroma Café Christmas Raffle Aroma
Christmas morning Hospital visits — Alexandra
Sunday 25" December Hospital NHS
Wednesday 11th January | Tour of NeoKare Neokare
Thursday 12th January SEN Design Studio opening HoW College
Thursday 12" January Thorlux tour of factory Thorlux

Sunday 15th January 3

Polish Fundraiser - Pool Tournament

Redditch Polish Society

Thursday 19th January

Droitwich Civic Event - Pantomime

Droitwich Council

Wednesday 25 January

Scouts’ evening (re Civic Hall) Headless Cross Hut

Greenland Scouts

Thursday 26" January

Holocaust Memorial Event

HDM

6T abed

7 wal epuaby



Item 6a — The Mayor’s Announcements — Civic Engagements Undertaken Since the Previous Meeting of Council

Friday 27th January

Holocaust Memorial Event

WCC

Saturday 28" January

Holocaust Memorial Event

RBC

Saturday 28th January Polish Fundraiser - Pop World Polish Community Group
Sunday 29" January 100" Birthday Celebration of Mr Edmund Szymczak Tom Wisniewski
Sunday 29th January Polish Music Festival Polish Community Group

0z abed

7 wal epuaby



REDDITCH BUROUEH COUCIL
=2

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

MINUTES

Page 21 Agenda Annex

I Tuesday, 7th February,
Executive o
Committee

Present:

Councillor Matthew Dormer (Chair), Councillor Nyear Nazir (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Karen Ashley, Peter Fleming, Lucy Harrison,

Emma Marshall and Craig Warhurst

Also Present:

Councillors Joe Baker, Joanna Kane and Sid Khan

Officers:

Peter Carpenter, Amanda Delahunty, Kevin Dicks, Claire Felton, Sue
Hanley and Michelle Howell

Principal Democratic Services Officer:

Jess Bayley-Hill

116. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors
Joanne Beecham and Anthony Lovell.

117. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
118. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader advised that he had no announcements to make on this
occasion.

119. MINUTES
RESOLVED that
the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on

10" January 2023 be approved as a true and correct record
and signed by the Chair.

Chair



Executive

Committee

Page 22 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

120.

HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION GRANT 2023/24

The Housing Strategy and Enabling Manager presented a report
focusing on the Council’s Homelessness Prevention Grant funding
for 2023/24.

The Council had been awarded a total of £325,375 in
Homelessness Prevention Grant by the Government for the
2023/24 financial year. In addition, there had been a £35,000
underspend in the fund in the 2022/23 financial year which would
be available to use the following year. The funding was ring fenced
to support initiatives designed to prevent homelessness. In
considering the content of the report, Members were asked to note
that the Council had a statutory duty under the Housing Act 1996
(as amended), to assist people threatened with homelessness as
well as additional duties relating to preventing homelessness and
rough sleeping.

The report outlined the various different local schemes that officers
were proposing should be supported using funding from the
Homelessness Prevention Grant in 2023/24. The proposed
schemes included initiatives delivered by partner organisations in
the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) which would help many
residents including vulnerable groups at particular risk of becoming
homeless, such as people leaving prison and young people. There
was a risk that if the Council did not support these schemes, the
authority might need to cover increasing costs for the provision of
temporary accommodation in Bed and Breakfast establishments.

Following the presentation of the report, the Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Procurement commented that he welcomed the
Homelessness Prevention Grant funding and the positive impact
that use of this funding could have on tackling homelessness in the
Borough. In particular, he highlighted the work to help vulnerable
groups at greater risk of becoming homeless and the excellent work
that various VCS organisations were already delivering in the local
community to address this issue.

During consideration of this item, the Portfolio Holder for Housing
and Procurement proposed an alteration to the wording of the
second recommendation detailed in the report. This proposed that,
in respect of the delegation to the Head of Community and Housing
Services to use any unallocated grant funding during the year and
to make further adjustments where appropriate, the delegation
should apply following consultation with both the Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Procurement as well as the Portfolio Holder for
Community Services and Regulatory Services. This proposal was
made on the basis of the importance of this funding to the local
community. The alteration was agreed by Members.



Page 23 Agenda Annex

Executive

] Tuesday, 7th February, 2023
Committee

RESOLVED that

1) the following initiatives be approved to receive allocation
of funding 2023/24:

Initiatives 2
(up to)

Redditch Nightstop - Outreach Worker to

support 21 to 35 year olds and prevent

homelessness or work towards planned 17,769

moves into suitable and sustainable

accommodation.

Redditch Nightstop Core Funding 8,667

Redditch Nightstop Safe Accommodation 20,000

and Support

CCP Rough Sleeper Outreach Service 47,556

GreenSquare Accord — 18 units of

supported accommodation for Ex 16,049

Offenders or those likely to offend

St Basils — Provide 24 hour cover to 23
units of accommodation for young people 14,910
aged 16- 23 years

Newstarts - Furniture Project to provide
furniture for homeless households.
Homelessness Prevention - Spend to
Save budget for use by Housing Options 17,060
Officers

Temporary Accommodation Management
—as 3.1 above

St Basils Smallwood Almshouses -
Progression Coach to offer additional
support that can operate outside of
normal office hours to fit around a young 19,287
persons education, training and
employment.

10,000

66,380

Citizens Advice Debt Advice 16,333

St Basils Young Persons Pathway
Worker

St Basils Crash Pad emergency
accommodation

County Partnership Manager 8,300

18,195

35,086

Batchley Support Group 10,000




Executive

Committee

Page 24 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

121.

Single and Childless Couples Homeless

) : 33,460
Prevention Service
Total £359,052

2) delegated authority be granted to the Head of Community
and Housing Services following consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Housing and Procurement and the
Portfolio Holder for Community Services and Regulatory
Services to use any unallocated Grant during the year or
make further adjustments as necessary to ensure full
utilisation of the Grants for 2023/24 in support of existing
or new schemes.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL REPORT 2023/24

The Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services presented
the Independent Remuneration Panel’s (IRP’s) report concerning
Members’ allowances for the 2023/24 financial year.

The Executive Committee was informed that the IRP comprised a
membership of independent persons who lived in Worcestershire.
The IRP made recommendations about Members’ allowances for
most Councils in the county. Whilst the Council was not obliged to
approve the IRP’s proposals, Members needed to have due regard
to the IRP’s recommendations.

The IRP was proposing that the basic allowance for Members
should be increased by 7.37 per cent, which would increase the
basic allowance from £4,732 to £5,081. The IRP had also made
proposals regarding the Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAS)
that could be paid to Members for holding specific posts at the
Council. Members were asked to note that the IRP did not suggest
paying multiple SRAs to individual Members which was an
arrangement that was currently in place in Redditch. Should
Members approve the IRP’s recommendation in respect of SRAs in
this report, this would result in a saving to the Council.

Members discussed the proposals detailed in the IRP’s report and
in doing so commented that it would be inappropriate to increase
Members’ allowances by 7.37 per cent during a cost of living crisis.
However, it was suggested that the Council should not postpone
increases to Members’ allowances indefinitely, as this would place
the level of remuneration available to Redditch Members behind
that available at other local authorities in Worcestershire. Members
would have an opportunity to consider this further at a later date
when preparing for the 2024/25 financial year. There was general
consensus that, as no changes were proposed by the IRP in
respect of travel allowances, subsistence expenses and carer’s



Executive

Committee

Page 25 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

122.

allowances, the recommendations on these subjects should be
supported.

RECOMMENDED that

1) travel allowances for 2023-24 continue to be paid in
accordance with the HMRC mileage allowance;

2) subsistence allowances for 2023-24 remain unchanged;
3) the Dependent Carer’s Allowance remains unchanged; and

4) for the Parish Council in the Borough, if travel and
subsistence is paid, that it is paid in accordance with the
rates paid by the Borough Council and in accordance with
the relevant Regulations.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023/24

The Interim Section 151 Officer presented the Pay Policy Statement
2023/24 for Members’ consideration.

The Executive Committee was informed that there was a legal
requirement, under the Localism Act 2011, for the Council to adopt
a Pay Policy Statement on an annual basis. This statement needed
to outline the relationships between the lowest and highest paid
staff employed by the Council and therefore a breakdown of pay
was provided per pay scale, including in respect of the most senior
positions. The remuneration for management graded posts was
reviewed by an external assessor.

Members were informed that in each grade there were a number of
scales of pay. Staff progressed up these scales based on
performance which was assessed during annual appraisals. The
Appointments Committee was involved in appointing the most
senior staff, including the statutory officer positions of Head of Paid
Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer as well as
Chief Officer positions.

The report was discussed by Members and it was noted that a
typographical error had been made in respect of the title of the
report. It was suggested that this should be addressed prior to the
publication of the report for the consideration of Council.
RECOMMENDED that

the Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 be approved.



Executive

Committee

Page 26 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

123.

2023/24 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
2023/24 TO 2025/26 (INCLUDING TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME)

The Interim Section 151 Officer presented the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) 2023/24 to 2025/26 (including the Treasury
Management Strategy and the Capital Programme) for the
Executive Committee’s consideration.

Members were asked to note the following when considering the
report:

o The report built on the tranche 1 savings of £1.5 million that
had been agreed in November 2022.

o An assumption had been made that the Council would agree a
2.99 per cent increase to Council Tax for 2023/24. A report on
the subject of Council Tax Resolutions would be presented for
the Executive Committee’s consideration at a meeting
scheduled to take place on 27" February 2023.

o The costs to the Council arising from the pay award to staff for
2021/22 had been slightly less than previously anticipated due
to staff vacancies.

o The funding from Government for the Council represented a
one-year settlement.

o Final figures had been received from the actuaries for the local
government pension contributions for staff which had been
taken into account in the report.

o Funding had been set aside for anticipated increases to the
costs of utilities, with 50 per cent allocated to the base budget
and 50 per cent to earmarked reserves, the value of which
would fall over the three-year period of the MTFP. This
arrangement was in place as it was anticipated that utilities
costs would start to decline during the period of the plan.

o Whilst there would be income from business rates, Officers
were assuming that there would be a high level of non-
payment and this had been taken into account when preparing
the report.

o There were a number of additional pressures that had been
reflected in the proposed budget:

- Refurbishment of the Council’s vehicle fleet and fuel
payments. Members were advised that there would be a
need to respond to requirements set out in the
Environment Act. The costs of biofuels, compared to
diesel, were increasing and this would also need to be
taken into account.

- There was a fund for apprenticeships and Officers were
aiming to link this to staff grades in order to take advantage
of the Government’s apprenticeship levy.



Executive
Committee

Page 27 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

- There was a need to fund a new Data Analyst post. At
present, there was only one member of staff at the Council
trained on how to undertake this work and Officers
believed that the Council’s system, Power BI, could be
used more effectively.

- There remained pressures arising from planning
enforcement.

Council Tax collection rates for the 2022/23 financial year

were at around 98 per cent and this was taken into account

when calculating likely income from Council Tax for
subsequent years.

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) had reviewed the

earmarked reserves in December 2022, as there were a

number of reserves that had not been used for some time. As

a consequence, a number of the reserves had been released,

including funding that would be used to address the rising

costs of utilities.

Officers were assuming that the general fund would be in a

surplus position by the third year of the plan, although there

would be gaps to address in the first and second years.

By the third year, the Council was projected to have reserves

of £2.1 million. The Government suggested that Councils

should have reserves equivalent to 5 per cent of the
authority’s income. The Interim Section 151 Officer was
suggesting that in Redditch, reserves should represent closer
to 9 per cent of income, to take account of debts and
expenditure too.

Action would need to continue to be taken to raise the

reserves in the general fund. Therefore, Members and

Officers would be encouraged to continue to consider

efficiencies that could be made in service delivery as well as

potential savings.

Legally, all buildings in the public sector would need to have

an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of E or better

by 2026. Some buildings could potentially be upgraded but
others might have more complex issues and would potentially
need to be sold.

Staff retention and recruitment remained an area of concern

for local government in the West Midlands, including for

Redditch Borough Council. Therefore, there was a need to

review how best to attract and retain skilled and qualified staff

moving forward.

There was the potential that some redundancy payments

would need to be made. However, given there were in excess

of 100 vacancies in the shared services between Redditch

Borough and Bromsgrove District Councils, it was possible

that staff placed at risk in service reviews could be redeployed

in other departments.



Executive
Committee

Page 28 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

o The capital programme was underspent. However, there were
some signficant projects included in the capital programme,
including the replacement of the vehicle fleet and expenditure
of the Town’s Fund on the regeneration of Redditch town
centre.

o Members had recently agreed that the rents for Council house
tenants should increase by 7 per cent. Whilst Officers were
working on the basis that a similar increase would occur in
2024/25, for service planning purposes, decisions could only
be taken on a yearly basis regarding rent increases and the
report in respect of the following financial year could therefore
contain different proposals.

o The Treasury Management Strategy had also been included in
the report, which detailed how the Council intended to
approach borrowing. Members were asked to note that the
Government no longer permitted local authorities to borrow for
yield.

o The Council had not had to borrow to fund the capital
programme since 2011 and it appeared likely that the authority
would be able to continue to use internal resources to fund the
capital programme over the following three years.

o The Investment Strategy detailed the support that could be
provided to local groups where needed, subject to submission
of robust business cases.

The Interim Section 151 Officer concluded the presentation of the
MTFP by outlining his views of the robustness of the budget and the
risks associated with the budget. Members were advised that a
number of risks had been identified which included:

o The Council’s 2021/22 accounts had not yet been closed,
although Officers were close to completing this work.

o An overspend was anticipated for the 2022/23 financial year.

o The impact of inflation on the costs of service and project
delivery remained an area of concern.

o There was a risk that the authority could potentially lose key
personnel due to the age profile of the Council’s existing
workforce.

o The authority needed to lobby the Government regarding
calculations for the Council Tax Base. The Council was
placed at a disadvantage as the Council Tax Base was
calculated based on the number of band d equivalent
properties in the local authority area and the majority of
houses in Redditch were classified as bands a — c.

o The Council needed to complete projects, for which the
authority had received grant funding from the Government,
within relatively tight timescales, including for the regeneration
of the town centre. Should these works not be completed to



Page 29 Agenda Annex

Executive

] Tuesday, 7th February, 2023
Committee

deadline, the Council would have to return funding to the
Government.

The Interim Section 151 Officer had concluded that the figures
contained in the MTFP were robust. There were also adequate
reserves, although more efficiencies needed to be achieved in order
to ensure that there remained sufficient reserves moving forward.

Following the presentation of the report, the Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Enabling thanked the Interim Section 151 Officer, the
Head of Finance and Customer Services and the rest of the
Finance Department for their hard work on the budget. It was
suggested that the content of the budget was more transparent and
easier to follow than it had been in previous years, due to the layout
of the report.

Members acknowledged that there remained financial challenges
which would need to be addressed by the Council moving forward.
In particular, Members noted that there was a need to maximise
use of grant funding. It was also noted that Portfolio Holders had
collective responsibility for ensuring that they questioned Officers
about services within their remit and took nothing for granted.

RECOMMENDED approval of
1) thetranche 2 growth proposals;

2) the additional funding to the Council as per the Local
Government Settlement on the 19" December 2022,
including the estimated levels for 2024/5 and 2025/6;

3) thetranche 2 savings proposals, including an Increase of
Council Tax at 2.99 per cent;

4) the Capital Programme 2023/4 to 2025/6 and associated
projects where outstanding budgets will be allowed to be
carried forward at the end of the 2022/23 financial year;

5) thelevels of reserve being carried forward into future
years;

6) the level of General Fund balances being used to balance
budgets over the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
period; and



Executive
Committee
124.
125.
126.

Page 30 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

RESOLVED that

7) the Chief Financial Officer’s (CFO) Opinion on Estimates
and Reserve Levels —the Robustness Statement (Section
25 Statement) — be noted.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members were informed that there were no outstanding
recommendations arising from the minutes of the meeting of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8" December 2022
requiring the Executive Committee’s consideration.

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 8" December 2022 be noted.

MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS ETC.

Members were advised that there were no referrals from the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or any of the Executive Advisory
Panels for consideration on this occasion.

ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORTS

The following updates were provided in respect of the Executive
Advisory Panels and other bodies:

a) Climate Change Cross Party Working Group — Chair,
Councillor Anthony Lovell

In Councillor Lovell’s absence, Members noted that a meeting
of the Climate Change Cross Party Working Group had taken
place in December 2022. During this meeting, Members had
discussed the planning process and action that could be taken
in relation to this process to enhance the biodiversity of the
local environment.

b) Constitutional Review Working Group — Chair, Councillor
Matthew Dormer

Councillor Dormer explained that a meeting of the
Constitutional Review Working Party had taken place on 23"
January 2023. During this meeting, Members had considered
a number of reports and had made some recommendations
about changes that could be made to the constitution. These
recommendations were due to be considered at the following



Executive
Committee

Page 31 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

d)

meeting of Council scheduled to take place on 27" February
2023.

Corporate Parenting Board — Council Representative,
Councillor Nyear Nazir

Councillor Nazir commented that there had been a meeting of
the Corporate Parenting Board on 315t January 2023. During
this meeting, the Board had learned that there had been a
recent spike in the number of school exclusions taking place.
The situation in respect of this matter had improved slightly
between autumn 2021 and 2022 and the Virtual Schools
Board was working with local schools to address this problem.

The numbers of unaccompanied child asylum seekers in
Worcestershire had increased from 29 to 89. The children,
some of whom had escaped from war zones, were provided
with support and the Board was working hard to ensure that
this support met their needs.

The Executive Committee was reminded that Councillor Nazir
was the Board’s District lead for employment and
apprenticeships. It was noted that Redditch Borough Council
had signed up to the pledge to help care leavers secure
apprenticeships and it was hoped that some care leavers
would therefore apply to take up apprenticeship opportunities
at the Council.

Member Support Steering Group — Chair, Councillor Matthew
Dormer

Members were advised that a meeting of the Member Support
Steering Group had taken place on 17t January 2023. During
this meeting, the group had considered feedback provided by
Councillors in completed surveys on the subject of reducing
paper waste for Council and Committee meetings. Based on
the feedback received, as well as the need to address pledges
in the Council’s Carbon Reduction Plan to reduce paper
waste, the group had agreed that there should be an
assumption that all Members would go paperless moving
forward. However, individual Councillors could opt to continue
to receive paper copies of agenda packs and Members were
urged to notify Democratic Services by Friday 17" February
2023 if they wanted to continue to receive paper copies of
agenda packs.

Councillor Dormer advised that there was due to be a Member
training session focusing on how to use the modern.gov app,
which was scheduled to take place in the evening on 13t



Executive
Committee

Page 32 Agenda Annex

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

February 2023. This training would outline how the app could
be used to access and annotate agenda packs electronically
and Members were urged to attend this session.

The Member Support Steering Group had also agreed at their
latest meeting that, where Councillors continued to receive
paper copies of agenda packs, they should collect these from
their post trays at the Town Hall. This represented a return to
the arrangements that had been in place for many years prior
to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Planning Advisory Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer

Councillor Dormer confirmed that there had been no meetings
of the Planning Advisory Panel (PAP) since the previous
meeting of the Executive Committee.

The Meeting commenced at 5.30 pm

and closed at 6.18 pm




Page 33
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

2023

Agenda Iltem 6.1

7 February

Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel — recommendations for
members’ allowances for 2023-24 and the members allowances

scheme

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Councillor M Dormer Leader and
Portfolio Holder for Planning,
Economic Development,
Commercialism and Partnerships
Councillor K Ashley Portfolio Holder
for Finance and Enabling

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Yes

Relevant Head of Service

Claire Felton

Report Author Job Title: Darren Whitney
Contact email:
darren.whitney@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01527 881650

Wards Affected All

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) N/A

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to consider the report and
recommendations and RECOMMEND to Council

1.1 whether or not to accept all, some or none of the
recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel for

2023-24;

1.2 having considered the Panel’s report and recommendations,
whether or not changes are required to the Council’s scheme
of allowances for Members arising from this.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

Each Council is required by law to have an Independent Remuneration
Panel (IRP) which recommends the level of allowances for Councillors.
The Panel is made up of suitably skilled members of the public who are
completely independent of the Borough Council. It also makes
recommendations to four other District Councils in Worcestershire.

The Panel’s report is enclosed for consideration by the Executive
Committee and ultimately by the Council.



Page 34 Agenda Item 6.1

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7 February
2023

2.2  The panel recommends basic allowances, special responsibility
allowances (SRA), travel, subsistence and dependent carer
allowances.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 If the Council makes changes to the current amounts of allowances
there may be additional savings or costs. If the Council implements all
the recommendations of the IRP, using IRP scheme, costs would be
decreased in the region of £2,100. It should be noted that the scheme
recommended by the IRP only allows for one SRA per Councillor and
does not include a payment for Executive Members without Portfolio. If
the Council implements the recommendations of the IRP and includes
additional SRAs and Executive Members without Portfolio the costs will
rise by approximately £10,500.

3.2  The upcoming budget will need to reflect any changes made from the
recommendations in this report and the future costs will need to be
covered in the medium term financial plan.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The Council is required to “have regard” to the recommendations of the
Panel. However, it is not obliged to agree to them. It can choose to
implement them in full or in part, or not to accept them.

4.2 If the Council decides to review its scheme of allowances for
Councillors, it is also required to take into account recommendations
from the Panel before doing so.

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1  None as this report deals with statutory functions.

Climate Change Implications

5.2  None in this report.

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1  None in this report.



Page 35 Agenda Item 6.1

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7 February
2023

Operational Implications

6.2  There are no direct service or operational implications arising from this
report. Once the Council has agreed the allowances for 2023-24
Officers will update and publish the Members’ Allowances Scheme as
appropriate.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  Payments to Councillors can be a high profile issue. The main risks
are reputational. However, the Council is transparent about the
decisions made on allowances. The Allowances scheme and sums
paid to Councillors each year are published on the Council’s website.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Report and recommendations from the Independent Remuneration
Panel for 2023-24.

Background papers:
Members Allowances Scheme — in the Council Constitution at part 18:

Members' Scheme of Allowances - Redditch constitution



https://moderngovwebpublic.redditchbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=379&MId=3709&Ver=4

Page 36 Agenda Item 6.1

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7 February
2023

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder

Claire Felton 18 Jan 2023
Lead Director / Head of Head of Legal, Democratic and
Service Property Services

Victoria Swashorme 13 Jan 2023
Financial Services Finance Services Manager

Legal Services




Page 37 Agenda Item 6.1

Independent Remuneration Panel
for Worcestershire District Councils

Annual Report and Recommendations for 2023-24

Redditch Borough Council

December 2022



Page 38

Contents

Recommendations to Council

Introduction and Context

Background Evidence and Research Undertaken

Basic Allowance 2023-
24

Special Responsibility Allowances 2023-
24

Mileage and Expenses 2023-
24

Allowances to Parish
Councils

The Independent Remuneration Panel

Appendix 1 - Current and Recommended Allowances

Appendix 2 - Summary of Research

Agenda Iltem 6.1

Page



Page 39 Agenda Item 6.1

Recommendations

The Independent Remuneration Panel recommends to Redditch Borough
Council the following:

1. A Basic Allowance for 2023-24 of £5,081, representing a 7.37% increase.
2. Special Responsibility Allowances as set out in Appendix 1

3. That travel allowances for 2023-24 continue to be paid in accordance
with the HMRC mileage allowance

4, That subsistence allowances for 2023-24 remain unchanged
5. That the Dependent Carer’s Allowance remains unchanged
6. That for the Parish Council in the Borough, if travel and subsistence is

paid, the Panel recommends that it is paid in accordance with the rates
paid by Borough Council and in accordance with the relevant
Regulations



Page 40 Agenda Item 6.1

Introduction and Context

The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) has been appointed by the Council to carry
out reviews of the allowances paid to Councillors, as required by the Local Government
Act 2000 and subsequent legislation. The Panel has carried out its work in accordance
with the legislation and statutory guidance.

The law requires each Council to ‘have regard’ to the recommendations of the Panel and
we noted that Redditch Borough Council agreed to implement the Panel's Basic Allowance
recommendation for 2022-23.

Our recommendations are based on thorough research and benchmarking and we have
presented the Council with what we consider to be an appropriate set of allowances to
reflect the roles carried out by the Councillors. The purpose of allowances is to enable
people from all walks of life to become involved in local politics if they choose.

The Panel does acknowledge that in the current challenging financial climate there are
difficult choices for the Council to make. It is for the Council to decide how or whether to
adopt the recommendations that we make.

Background Evidence and Research Undertaken

There is a rich and varied choice of market indicators on pay which can be used for
comparison purposes. These include:

o National survey data on a national, regional or local level
o Focused surveys on a particular public sector

o Regular or specific surveys

. Use of specific indices to indicate movement in rewards or cost of living

As background for the decisions taken by the Panel this year we have:

o Analysed and considered the Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE)
statistics for 2022 which gives a mean hourly wage rate for Worcestershire
of £17.34

. Benchmarked the Basic Allowance against allowances for comparable roles paid by

the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) “nearest
neighbour” Councils for each authority

o Taken account of the National Pay Award for the majority of Local Government
employees
. Considered the Consumer Price Index information as at September 2022

We give more details about these areas of research at the end of the report.

In 2015, Worcester City Councillors recorded time spent on Council business for a number
of weeks. This enabled the Panel to confirm the number of hours per week for front-line
councillors, which is used to calculate the recommended Basic Allowance. This exercise
was carried out again in 2022 and no significant difference was recorded.



Page 41 Agenda Item 6.1

The figure being recommended by the Panel of £5,081 for the Basic Allowance appears
reasonable and appropriate when compared to other Local Authorities. The mean average
Basic Allowance for the “nearest neighbour” authorities is £6,040. We feel it is important
not to allow this gap to widen.

Arising from our research, in Table 1 we have included information showing the Members’
allowances budget for Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances paid for 2021-22 as a
cost per head of population for each Council. To give context, we have included details of
the proportion of net revenue budget spent by each Council on Basic and Special
Responsibility allowances.

Table 1 - Total spend on Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) as
a cost per head of population 2021-22 figures
Authority, Total spend | Total SRA as a Cost of Total of basic
population! | Basic spend percentage | total basic | and SRA as a
and Allowances | on SRA of total and SRA percentage of
number of Basic per head Net General
Councillors Allowance of Revenue Fund
population | expenditure
£ £ % £ %

Bromsgrove 145,754 72,538 49.77% £2.17 Not available
DC (31)
100,569
Malvern Hills 172,810 69,350 40% £3.05 2.9%
DC (38)
79,445
Redditch 127,875 94,770 74.11% £2.60 Not available
Borough
(29)
85,568
Worcester 156,304.52 | 94,696.21 60.58% £2.50 1.43%
City (35)
100,265
Wychavon 207,425 93,121 44.89% £2.29 2.77%
(45)
131,084

In Table 2 we show the average payment per member of each authority of the Basic and
Special Responsibility Allowances, which illustrates the balance between the level of Special
Responsibility Allowances paid and the Basic Allowance.

'ONS population estimates mid 2020. Totals for Basic and Special Responsibility allowances paid are as
published by each authority for the 2021-22 financial year.




Page 42 Agenda Item 6.1

Table 2 - Average allowance per Member of each authority (Basic and Special
Responsibility Allowances, 2021-22 figures)

Authority (number of Amount £
Councillors)
Bromsgrove District (31) £7,182.10
Malvern Hills District (38) £6,372.63
Redditch Borough (29) £7,677.41
Worcester City (35) £7,171.45
Wychavon District (45) £6,679.00

Basic Allowance 2023 -24

Calculation of Basic Allowance
The Basic Allowance is based on:

e The roles and responsibilities of Members

e Their time commitments - including the total average number of hours
worked per week on Council business

¢ A public service discount of 40% to reflect that Councillors volunteer their time
e The Basic Allowance is paid to all Members of the Council

Whilst each Council may set out role descriptions for Councillors, the Panel accepts that
each Councillor will carry out that role differently, reflecting personal circumstances and
local requirements. However, we consider the Basic Allowance to include Councillors’ roles
in Overview and Scrutiny, as any non-Executive member of the Council is able to
contribute to this aspect of the Council’s work. It is for this reason that we do not
recommend any Special Responsibility Allowance for members of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. We also consider that ICT could be included in the Basic Allowance
as it is generally more readily available to individuals than in previous years. However, we
are comfortable that specific local decisions may be made about how ICT support is
provided.

We reviewed the levels of wage rates for Worcestershire as set out in the ASHE data
(details in Appendix 2) and the benchmark information available to us from the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) “nearest neighbours” authorities as
part of our research into the level of basic allowance recommended. We are also aware
that local government employees have accepted a varying pay award increase of between
4% and 10.5% (averaging approximately 7%) for the financial year 2022-23.

The recommended basic allowance for 2023-24 takes strong account of the ASHE data
and is set at an appropriate level in the context of the local government pay award. The
Panel are conscious of the current financial challenges but are also mindful to avoid
increasing any gap in allowances between Redditch Borough Council and its “nearest
neighbours”

The research information used in the consideration of the Basic Allowance is set out at
appendix 2.



Page 43 Agenda Item 6.1

Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) 2023-24

The basis for the calculation of SRAs is a multiplier of the Basic Allowance as advocated in
the published Guidance.

Mileage and Expenses 2023-24

The Panel notes that the Council has used the HMRC flat rate for payment of mileage for
all types of vehicles for Councillors and recommends that this continues.

The Panel is satisfied that the current levels of subsistence allowances are set at an
appropriate level and recommends that these continue.

The Panel notes that the Council’'s Scheme of Members’ Allowances provides that
Dependant Carer Allowances are payable to cover reasonable and legitimate costs incurred
in attending approved duties and recommends that this provision continues.

Allowances to Parish Councils 2023-24

The Independent Remuneration Panel for Worcestershire District Councils acts as the
Remuneration Panel for the Parish Councils in each District.

This year the Panel has not been asked to make recommendations on any matters by any
Parish in Redditch Borough.

The Independent Remuneration Panel

The Members’ Allowances Regulations require Local Authorities to establish and maintain
an Independent Remuneration Panel. The purpose of the Panel is to make
recommendations to the authority about allowances to be paid to Elected Members and
Local Authorities must have regard to this advice. This Council’s Independent
Remuneration Panel is set up on a joint basis with four of the other five District Councils
in Worcestershire. Separate Annual Reports have been prepared for each Council.

The members of the Panel are:

Reuben Bergman - Reuben Bergman - Reuben is a Fellow of the CIPD with significant
senior HR leadership experience across a range of public sector organisations in both
England and Wales. He currently runs a HR Consultancy Business in Worcestershire
providing advice and support on managing change, employment law, HR policy
development, mediation, management coaching and employee relations. Reuben has led
successful equal pay reviews in three separate local authorities and is known for his
successful work in managing change and developing effective employee relations. He is
a qualified coach, mediator and a Shared Service architect. He has won national awards
for his work on employee engagement and the development of an innovative Café style
leadership development programme.

Matthew Davies - Matthew qualified as a Social Worker in 2008 and subsequently
worked with children and young people in Worcestershire, Jersey and Manchester.
Latterly he is employed as a Registered Manager of an independent fostering agency,



Page 44 Agenda Iltem 6.1

supporting and supervising approved foster carers to care for children and young people
in care.

Xenia Goudefroy - Xenia is a Management Accountant with experience in the financial
controlling and forecasting for a range of companies in the private sector. She holds an
Advanced Diploma in Management Accounting and has completed a Master’s degree in
Business Administration at University Vila Velha and in International Management at the
Steinbeis University Berlin. As a focus topic of her thesis she has developed the order-
to-cash process for new business models. Since she moved to the UK in 2017 in her free
time she has been volunteering to help people in need and is also working as a volunteer
at the Worcester fish-pass to help preserve the natural habitat of migrating species. She
is fluent in three languages and enjoys learning new skKills.

Tim Hunt - Tim is a qualified journalist with more than 25 years’ experience in media
and communications. He spent seven years covering community and local authority news
in Worcestershire and Warwickshire, including four as editor of two local newspapers,
before going on to work in corporate communications and events. Tim now runs his own
PR agency and is a Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Susan Moxon - Susan has worked in the Education sector for over 20 years, working in
schools in Warwickshire and Birmingham and then with the Department for Education,
where she worked in the 6th form funding team, analysing data from incoming enquiries,
mainly from schools and colleges regarding the calculation of their funding statements.
She has also acted as an independent observer at Teacher Disciplinary Hearings ensuring
that the panel members followed procedures and were unbiased in their decision making.
Previously she was an Exams Support Officer providing advice to schools and colleges in
Hereford, Worcester and Gloucester about entering students for external exams and
assessments, her particular area of expertise.

She is currently Clerk to the Governing Bodies at two First Schools in Worcestershire and
to two local charities. She organises meetings, manages the accounts and is the main
point of contact with applicants, local providers and the Charity Commission.

Caroline Murphy - Caroline has over 20 years’ experience of working in public and
voluntary sector organisations, including three West Midlands Local Authorities and the
Civil Service. She was a senior Education Manager at Wolverhampton City Council until
2011 developing and delivering a large part of the 14-19 Pathfinder, during which time
her department was recognised as achieving Beacon Council Status. She has a wealth of
experience at building partnerships. Caroline now works as freelance Education, Skills and
Development Adviser supporting individuals and organisations with strategic
management, quality assurance and improvement, safeguarding, regulation compliance,
research and evaluation, data protection and developing policies and procedures. She has
worked in a consultancy capacity for a number of organisations, specialising in those who
support vulnerable young people. She also spent 14 years as the Vice Chair of Governors
of a primary school in Birmingham.

The Panel has been advised and assisted by:

. Claire Chaplin and Margaret Johnson from Worcester City Council
. Darren Whitney from Bromsgrove & Redditch Councils



Page 45 Agenda Item 6.1

o Mel Harris from Wychavon District Council
. Lisa Perks from Malvern Hills District Council

The Panel wishes to acknowledge its gratitude to these officers who have provided advice
and guidance in a professional and dedicated manner.

The Panel also wishes to place on record its thanks to Martin Litt for his time and work
for the Panel and wish him well.

Caroline Murphy and Matthew Davies, Co-Chairs of Independent Remuneration
Panel



Page 46 Agenda Item 6.1

Appendix 1

Independent Remuneration Panel for District Councils in Worcestershire
Recommendations for 2023/24

Redditch Borough Council

Role Rec’'d Current Rec’'d Current Rec’d Multiplier Rec’'d
Multiplier | Multiplier Allowance | Allowance 2023-24 Allowance
2022-23 (Council 2022-23 2022-23 (IRP) 2023-24
(IRP) Agreed) (IRP) (Council (IRP)
£ Agreed) £
£
1 1 4,732 4,732 1 5,081
Basic
Allowance for
all Councillors
Special Responsibility Allowances:
Leader 3 3 14,196 14,196 3 15,243
plus 7,098
as portfolio
holder
Deputy Leader 1.75 1.75 8,281 8,281 plus 1.75 8,891.75
4,732 as
Exec
Member
without
portfolio
Executive 1.5 1.5 7,098 7,098 1.5 7,621.50
Members
(Portfolio
Holders)
Executive Xk k% 1 KK Kk 4’732 XKk Xk 3K 3K Kk
Members
without
portfolio
Chair of 1.5 1.5 7,098 7,098 1.5 7,621.50
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee
Chair of 0.25 0.25 1,183 1,183 0.25 1,270.25
Overview and
Scrutiny Task
Groups
Chair of Audit, 0.25 0.25 1,183 1,183 0.25 1,270.25
Governance
and Standards
Committee




Page 47 Agenda Item 6.1

Chair of 1 1 4,732 4,732 1 5,081
Planning
Committee
Chair of 0.75 0.75 3,549 3,549 0.75 3,810.75
Licensing
Committee
Political Group 0.25 0.25 1,183 1,183 0.25 1,270.25
Leaders

Appendix 2

Summary of Research

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) “Nearest Neighbour”
authorities tool.

No two Councils or sets of Councillors are the same. Developed to aid local authorities in
comparative and benchmarking exercises, the CIPFA Nearest Neighbours Model adopts a
scientific approach to measuring the similarity between authorities. Using the data,
Redditch Borough Council’s “nearest neighbours” are:

Tamworth Borough Council
Gloucester City Council
Stevenage Borough Council
Worcester City Council
Cannock Chase District Council

Information on the level of Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances was obtained to
benchmark the levels of allowances recommended to the Council. The average basic
award across all the “nearest neighbour” authorities was £6,040 as at December 2022.

Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE) Data on Pay

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/contents.aspx

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/construct/summary.asp?reset=yes&mode=constru
ct&dataset=30&version=0&anal=1&initsel=

Published by the Office for National Statistics, the Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings
(ASHE) shows detailed information at District level about rates of pay. For benchmarking
purposes, the Panel uses the levels for hourly rates of pay excluding overtime (currently
£17.34). This is multiplied by 11 to give a weekly rate, which is then multiplied by 44.4
weeks to allow for holidays. This was the number of hours spent on Council business by
frontline Councillors which had been reported in previous surveys and substantiated by
surveys with Worcester City Councillors in 2015 and 2022. The rate is then discounted
by 40% to reflect the element of volunteering that each Councillor undertakes in the role.
As a benchmark indicator this would produce a figure of £5,081 per annum.


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/contents.aspx
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/construct/summary.asp?reset=yes&mode=construct&dataset=30&version=0&anal=1&initsel
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/construct/summary.asp?reset=yes&mode=construct&dataset=30&version=0&anal=1&initsel

Page 48 Agenda Item 6.1

CPI (Consumer Price Inflation)

In arriving at its recommendations the Panel has taken into account the latest reported
CPI figure available to it, published by the Office for National Statistics. This was 10.1%
in September 2022.

Local Government Pay Award

The Panel was mindful of the current local government pay award as set out earlier in
this report.

10



Page 49 Agenda Item 6.2

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 7t February 2023

Pay Policy Statement 2023/24

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Ashley

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes / No

Relevant Head of Service Deb Poole — Head of Transformation, OD
& Digital

Report Author Job Title: HR & OD Manager

Contact
email:becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel:01527 64252

Wards Affected N/A
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) Enabling

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMMENDATIONS: -

The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to Council that

the Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report be
approved.

2. BACKGROUND

The Localism Act requires English and Welsh local authorities to
produce a Pay Policy statement (‘the statement’). The Act requires the
statement to be approved by Full Council and to be adopted by 315t
March each year for the subsequent financial year. The Pay Policy
Statement for the Council is included at Appendix 1.

The Statement must set out policies relating to-

(a) The remuneration of its chief officers,
(b) The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees, and
(c) The relationship between-

(1 The remuneration of its chief officers, and



Page 50 Agenda Item 6.2

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 7t February 2023

(i) The remuneration of its employees who are not chief
officers.
The provisions within the Localism Act bring together the strands of
increasing accountability, transparency and fairness in the setting of
local pay.

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

There are no implications in relation to this report

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

All financial implications have already been included as part of the
budget setting process and posts are fully budgeted for.

The information provided is based on the current pay structure and is
subject to any national pay award for 2022/23 being agreed

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed in the background section

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

6.1 The Pay Policy sets out the remuneration of the Council and
recognises the importance of our staff as a resource central to our
success in delivering our strategic purposes and services to our
communities.

Climate Change Implications

6.2 N/A

Equalities and Diversity Implications

There are no implications in relation to this report

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 N/A



Page 51 Agenda Item 6.2

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive 7t February 2023

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix one: Pay Policy 2022/23

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date
Portfolio Holder Clir K. Ashley
Lead Director / Head of Service Deb Poole — Head of
Transformation, OD &
Digital
Financial Services Michelle Howell — Head
of Finance & Customer
Services
Legal Services Mike Rowan

Legal Services Manager

Policy Team (if equalities N/A
implications apply)

Climate Change Team (if N/A
climate change implications apply)




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda Item 6.2

APPENDIX 1
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
PAY POLICY STATEMENT

Introduction and Purpose

1. Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as
authority thinks fit”. This pay policy statement sets out the Council’s
approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements of Section 38
of the Localism Act 2011. It shall apply for the financial year 2022 and each
subsequent financial year, until amended.

2. The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the
Council’'s approach to setting the pay of its employees by identifying;

a. the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined,;

b. the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief
officers’, as defined by the relevant legislation;

c. the Committee(s) responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this
statement are applied consistently throughout the Council and for
recommending any amendments to the full Council

3. Once approved by the full Council, this policy statement will come into
immediate effect and will be subject to review on a minimum of an annual
basis, in accordance with the relevant legislation prevailing at that time.

Legislative Framework

4. In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council
will comply with all relevant employment legislation. This includes the
Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable
Treatment) Regulations 2000, The Agency Workers Regulations 2010 and
where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Earnings)
Regulations. With regard to the equal pay requirements contained within
the Equality Act, the Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within
its pay structures and that all pay differentials can be objectively justified
through the use of equality proofed Job Evaluation mechanisms. These
directly relate salaries to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of
the role.

Pay Structure

5. The Council’s pay and grading structure comprises grades 1 — 11. These
are followed by grades for Managers 1 - 2, Head of Service 1, Head of
Service 2, Head of Service 3, Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive
and then Chief Executive; all of which arose following the introduction of
shared services with Bromsgrove District Council.



Page 54

Agenda Iltem 6.2

Within each grade there are a number of salary / pay points. Up to and
including grade 11 scale, at spinal column point 43, the Council uses the
nationally negotiated pay spine. Salary points above this are locally
determined. The Council’s Pay structure is set out below.

Grade Spinal Column Points Nationally determined

rates

Minimum | Maximum

£ £
1 1 2 20,258 20,441
2 2 5 20,441 21,575
3 5 9 21,575 23,194
4 9 14 23,194 25,409
5 14 19 25,409 27,852
6 19 24 27,852 31,099
7 25 30 32,020 36,298
8 30 34 36,298 40,478
9 34 37 40,478 43,516
10 37 40 44,516 46,549
11 40 43 46,549 49,590
Manager Hay Grade 1 Hay evaluated | 43% 60,068 62,416
Manager Hay Grade 2 Hay evaluated | 45% 62,437 64,922
Head of Service 1 Hay evaluated | 51% 71,075 73,898
Head of Service 2 Hay evaluated | 61% 84,905 88,292
Head of Service 3 Hay evaluated | 68% 94,501 97,889
Executive Director Hay evaluated | 74% 102,403 | 106,356
Deputy Chief Executive Hay evaluated | 80% 114,824
Chief Executive Hay evaluated | 100% 143,049




Page 55 Agenda Item 6.2

7. All Council posts are allocated to a grade within this pay structure, based on the
application of a Job Evaluation process. Posts at Managers and above are
evaluated by an external assessor using the Hay Job Evaluation scheme. Where
posts are introduced as part of a shared service, and where these posts are
identified as being potentially too ‘large’ and ‘complex’ for this majority scheme,
they will be double tested under the Hay scheme, and where appropriate, will be
taken into the Hay scheme to identify levels of pay. This scheme identifies the
salary for these posts based on a percentage of Chief Executive Salary (for ease
of presentation these are shown to the nearest whole % in the table above). Posts
below this level (which are the majority of employees) are evaluated under the
“Gauge” Job Evaluation process..

8. In common with the majority of authorities the Council is committed to the Local
Government Employers national pay bargaining framework in respect of the
national pay spine and annual cost of living increases negotiated with the trade
unions.

9. All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally
negotiated rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with
collective bargaining machinery and/or as determined by Council policy. In
determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for all posts, the
Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use
of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees
who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to the
community; delivered effectively and efficiently and at all times those services are
required.

10. New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant grade,
although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate. From
time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay market in
order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills and
capacity. Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is
objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant
market comparators, using appropriate data sources available from within and
outside the local government sector.

11. For staff not on the highest point within the salary scale there is a system of annual
progression to the next point on the band.

Senior Management Remuneration

12. For the purposes of this statement, senior management means ‘chief officers’ as
defined within S43 of the Localism Act. The posts falling within the statutory
definition are set out below, with details of their basic salary as at 15t April 2022
(assuming no inflationary increase for these posts).

13. Redditch Borough Council is managed by a senior management team who
manage shared services across both Redditch Borough and Bromsgrove District
Councils. All of the posts listed below have been job evaluated on this basis, with
the salary costs for these posts split equally between both Councils.



Page 56

Agenda Iltem 6.2

Cost to
Pay range | Pay range Redditch
Title % of Chief | (minimum) | (maximum) Incremental Borough
executive c c points Council
salary c
Chief Executive 100% 143,049 71524.50
Deputy Chief 0
Executive 80% 111,230 55615
Executive
Director of
Fi
inance and 74% 102,403 106,356 3
Resources.
(Also S151
Officer) 53178
This is a
Head of shared post
Worcestershire agigfiif
Regu'atory 68% 94,501 97,889 3 Authorities at
a cost of
Services £16,314
each
Head of Finance
and Customer 61% 84,905 88,292 3
Services 44146
Head of
Planning,
. 61%
Regeneration 84,905 88,292 3
and Leisure
Services 44146
Head of 61%
Transformation,
@) isati I
rganisationa 84,905 88,292 3
Development
and Digital
Services 44146




Page 57 Agenda Item 6.2

Head of Legal, 61%
Democratic and
Property

Services 44146

84,905 88,292 3

Head of 61%
Environmental
and Housing 84,905 88,292 3
Property
Services 44146

Head of 61%
Community and
Housing

Services 44146

84,905 88,292 3

Recruitment of Chief Officers

14. The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers is
set out within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in the Council’s
Constitution. When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper
account of its own equal opportunities, recruitment and redeployment Policies.
The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief
officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at
the time of recruitment. Where the Council is unable to recruit to a post at the
designated grade, it will consider the use of temporary market forces supplements
in accordance with its relevant policies.

15. Where the Council remains unable to recruit chief officers under a contract of
service, or there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant
substantive chief officer post, the Council will, where necessary, consider and
utilise engaging individuals under ‘contracts for service’. These will be sourced
through a relevant procurement process ensuring the council is able to
demonstrate the maximum value for money benefits from competition in securing
the relevant service. The Council does not currently have any Chief Officers under
such arrangements.

Performance-Related Pay and Bonuses — Chief Officers
16. The Council does not apply any bonuses or performance related pay to its chief
officers. Any progression through the incremental scale of the relevant grade is

subject to satisfactory performance which is assessed on an annual basis.

Additions to Salary of Chief Officers (applicable to all staff)

17. In addition to the basic salary for the post, all staff may be eligible for other
payments under the Council’s existing policies. Some of these payments are



Page 58 Agenda Item 6.2

chargeable to UK Income Tax and do not solely constitute reimbursement of
expenses incurred in the fulfilment of duties. The list below shows some of the
kinds of payments made.

a. reimbursement of mileage. At the time of preparation of this statement, the
Council pays an allowance of 45p per mile for all staff, with additional or
alternative payments for carrying passengers or using a bicycle;

b. professional fees. The Council pays for or reimburses the cost of one
practicing certificate fee or membership of a professional organisation
provided it is relevant to the post that an employee occupies within the
Council.

c. long service awards. The Council pays staff an additional amount if they
have completed 25 years of service and having completed 40 years service.

d. honoraria, in accordance with the Council’s policy on salary and grading.
Generally, these may be paid only where a member of staff has performed a
role at a higher grade;

e. fees for returning officer and other electoral duties, such as acting as a
presiding officer of a polling station. These are fees which are identified and
paid separately for local government elections, elections to the UK
Parliament and EU Parliament and other electoral processes such as
referenda;

f. pay protection — where a member of staff is placed in a new post and the
grade is below that of their previous post, for example as a result of a
restructuring, pay protection at the level of their previous post is paid for the
first 12 months. In exceptional circumstance pay protection can be applied
for greater than 12 months with the prior approval of the Chief Executive.

g. market forces supplements in addition to basic salary where identified and
paid separately;

h. salary supplements or additional payments for undertaking additional
responsibilities such as shared service provision with another local authority
or in respect of joint bodies, where identified and paid separately;

i. attendance allowances.

Payments on Termination

18. The Council’'s approach to discretionary payments on termination of employment of
chief officers prior to reaching normal retirement age is set out within its policy
statement in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early
Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006 and
Regulations 12 and 13 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits,
Membership and Contribution) Regulations 2007.

19. Any other payments falling outside the provisions or the relevant periods of
contractual notice shall be subject to a formal decision made by the full Council or
relevant elected members, committee or panel of elected members with delegated
authority to approve such payments.

20. Redundancy payments are based upon an employee’s actual weekly salary and, in
accordance with the Employee Relations Act 1996, will be up to 30 weeks,
depending upon length of service and age.



Page 59 Agenda Item 6.2

Publication

21. Upon approval by the full Council, this statement will be published on the Council’s
website. In addition, for posts where the full time equivalent salary is at least
£50,000, the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts will include a note on
Officers Remuneration setting out the total amount of:

a. Salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current
and previous year;

b. Any bonuses so paid or receivable by the person in the current and previous
year;

c. Any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK
income tax;

d. Any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments
connected with termination;

e. Any benefits received that do not fall within the above.

Lowest Paid Employees

22. The Council’s definition of lowest paid employees is persons employed under a
contract of employment with the Council on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries
in accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use within the
Council’s grading structure. As at 15t April 2022 this is £20,441 per annum.

23. The Council also employs apprentices (or other such categories of workers) who
are not included within the definition of ‘lowest paid employees’ (as they are
employed under a special form of employment contract; which is a contract for
training rather than actual employment).

24. The relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid and chief officers is
determined by the processes used for determining pay and grading structures as
set out earlier in this policy statement.

25. The statutory guidance under the Localism Act recommends the use of pay
multiples as a means of measuring the relationship between pay rates across the
workforce and that of senior managers, as included within the Hutton ‘Review of
Fair Pay in the Public Sector’ (2010). The Hutton report was asked by
Government to explore the case for a fixed limit on dispersion of pay through a
requirement that no public sector manager can earn more than 20 times the lowest
paid person in the organisation. The report concluded that “it would not be fair or
wise for the Government to impose a single maximum pay multiple across the
public sector”. The Council accepts the view that the relationship to median
earnings is a more relevant measure and the Government’s Code of
Recommended Practice on Data Transparency recommends the publication of the
ratio between highest paid salary and the median average salary of the whole of
the authority’s workforce.



Page 60 Agenda Item 6.2

26. As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay
markets, both within and outside the sector, the Council will use available
benchmark information as appropriate.

Accountability and Decision Making

28. In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, the Council is responsible for
setting the policy relating to the recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and
severance arrangements for employees of the Council. Decisions about individual
employees are delegated to the Chief Executive.

29. The Appointments Committee is responsible for recommending to Council matters
relating to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive),
Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and Chief Officers as defined in the Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 2001 (as amended);

30. Forthe Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer,
the Statutory Officers Disciplinary Action Panel considers and decides on matters
relating to disciplinary action.



Page 61 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2023/4 TO 2025/6

Relevant Portfolio Holder Clir. Karen Ashley, Finance and Enabling
Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Michelle Howell

Report Author Job Title: Head of Finance & Customer Services
email:michelle.howell@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel:

Wards Affected N/A

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) | All
Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  The Council has set its budget in two Tranches this year. The initial Tranche
was published on the 17" October this contained £1.5m of savings against a
carried forward deficit of £0.9m. This was presented to Council for approval
on the 30" January. This report finalises the overall budget, building on data
that was presented to Executive following the Provisional Local Government
Settlement on the 10" January.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Executive are asked to Recommend to Council:

|

The tranche 2 growth proposals.

2 The additional funding to the Council as per the Local Government
Settlement on the 19" December 2022, including the estimated levels for
2024/5 and 2025/6.

3 The tranche 2 savings proposals, including an Increase of Council Tax at
2.99%.

4 The Capital Programme 2023/4 to 2025/6 and associated projects where
outstanding budgets will be allowed to be carried forward at the end of the
2022/23 financial year.

5 The levels of reserve being carried forward into future years.

6 The level of General Fund balances being used to balance budgets over

the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) period.



Page 62 Agenda Item 6.3

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Executive note

. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Opinion on Estimates and Reserve Levels

— the Robustness Statement (Section 25 Statement)

Background

Introduction

The Council sets a 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan every year, with the
final Council Tax Resolution being approved by Council in February. This
year’s process, has been more difficult due to the following factors and as
such has been split into two Tranches to ensure maximisation of delivery in
the 2023/24 financial year:

e Starting the process with an initial deficit amount from the 2022/23 MTFP.

e This being the first year that the Government starts to pay for the C-19.

e The present cost of living crisis, including levels of inflation and interest
rate not seen since the start of this century.

e A change of Prime Minister and Cabinet.

e Limited Reserves and balances.

Tranche 1 Proposals

The Tranche 1 Report was discussed on the 25" October and approved for
implementation by the Executive on the 61" December. In that report, the
Interim Director of Finance noted in his draft robustness statement set out that
the MTFP highlights that the current financial position is untenable without
some form of intervention. We now know, following the Provisional Local
Government Settlement that following the work undertaken in Tranche 1 that
a £0.286m gap still remains in 2023/24 to be mitigated.

It is important, for planning purposes that those initial savings proposals are
approved by Council on the 30t January 2023 in order to achieve the
maximum benefit in the 2023/24 financial year.

The table below sets out the position at the end of Tranche 1. As per
previous discussions the largest issues are the inflationary increases that are
impacting all Local Authorities.



Page 63 Agenda Item 6.3

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

3.5

3.6

3.7

Redditch Position Statement

2023/24 | 2024/25| 2025/26
" €000 [ £000 | €000
Base Budget Position 22/23 MTFP
Expenditure 10,290 | 10,428 | 10,661
Funding -9,341 -9595 | -9.621
Net 949 833 1,040
Revised Gap 949 833 1,040
Pressures
50% Funding for Climate Change Officer 30 30 30
Savings Options
Environmental Services Partnership 0 -25 -50
Service Reviews -140 -330 -405
Mowve to All Qut Elections 0 0 -170
Town Hall 0 0 -400
Finance Vacancies -100 -100 -100
MRP -100 -100 -100
Pension Fund -580 -580 -580
Engage Capacity Grid {One Off) £14m De| -300 -300 0
10% Increase in Fees and Charges -339 -340 -342
Council Tax Increase 0 -104 -104
Total Savings -1,529 -1,849 -2,221
Revised Position -580 -1,016 -1,181
Pressures
Pay Pressure Year 1 928 928 8928
Pay Pressure Future Years (1%) 0 0 117
Transport Pressure 21 21 21
Contracts Pressures 230 235 240
Core Pressures 1.179 1.184 1,306
Updated Position 599 168 125
Ltilties Inflation 1,140 1,140 1,140
Final Draft Position 1,739 1,308 1,265

The Council’s Capital Programme must prioritise the spending of Towns Fund
and UK Shared Prosperity Grant Funding — both of which have to be delivered
by April 2026 and April 2025 respectively. Therefore, the new rationale in
Tranche 1 was that for any scheme not yet started (unless grant or S106
funded) is that they must rebid for funds as part of the 2023/24 budget
process.

Assumptions

There are a number of key assumptions that underpin the budget. Itis
important that all Stakeholders understand these as the budget has been
constructed in a period of high uncertainty, as set out in 3.1 above, and any
one of these assumptions might change due to any number of external
factors.

Tax Base underlying assumptions are as follows:



Page 64 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

3.8

3.9

e Council Tax — Figures assume the full 2.99% increase as now allowed by
the Chancellors Statement, this can now increase, subject to approval, by
another 1%.

e We have reduced the Council Tax Base by £130k, in line with data in the
Provisional Local Government Settlement.

e Business Rates Increases — business rates assume all reliefs as per the
Chancellors Statement. More work has been undertaken to validate the
final business rates position, which is set out in 3.17 below, taking into
account various S31 Grants and the effect of the Worcestershire and
Herefordshire Pool. It is expected that this pool will continue into 2024/25.

Grant support assumptions are as follows (Revenue and Capital). It should

be noted that these are budgeted figures and final grant figures will not be

confirmed until the time of the final Local Government Settlement.

The main Revenue Grants (still to be confirmed for 2023/4) are at 2022/3

levels:

S31 Grant - £0.748m

Housing Benefit Administration Grant - £0.235m

Housing Benefit Grant - £18.5m

Discretionary Housing Payment - £0.136m

Revenue Cost of Collection Grant - £0.106m

Homelessness Grant - £0.163m

e The Council has £15.2m of Towns Fund Grant to be spent by April 2026
which is match funded by £2.0m of Council funding.

e The Council has £2.4m of UK Shared Prosperity Fund to spend by April
2025. This is both revenue and capital in nature.

O O O O O O

Inflationary increases are significant due to factors already identified in
previously. The following are the base assumptions.

e The Employers agreed a 2022/23 pay award of £1,925 per pay point plus
on costs. This leads to an on-going pressure of £728k. This increase has
been included in ongoing budgets. An assumption of 2% for future pay
awards has also been built in for future years.

e An assumption of General inflation increases of 10% was made in
Tranchel in relation to transport and contract budgets. Its impact on
2023/24 was transport budgets £21k and base contracts £230k. It is
assumed that from 2024/25 inflation will move back to normal levels of 2%.

e We have assumed utility increases of 200% which amount to a £1,140k
ongoing pressure. Our existing Utility contracts requiring renewal by the
end of this financial year, and we have seen increases in some areas of up
to 400%.



Page 65 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

Tranche 2 of the Budget following the Provisional Local Government
Settlement — Additional Revenues

3.10 The Provisional Local Statement was announced on the 19 December. This
announcement confirmed the following funding sources for the Council:
o The Provisional Local Government Settlement has the following effect
= New Homes Bonus - £19k
= Services Grant - £86k
= Funding Guarantee - £493k
= Reduction in Council Tax Base 130k pressure

3.11 The Provisional Local Government Settlement is only for 1 year. For planning
purposes, the Council must take a medium-term view over three years. The
net Government funding of £468k is in line with previous years equivalent
grants. Therefore, for planning purposes an assumption has been made
that Grant levels will remain at the net level of £450k for the 2"¢ and 3
years of the 3-year plan. This will be adjusted once there is clarity on future
years Settlement details.

3.12 The Chancellors Statement also allowed Council to increase Council tax from
the present limit of 1.99% to 2.99%. This is worth an additional £69K to the
Council.

3.13 With the receipt of the final Triennial Pension Fund Valuation from the Actuary
there are addition savings, over and above the levels in Tranche 1. The
projected contributions over the next 3 years are £7,781m — which is £2,593k
a year. In Tranche 1 we reduced the base budget to £2,814k — this final
figure is an additional £221k savings.

3.14 We had estimated the impact of the pay award (see 3.9 above) in Tranche 1
to be £928k. The 2022/3 pay award was delivered to staff in December and
the actual impact on budgets was £200k lass than expected once all the
adjustments had been run through the payroll system.

3.15 We have spent significant time reviewing reserves (see Appendix A). This
review has resulted in the Council being able to set up an Earmarked Reserve
for Utilities Pressures. Our overall assumption still remains, that utilities costs
could increase by up to 200%. However, half that increase should it happen,
will be funded from this earmarked reserve for the next three years leading to
a reduction in base budget of £570k a year over the next three years. Should
increases be less than this figure this reserve can be released back to the
General Fund.



Page 66
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 6.3

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

7" February 2023

3.16 We have now reviewed base budget across the combined areas of Business
Rates, Investment Income, and Investment Payments (This includes the HRA
contribution) is a net benefit of £466k as per the table below.

23/4 Base | Combined | Re—-Based | Combined
Budget Totals Budgets Totals
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment Income (1,035) (870)
Investment Payments 448 (587) 448 (422)
Business Rates Income (14,565) (14,601)
Business Rates Tariff 11,883 12,318
Payment
S31 Grant (784) (2,595)
Business Rates Levy 481 (2,985) 520
Payment (net)
Business Rates Deficit 1,881
(based on 22/3)
CARF Grant (728)
Tax Income Guarantee (411) (3,616)
Grant
Total (3,572) (4,038)

These are draft figures based on NNDR3 forms and government grants. The
overall £466k (£4,038 - £3,572) credit is proposed to be split:
e 2023/24
o £466k to support the budget
o £200k additional funding to support the General Fund
Reserve from the Business Rates Reserve.
e 2024/5 and 2025/6
o £250Kk to support the budget

o A notional £216k to support General Fund Reserves in

both years — we will leave this as 0 at present in the

Reserves Statement for prudence as reliefs might change
in future years and this gives some scope

3.17 This has the impact of reducing the funding gap identified in Tranche 1 from a
£1,739m deficit to a £0.255m surplus. However, this is before additional
pressures as set in the following section.

Tranche 2 Pressures

3.18 There are also other pressures that have now been quantified. We do know
that there are changes in Government legislation which have yet to be
received. Key items include:




Page 67 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

e The future waste operating model. Further consultation is just about to
start for implementation in 2025, this will include transitional
arrangements and funding.

e Climate Change — The Council is forecasting a possible £130k
increase in costs for the new HVO fuel to be used by the fleet. Thisis
under review (a 100% increase in costs) with alternate providers being
assessed as well as reduced conversion. This has not yet been
included in the budget and if it becomes an additional cost will be taken
from the Utilities Reserve.

e Review of the Councils Leisure contract/future Operating Model

3.19 Other service-based pressures identified for inclusion in the Tranche 2.
Include

e Refurbishment of the fleet, which extends live for 5 years and lets the
Council buy new vehicles in 2028 when supply of such vehicles will be
more stable. Refurbishment costs circa £70k, a new diesel vehicle is
£200k, and electric Vehicle is £400k

e A fund for apprentices across the Council which assumes 5 positions at
a base rate 20K a position in order for the Council to take advantage of
apprenticeship levies and “grow” our own staff. The overall amount of
circa £100k across both Councils

e We will need to fund a data analyst as we move forward with all the
work on automation, robotics, etc, to take the Council forward. The
costs are £50K spread across both Councils. This will indirectly lead to
further savings as these processes/changes are embedded in future
years budgets.

e Planning Enforcement — the use of WRS to speed up this process has
additional cost implications across both Councils. An initial figure of
£50k (which is spend to date) is added split across both Councils.

e The increased costs of Worcestershire Regulatory Services due to the
pay award and other inflationary increases.

e Bringing employee budgets up to the full 2% level for pay awards in
2023/4 and 2024/5.

e The Council Tax Collection Fund is projected to under-recover by
£1,589k. The Council portion of this is 13% which is £190k — this
would be a one-off issue for 2023/24.

3.20 The Local Government Provisional Settlement Updates along with the
additional revenues and pressures set out in this section result in a resultant
gap for the Council of £0.311m which is set out in the following table. This
reduces to an £63k surplus position over the three-year MTFP period.



Page 63 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

202324 2024025] 2025026
" f000 [ E000 | E000

Base Budget Position 22123 MTFP

Expenditure 10,290 10,428 10,661
Funding -5,341 -3,535 -3.621
Met 949 833 1,040
Revised Gap 949 B33 1,040
Pressures
A0% Funding for Climate Change Officer 30 30 30
Savings Options
Environmental Services Partnership 1 -26 -50
Service Reviews -140 Rexil] -405
Flowe bo Al Ok Elections a a -170
Towen Hall 1 1 400
Finance Wacancies -1an -100 -100
MRF -100 -100 -100
Fension Fund =580 530 =580
Engage Capacity Grid [Cine CFF] =300 =300 1]
103 Increase in Fees and Charges =324 =340 -4
Council Tax Increase a 104 -104
Total Sauinﬂs -1,5249 -1.849 =222
Revised Position -580 -1,016 -1.181
Pressures
Fay Pressure Year 1 928 328 328
Fay Pressure Future Years [134] 0 0 17
Tranzport Pressure oy 21 by
Contracts Pressures 230 235 240
Core Pressures 1,173 1,184 1,306
Updated Position 599 168 125
Uiltie= Inflation 1,140 1,140 1,140
Tranche 1 Final Draft Position 1.739 1,308 1.265

Draft Local Government Financial Settlement

lew Homes Bonus -1

Services Grank -2E

Funding Guarantee -443

C Tax Base Reduction 120

Buzine=ss Ratesfinvestment Inc Rebazeline -4EE -280 -250

Future Years Settlements - assumption -450 -450
Settlement Oraft Amounts =934 =700 =700

1% miore on Councils Tax -63 -63 -E4

Conwersion of 50 of Utilities to a Reserve -5T0 570 -Br0

Correction of Salary £1,925 amount -200 -200 -200

Additional Pensions Savings 234 -2 22
Revised DeFicit -Zh5 -452 -495

Mew Pressures [KnownlOngoing]

Fleet Refurbishment 129 268 2548
Apprenticeship Schemes A0 a0 A0
Data Analys=t 25 2h 25 1
Flanning Enforcement 25 25 25
WHS Increase 17 E1 T4
Under Recowery of 22(23 Council Tax 130
Increased pay award - o0 22 100 100 1]
Total 566 519 432

Revised Draft Position 31 &7 -63




Page 69 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

Impact on Reserves

3.20 The Council’s position in respect of reserves is attached in Appendix A. As
part of the Tranche 2 budget a thorough review of Reserves has taken place.

Earmarked Reserves

3.21 The Council entered 2022/23 with almost £10.5m in Earmarked Reserves. It
should be noted that the Council has not yet fully closed the 2021/22
Accounts however data is taken on reserve levels as per the Period 11
Monitoring Statement for the year which assumes a £136k underspend for the
year. The key reserves going into this financial year are:

e The Business Rates Retention Scheme Reserve held for Business
Rates appeals/non collection. This stands at £2.82m.

e The Planning Services Reserve which strands at £0.516m.

e The General C-19 Reserves (funded from Grant Payments) which
stands at £941k.

e The Housing Support Reserve (mostly grant funding) - £0.978k.

e The C-19 Collection Fund Reserve which stands at £2.955m. This will
reduce to O over the next two years as it was grant funding for Council
to smooth the effects of the Tax collection levels in the 20/21 financial
year due to pandemic reducing collection rates in 2020/21.

3.22 The Corporate Management Team reviewed Earmarked Reserves at the
assurance meeting on the 215t December. At this meeting, as highlighted in
an individual column in Appendix A.
e £1.710m has been able to be reallocated to a Utilities Reserve and
£1.508m transferred to the General Fund.
e The majority of funding to support these changes came from the C-19
Reserve (£0.941m) and the Business Rates Retention Reserve
(£1.500m).
e Itis assumed that the Utilities Reserve will reduce to 0 over the MTFP
period.

General Fund

3.23 The General Fund assumes the following support over the three years of the

MTES of:

e £0.311m for 2023/4

e £0.067m for 2024/5

e £0.063m surplus for 2025/6
This is after transferring balances of £1.584m as part of the reallocation of
Reserves. In addition, as per the re-baselining of Business Rates and
Investment codes £200k will be added to the General Fund line in 2023/24.



Page 70 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

3.24 The significant issue for the General Fund is the impact of the 2022/23
overspend position. Following Q2 monitoring and taking into account the Pay
award and existing support in last year's MTFP, there is a call of £1.424m on
the General Fund. Management actions are in place to try and partially
mitigate this but a significant portion of the difference is due to the Pay Award.

3.25 The Impact of all these factors is that at the end of the MTFP period, the 315
March 2026, General Fund Reserve levels are projected to have increase to
£2,114m.

3.26 The benchmark minimum level for General Fund Reserves is 5% of net
expenditure. 5% of the Councils net expenditure (ignoring Housing Benefit
which is passported to Clients, and the HRA which is ringfenced) is circa
£25m — for which 5% is £1.25m. However

e As 2022/23 has shown, this level of reserves would not cover the level
of overspend being reported for this financial year.

e General fund reserves are all the Council has to fund transformation
initiatives, redundancy and any service overspends.

3.27 ltis prudent therefore to plan to build a level of General Fund Reserves which
are 5% of Gross Expenditure less just Housing Benefits - £45m. This would
mean General Fund Reserves should be at a level of at least £2.25. The
projected reserve level is at this amount although it would be prudent to
continue to rebuild reserves in order to fund additional service initiatives in the
future.

Strategic Approach

3.28 The Council has come into the 2023/24 budget process with a number of
conflicting issues. These included:

e An ongoing budget deficit position from the 2022/23 MTFS of £1.0m
which has now been resolved.

e Significant inflationary increase due to the “cost of living” crisis.

e Limited reserves to call on to reduce any deficit, which is still the case
due to inflationary pressures. Earmarked reserves stand at just under
£11.5m and General Fund Reserves at £1.9m

e Increases in Council Tax are limited at 2.99% or £5, which is
significantly lower than the present rates of inflation.

3.29 The Council must move to financial sustainability as soon as is practically
possible due to the present inherent risks. The strategy must be to move the
Council to financial sustainability by the 2024/25 financial year. To get to this
position there will be the need for investment and possibly the requirement to
fund redundancy (both from reserves). Both these requirements will be
outputs from the Council having to implement changes to the way it operates
to continue to become a viable entity going forward and this will take 18
months to implement fully.



Page 71 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

3.30 As set out later in the Robustness Statement assumptions have been made
based on the best information held now. Issues the Council is facing are not
unique, they are being faced by almost all Councils. However, the Council
must continue to build reserves to fund transformational changes, and to do
this it must continue to drive down its expenditure. This includes:

e Ensuring Grants are maximised.

e Ensuring Agency work reflects the income provided for its delivery.

e Minimisation of Bed and Breakfast Temporary Accommodation costs
e Reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s largest Contracts.

Maximising the effectiveness of our refuse fleet

Reviewing the location and effectiveness of our Depot

Assessing the Council’s leisure and cultural strategy in terms of

affordability

e Reviewing recharging mechanisms between the Councils for

appropriateness

e Rationalisation of Back Office services as we embrace technology.

3.31 Cost and calls for the Council’s services will continue to rise unless managed
correctly. This includes, in addition to those highlighted in 3.18 above, the
following issues being tackled:

e Rationalisation of our asset estate, especially given energy efficiency
requirements by 2026.

e Replacement of a highlight skilled by relatively old (49) workforce.

e Implementation of a new operating model, required through the rollout
of new digital solutions to our customers

e Redevelopment of our Depots

e Resources required to deliver Damp/Mildew inspections — both HRA
and Private Rented Sector

e Redundancy payments — if we restructure the workforce — also cost of
voluntary redundancies.

e The impact on Services if inflation continues above the 2% level

3.32 Many of these initiatives will require investment, for which the only present
source of funding is reserves (General Fund and Earmarked Reserves). Key
areas of investment will be:

e Documentation of Processes.
e Investment in automation and robotic processes.
e Possible redundancy — through restructures.



Page 72 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

Capital Programme
3.33 In Tranche 1 the existing Capital Programme was split into Schemes that
have started and those where no expenditure had happened to date. This
final report follows a full review of all schemes on the Capital Programme by
CMT in January.
3.34 The following table sets out the Capital Programme schemes that are
approved for the MTFP time horizon. Many of these schemes are already in
partial delivery in the 2022/23 financial year. By approving this list, as per
Recommendation 4, the Council are also agreeing for sums not spent in
2022/23 (and 2021/22 by default if schemes originated earlier than 2022/23
as sums have been carried forward through last year’s final MTFS Report into
2021/22) to be carried forward into 2023/4. The table also splits amounts by
funding Source, Council or third party.

Financial Year

Total Budget
£000

Council Funded
£000

External Funded
£000

2021/22

5,671

2,243

3,428

2022/23

5,431

2,033

3,398

2023/24

12,651

2,015

10,636

2024/25

16,185

5,255

10,930

2025/26

4,863

1,915

2,948

3.35 External Funding is made up of a number of Sources. The Council has large

schemes. This includes:

e The three Towns Fund schemes — Innovation Centre, Public Square, and
Public Realm which are funded via £15.2m of Government Funding, an
application will need to be made to Birmingham and Black County LEP
once Innovation Centre plans are more detailed for a further funding of
£1.9m, and the Council is funding £0.4m of works.

e The refurbishment of the Town Hall for £5.2m. This is being funded via
Capital Receipts.

e UK Share Prosperity Schemes totalling £2.5m.

3.36 The following changes have been made to the Capital Programme:

e The Regeneration Fund, which amounted to over £6m, has been applied
to the £0.4m of Towns Funding. As we now how Towns Fund and UKSPF
funding from the Government, the remainder of this budget is now no
longer required.

e The Vehicles Replacement fund has been updated, with many Waste
Collection vehicles now being refurbished instead of new purchases being
made as Council still await the publishing of the Governments Green
Paper.



Page 73 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

e New rolling programmes have been created to ensure that key council
assets/intervention are maintained. These include:
o £250k for a planned building maintenance programme.
£150k for a planned car park maintenance programme.
£75k for a planned footpath maintenance programme.
£100k for a planned wheelie bin programme.
£65k for ongoing support for Home Repair Grants/Assistance.

o O O O

3.37 The full list of schemes, including 21 funded via S106 receipts, are set out in
Appendix B. The Capital Programme links to the Asset Strategy, Treasury
Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Asset
Investment Strategy.

Housing Revenue Account

3.38 A 30 Year Housing Revenue Account Plan will come to Executive on the 27"
February for approval. The HRA Rents were set at Executive on the 10%
January where a 7% increase in rents will be made over the next 2 years.
This report built on the viability of the HRA report which was reviewed by the
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on the 27" October 2022 where
an assurance was given to Committee based on a 5% Rent increase. The
additional income from the 7% rent increases will be fed into specific
initiatives to improve the quality of our social housing including works around
Mould which have recently been in the national news.

Robustness Statement

3.39 The opinion of the Interim Director of Finance is that the 2023/24 budget
estimates contain considerable risk due to the level of uncertainty in the
Council’s operating environment, making it problematic to develop meaningful
assumptions.

3.40 The revenue budget and capital programme have been formulated having
regard to several factors including:

Funding Available.

Inflation.

Risks and Uncertainties.

Priorities.

Service Pressures.

Commercial Opportunities.

Operating in a Post C-19 environment.

3.41 The MTFP highlights that the 1-year Local Government Financial Settlement
announced on the 19" December was to continue at the present levels then
the Council starts to move towards financial viability over the three year plan.



Page 74 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

This is a substantial improvement on the previous years budget where £2.1m
of reserves were needed to balance the budget over the three financial years.

3.42 However, a more immediate problem for the Council is the level of General
Fund Reserves at the end of the 3 years MTFP period as at 15t April 2026.
The Council needs to find a way to start to build back the General Fund
Reserve which are below the level of 5% of gross spending, which is the best
practice benchmark. As per the Reserves section above, it is the Opinion of
the Interim Director of Finance that the Council needs to do more than this
and move to a “safe” level which is closer to 8% as set out in the Reserves
Section above.

3.43 There are also still significant risks for the Council to manage:

e The Council has not yet closed its 2021/22 accounts. It is using the Period
11 Monitoring Report estimated outturn of £136k. This still needs tom be
validated.

e The 2022/23 monitoring is showing an overspend position of £1.424m.
This needs to be managed down as it removes half the present General
Fund balances.

e That an estimate on future Government settlements has been made for
2024/5 and 2025/6 based on historic data.

e The Council has a significant portion of its tax base in the bottom three
Council Tax bands and therefore Council Tax revenues are lower than the
“average” Council. However, because of this there is a higher requirement
for Council services as there are a higher proportion of lower income
households. The Council would like to understand if there are options for
address this imbalance between funding and service requirements as it
has become far more acute with the present cost of living crisis.

e The core risks of implementation of any MTFP:

o All savings proposals have passed the S151 Officers tests for
robustness and delivery.

o Implementation of savings to time and budget — we now move
through to the implementation processes which needs to be
documented to ensure all items are within timescales and variances
are reported and mitigated through the correct governance
processes — to minimise risk.

e Loss of key personnel, with the average age of staff being 49. Mitigation
plans will need to be drawn up. There is an acute recruitment issue
across Gloucestershire and succession planning is a necessity for key
roles.

e The time limited nature of the large Town Fund and UK Shared Prosperity
Funds. If programmes are not delivered within the Government Specified
timescales, then the Council is liable for ongoing delivery expenditure.

e Business Rate Income — especially with the 15t April 2023 revaluations that
are being undertaken, actual income received will vary depending on
actual Business Rates growth, and levels of appeals. As highlighted in the



Page 75 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

Collection Fund section, there is also an issue with collection this year
being under target which is an impact of the “cost of living” crisis.

e The ongoing impact of inflation, especially around utilities. We have
allowed for 200% increases and prices are now reducing, however this is
still a substantial risk especially with the Council having “Corporate
Buildings” including leisure buildings for the delivery of services directly to
the public.

e Possible change of corporate direction/priorities following the elections in
May.

3.44 In line with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, this report of the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) sets out the robustness of estimates included in
the budget and the adequacy of the Council’s reserves.

The Chief Financial Officer’s opinion is that the estimates are robust.

3.45 Relevant budget holders are responsible for individual budgets and their
preparation. All estimates are then scrutinised by Financial Services staff and
the Corporate Management Team prior to submission to Members.

3.46 The two tranche 2023-4 budget process has ensured that all budget
assumptions have been reviewed and reconsidered by Officers, and then
Members, through the Finance and Budget Scrutiny Working Group, Cabinet
and Council.

3.47 However, as per the strategy section, the Council needs to move to a fully
sustainable budget, with no support from reserves, by the 2024/5 financial
year.

Adequacy of Reserves

3.48 Budget and MFTP proposals forecast the level of General Fund balances
at £2.1m as at 315t March 2026 which is just below the minimum set level of
£2.3m as set out in the Reserves section.

3.49 Taking account of the above, it is still vital that the strategy to move to a fully
sustainable budget by the 2024/5 financial year is sustained, as the level of
risk within the budget and the level of General Fund Reserves, although at the
level the Chief Finance Officer judges to be an appropriate level £2.3m sitill
needs to be built up in order to fund business change initiatives.

3.50 Further work will be undertaken to ensure that expenditure levels are
sustainable and matched by income over the medium to long term. Plans are
therefore in place to continue to review budgets and identify and accelerate
further savings opportunities.



Page 76 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

Collection Fund and Precepts

3.51 The Council Tax collection fund is anticipated to be in deficit based on
December data by £1.589m, which will be distributed amongst the major
preceptors using the prescribed formulae. The Council’s share of the surplus
payable as a one-off sum in the following financial year 13% of the total which
amounts to £190k.

3.52 The precepts from Worcestershire County Council, Hereford and Worcester
Fire Authority and the West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner are due
to set their precepts in the week commencing 8+ February. This will enable the
Council to set the Council Tax on 22" February 2023. The precepting bodies
Council Tax requirements will be included in the formal resolutions which will
be presented to Council on 22" February.

3.53 Business Rates collection data as at December 2022 is projected to be
£1.797m below target.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

4.1  Financial implications are set out in section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 A number of statutes governing the provision of services covered by this
report contain express powers or duties to charge for services. Where an
express power to charge does not exist the Council has the power under
Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 to charge where the activity is
incidental or conducive to or calculated to facilitate the Council’s statutory
function.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that income targets are achieved in
2023/24.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  The implementation of the revised fees and charges as set out in Tranche 1,
will be notified in advance to the customer to ensure that all users are aware
of the new charges and any concessions available to them.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT




Page 77 Agenda Item 6.3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 7™ February 2023

5.1

There is a risk that if fees and charges are increased that income levels will
not be achieved, and the cost of services will increase. This is mitigated by
managers reviewing their fees and charges annually. The ongoing risks are
set out in the Robustness Statement section.

APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix A — Reserves Statement

Appendix B — Detailed Capital Programme

Appendix C — Asset, Treasury Management and Investment Strategies
Background Papers

MTFP Update — Executive 10" January, 2023

Tranche 1 MTFP — Executive 25t October 2022

MTFP 2022/23 — Approved February 2022

KEY

None



Agenda Item 6.3

Page 78
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

February 2023

7th

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Appendix A - Reserves Statement

[82¢1)

[punf uonaaja]) gl-piac)

sabilEL] e 5994 S35 | k0]

[lp£LT] gl-pie)

B lasa Sany

alloau| uoelauabay

BN

Y E N EE

SAIIH JBULE

Bl it |

JusLudajaaq] siads

fj[igou) doys - suaieuad Jigngd

SEaIMES FUILLE |

330eds LadD) ) syie4

SUDISEIT ANl

eV

afieUie)] pue]

Zabiey] pueq

Joddng Buisnoy

WOl L)L) Jyaueg Buisnoy

anlazal fEI] [EIRUAY

SE0IAIES, [FIILELI

Juawwae das uatudink 3

ETERE]

9P [BLELLIOIALT

SEOIAES IR

LjialE) 210U

SEIIARG IO

S80IARG pdndiny

3RS, AU

JuaLIdojaAa AU,

WsleREWIeT oy poddng

BB LD SAEY SsauiEng

S|Le I ey SEALEng

'$3A1953Y PAYIEWLIE] pUn{ [E1AUAT)

/gl [rz¢1)

SZENE 1B
aauefeqg

GZIEAE 18
aauefeg

FEEAE 18
aduefeq

£ZEAL 1@

QeI e
ey SOCL  EUCIE

aauejeg

1ZEAL 1B

9215207 saueeg

2150z G220 GewZ0c VEECOZ  F#EEI0E E2i0z (A T ITAR Y FId

no ul o ul no

aulaseq
S1ajsuel] Slajsuel) -3y

no ] no uj

slajsuel| slajsuel| S1ajsuel] SIajsuel] slajsuel] Slajsuel) slajsuel| Slajsuel)

pUIn4 [elauat)




Agenda Iltem 6.3

Page 79
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

7" February 2023

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Appendix B — Capital Programme

0 0 0 0 0 syllanal 10 Uecioo MoIpoapy
0 0 ] 0 0 000 ] |endea/Euimolog SRS [BUBIUOIALT -sialolg (endey Ayie307 £2000
0 0 0 0 H1o'e syllanal EEITEN EENIIEY]
0 0 ] LT 0 000se | 419 [1eudea/Euimonog 2IN5127% UoneaUaday ‘Suluue)g 5530150 Je SWaW=n0/dw TZ000T
i 0 0 0 e feyd soiunl pue J31ppoy
LS IE 104 ealy Ae)g- Aajueg
0 0 0 0 0 000e | czg'ee 9015 251217 uonesauaday ‘fuiuue|g OO} 03 Jawanadw] {10007
i 0 0 0 £89'c7 SAINIG 2eds uadp Aajueis
0 0 0 0 0 ot | cee'ez 9015 251217 uonesauaday ‘fuiuue|g OO} 03 JawaAaldw] 970007
i 0 0 0 i SIS awwesdoid
0 0 ] 1] 0 ] ] ors|  2unsia g uonesauaiay Buluuely uaw=ne|day RIBWEY S1000T
0 0 0| o000y 0000 {2utpuny ) 220 s3on oy
1] 1] 0 0 0000y | 000 | ooo‘ooy fuImolig 5311035 |EILBWUOIAL] | W35 Buryied panaudu] #7007
] ] 0 000 TS ] ] 0 07T | 000 | 007 | TS fuinoLag SANES SIS B A0URLY  TZ/020 S01S305Y 49 600007
] ] 0 T SELES ] ] 0 0 000011 | ooeT | 9ELES fuimouog|  SaDIAIZS 49 EUISNOH FAUUNWWO) 77T CslIisul Aousiaipg 3 ARIUT B0000T
0 DO0%ER OOU%ER  0O'GER L%§TEGT 0 0068 D00%ER | D089 | OOO'%GER | 000'RL | L387%6T WeidgqQf  SAIAEg 49 Auisnoy gAUUNLWO)  7Zfi7  URI9 Sani| D4 palges] 000
ooeowe e 00 0SS | s | o 0 Suowog spediony e
O00T | ODOSE | O0OQST | OO0 | 0002 00005 000ST 000G | O0OUT | D' 0 i fuinolig 521135 | BRI SUeUiep Kied Je) 700001
T 32UBI] I INUIUL) 0} P33y Sy
0 GOTTEST  WETL03  DOOTOT ] B0TTEST  FETL09 00002 Sulpungiuen | ainsia1g uoneluasay ‘Suiuueld 30 03] Japuleway -
0 [ 0 [T 0 1151 suipunjwen | 3Insi3)g uoneuagay ‘suiuel W33 anuanay -
0 0 0 005501 0 005301 Supunyuems | ainsia) g uonelauaiay Buiuuely Ju33)3 [ende) -
puny Aaiiadsol paieysyn
0 0DGT | 00D0DE | 00000Y | O Suimouog
Wiz] voys s
0000087 000'000° 00000% pue sdiaaay de) [saonag fuadosg pue Jnenowag ‘|esa] 13idojatapay ||BH umMoL -807001
i 000'seh [ [ i 05y Suimouog 2In51317 uonelauaday ‘Suiuuel4 W23y 21gng -
0 | 0000007 | 000T0ST 000DOS | O 0000007 0000057 000005 weig o9 ains|31 g uonesauagay Auluueld Wieayang -
0 | 00000LT | 0OTOOT OODDDS | O D0000T 000000 000005 ueIg o9 2ns|3] g uone/aUzsay Auluueld heign-
WossT 0 0 0 0 " e
00086 T ek 47 nsia] 7§ uonelauaday Buuueyy 21U LoneroLY | -
0000007 | 000000 | 0OO00ST  000DOS | O 0000007 000000 00000ST 000005 1URIg 10D ains|31 g uonesauagay Auluueld AU uDneraul| -
pun; sumaj
sawalpg ke
3 3 i 3 i
3 ¥ 3 ¥ 3 3 ¥ ¥ |20 |20 ol | Frjores | oL ¥ ew0] 21ep 123png
g ekt we  wuoiam ww ok we wm Fouh sl S ko |medsefr| ol [weiszzz| Waledag paRouddy uonduasag foig de)
huegpig  huegpic  Aueqpic  Auegpis Aueqpig T A 1 v O 11 11 1)




7" February 2023

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Page 80
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

90409

00572

05'54T

0007¢
000t

0001

00005

000’

0
£07'58E

000t
000

0

00001 | 000001

0

00000 Q00'BE'E  000'ERR
000 00008

Y
'

00LE

6052

000t
00251

s
LT

00’

000'SIE
kel

0T

000001

[lifiizd

000001

000052

0 0
00ty | 00y
w'w

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

00RO QOU'BHE'E
0 0
0 0

0
000ty

w'e

il

000001

00’4y
0008

00005
0

000'TEY

e

000'6L

00s'eL

000

00'e

00091
0007y

00091
00002

000 G

0
000ty

e

0575

10058

000'0E
0000%F

00005
0

0
000'zE
000'TE-

0009

0006

T

000

0006y

000’78
00061

00058

0006t

000
0005

000937
D00'SEL

0001

90909
'L
S1o'E

00572

D85'%T
43
000ty
0L 0E
000'st
00005
£051
00001T

00C'L8T

LS

LR 30)

000’

000
000'5TE
e

0

S0y'5Es

|exdeafFu

|exdeafFu

5018

Wiz] fu

Suimaliog

5015

5015

aWodu| ey

Suimaliog

5015

aloau| w21

sidiaal
Mol
2l

sud

|eaided/Fuimasog

sidiaal

Masog

Suimouog

Suimouog

5015

SUoIIRGLIVE)
[ 46173 Buimouog

fu

Masog

fu

Masog

sidianay [eudey

5015

mredimam

S35
2Ins131 79 UolelaUagay ‘uiuue|g

5221025 49 BUISNOH § ANunWWe)

5321025 49 BUISROH B ANURWWE)

S3UNRS
2Ins13179 UonelaUagay ‘uuue|g

S3UNRS
2Ins13179 UonelaUagay ‘el

S3IIMZS 49 BUISNOH 7 ANUNWWEY
SIS
2IN5137%9 UonelzUzEay ‘Suiuue)4

S33IMZS 49 BUISNOH 7 ANUNWWEY
20105 Auadolg pue aiennowag ‘o8

531

3§ |BIUWUDIIAUI
SIS
3Ins131 9 uonesauatay Suiuue)g

531

135|203

5321035 49 BUISnoH g Alunwwo)

SIS |EIUAWUGIIAL

SAINRS
2Ins1317 UoneI3UaEaY ‘uiuue|g

SIS
1elauakay Buluue)g

2Ins1219 U0

S30INZS JWOSNY § 3UBUld
S5 JAW0ISM) P 3IUBULY

SIS
3In513] 7 UDNEJAUAEAY ‘Fuluuelg

ufu
)1

TZfoe
Tefoz0

Tzfoaoz
jed i

Tefozoe

Tefozoe
Tofozoe

may

ozfetaz
02/610E

dOnY 12 el duing
|euIii0 o1 Juawanosdw) 870001

20ueIsissy siieday aWoK £T000T

SIURIT OWH 1000
dAY PUE fHS dAY 12 saed
pue Buua) pajenosse
Ut Buthe) 33pay pue
UBIIRIOIS3) A S3UNSEAW
UoReERIN Mo3EPaH TT000T
A PuB Sy Ul siengey
puesseld Buloluow
pue Suneanal -5ainseal
UoIREIL N PURISSRID 070001
Aedigieq 11K piojiag 550001

A0 J3UR3IT 50001
4V
553008 el 12 Aeq SuIssed 750001
ENUEAEAIET] ()
s3ai Aoy uawanoiduw) $3000
KIJeg TL000T
JWawarosdwy
adeaspuel jende)
- shyafolg [ende) Aay1(e307 690001
Jeg 43| ug1s uowoly
3ININISRAU| PUR 312) 640007
Wa1shs Jaundwoy
M35 |BIUBWU0JIAT [4000T

531

a0lAIag (2B MAN 7000

352G U1g 3133UM E4000T
husa] Je sai)13ey J0opIng
01 SUaWsA0.dW! Yoddns

0}5U01Nq 1) Suods (00T
Yl h3) 2] MOy

UENOIYY 51130 € J0 [RAQWRY ££000T

13U 13UWa2 03y 13314 SE000T

SuIpIing 1ang 750001
3s1dI31u3 32UBU1 MY /70001
|e13uz9) swuawanoldw|

32edg uadp pue

vods eyg fajueig uonopy 970001

e inndiaa s A man




7" February 2023

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Page 81
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

58t

BLETE

A

B LT

0000t

7

0 0 0|0

0 0 0 00

0 0 | 000D | 000'ST

0005 | 0000ST | 000'T | 000

9T ST 00T 0T

gEly 0 A

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

ik

[lf

0

000051

005121

0

1l91

61576

£6R7s

B9 16T

0001

k)

00T

0005

00061

000’5

05752

19526

039

'S

9018

5018

5018

5018

9015,

9015,

Buimouog

BuImolag

Buimouog

Buimonag

Buimalog

Buimonag
sl

|endeafauitolog

Bl

23l

deo/3uiouog

S
213 Uoles3UaEaY ‘BuIuue)4

S
2513 Uoles3UaGay Buluue)4

SN
233 uolesauaday Suuue)4

SN
233 uolesauaday Suuue)4

SN
EET AT EIEITEE=REENIT-R
SN
EET AT EIEITEE=REENIT-R
S3INZ5

aInsla] 1§ uojesauaiay Buiuue)d

521035 |21

S3IAIZS [IUBILUOIIALI
Waldoanag [euoieisuedip
PUE UOLBWIOJSURI| S53UISNG
U3Wda|anag [euaieisueslp
PUE UOIBWI0SUE]| S53UISNG

Waldojanag [euoieisuedip
PUE UOIBWIOJSURI| SSUISN]

5301035 [BIUBLILOIN]

5210135 |13

NJLELO0/LT
‘pUnoJs 134 5500)
ssa|peay)peoy plauyg

71 18 Suawanaidl ey kejg 710011
“Heg |Iposg pue
ha(yrieg 18 sluawamoudw
(8781’53 504

S22 pue [R5L0'0g3) Aty Aelg TT00TT
TN/TTEfT0L punosd
184 550/) 5583|pe=H/ peoy
Pl21iyng e ﬂszmEaE
[27'55093) S04

ST/72 P (25 141'5z3)) Raty Aelg 0TOOTT
ESIEET N
PUE] TN4/69T/ET07 ‘S2Ulg

£7/77 SHods pu|u22I9 18 aNIN 60007
alp/inly
S7107/3T Sualatoidw|

Gt auenu3ka)ien MokY E000TT
SUWanodw 33edg uadg

E1/7r  Aas|apiog puz ||Ip 2Ei4 (00T
yed Anuna) A3[1ep

TT/TZ07 Mouy 01 peol 353028 U=PIp [6000T

[an4 135130 w1 dwo)
puUE M3 B LM 15 J0dag
g aeEssonapapmoy My

£2/77 henawa) auey yny) Aa|sd) 170011
g Ysalay doiden 07001

(ezz 2o umouy ekl
i Wawane|day Janag §100TT

afu a1epdn yiouta) 0351 §T00TT
Wa1shs Jaindwa)

dlirdrd WBZRUR} 13314 S0

Wawdinba
Bunouuow yuel Buipeiddn
pue sdwnd |3ny ¢ Suie|day <p000T




7" February 2023

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Page 82
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

000557 BOTORRDD 76796901 OTEUGETE TIESEET 0 GESYIRT DOSWTS SORYT0T GISGRNT GOCGRIT  GERTSR'Y GOVPRTOT GSTSOTT| OOTRET | 6790EHS D8589 0]
0 N 0 atelodio] 0 syloin
0 000021 0 fuiiaog jsaainag kuadoly pue Jjenowzg '|eia T uoneluawyedwoI AN 71007
0 0 0 0 me 0 0 me dumouog|  ansia) g uonelauaEay ARl TZ/0 SUBRL35 [2MIEI0 TS0
0 0 0 0 i (Buiznoy)
331 Kanng uaripue) adelen
0 0 000707 | [euiden/uiiauog SIS |EURWUDIALY -saloig (ende) by 07 180001
0 0 0 0 0 1333 Salals
0 0 0 deafauimonoq|  s30IwES 49 BuisnoH B AW 3UI31| paJimpiey 3peiadn 750001
0 % CENIES Sal1l[1284 53Ul
] 0 ([T 5| aunsia) g uoiekuaiay ey PUE )| 31 JUBLUIS3AY] 770007
0 S Y0 A3 =3 uowoyy
CENIIES Ul AINDAASELI 53431l
0 0 [sig'3 0| 2insia] g uoneisusEay ey suods ol Juaw=Aoldw) 070007
0 0 "SUaWan0uY) suodg
SN pue 32eds uadp el
0 0 0 0| 2insia] g uoneisusEay ey - Yleg Aunoy A=) 2 MLy T0000T
0 %t ‘sl Syodg
SN pue 32eds uadp el
(1113 0 Bz 0| 2insia] g uoneisusEay ey - Yleg Aunoy A=) 2 MLy T0000T
Bl 0 T
CENIIES “sz1ehuf) 12 SuawaRoUdwI
0 il 0 9s[  anslaguoneiEuRzy AulLUe)y am 50 PUe BIy A2l4 FT001T
meE 0 N4/8T0/TT =4 SPI=IME
1e sluawWanaldul (575'g3)
SENEG odg pue (357700713 2eds
0 m's 0 9s[  anslaguoneiEuRzy AulLUe)y 2/70 U2d0 TeE g5 vE3) 22ie Aeld £T001T




Page 83

CAPITAL STRATEGY REPORT 2023/24 REDDITCH

Introduction

This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to
the provision of local public services along with an overview of how
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial
sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style to enhance members’

Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have
financial consequences for the Authority for many years into the future. They
are therefore subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy

Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as
property or vehicles, that will be used for more than one year. In local
government this includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans

3.1
understanding of these sometimes technical areas.
3.2
framework, summarised in this report.
Capital Expenditure and Financing
3.3
and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy assets.
3.4

In 2023/24, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £10.6m for General
Fund projects, £37.8m for HRA work, and £23m for regeneration work, most of
which is related to Towns Fund grant. This is summarised below:

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £ millions

Agenda Iltem 6.3

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund services 3.5 6.8 3.0 5.7 1.9
Council housing (HRA) 7.3 14.2 12.6 12.6 12.6
Regeneration Schemes (inlc Towns Fund) 0.0 2.2 9.6 10.5 2.9
TOTAL 10.8 23.2 25.3 28.8 17.5

3.5

The Council is still to finalise work required for the adoption of IFRS16 linking
to the accounting for leases which must be implemented by the 2024/5
financial year.

The main General Fund capital projects include Towns Fund regeneration
schemes (innovation Centre, Town Square, and Public Realm) totalling £16m
to be spend by 2026, and UK Shared Prosperity Funding to be spent by 2025.
Following a change in the Prudential Code, the Authority no longer incurs
capital expenditure on investments]



3.6

3.7

3.8

Page 84

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures
that council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local
services. HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately.

Governance: Service managers bid annually to include projects in the
Authority’s capital programme. Bids are collated by corporate finance who
calculate the financing cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally
financed). The Executive appraises all bids based on a comparison of strategic
priorities against financing costs and makes recommendations to council.
These recommendations are scrutinised by the Budget Scrutiny Working
Group. The final capital programme is then presented to Executive and then
Council in February each year.

» For full details of the Authority’s capital programme, including the project
appraisals undertaken, see: 2023/24 MTFP Phase 2 — Executive 7th
February 2023.

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources
(government grants and other contributions), the Authority’s own resources
(revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private
Finance Initiative). The planned financing of the above expenditure is as
follows:

Table 2: Capital financing in £ millions

Agenda Iltem 6.3

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget budget
External sources 2.4 4.7 7.6 10.9 2.9
Capital Receipts 0.0 1.8 4.7 3.5 1.7
Revenue Resources 8.4 16.7 12.9 14.4 10.9
Debt 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9
TOTAL 10.8 23.2 25.3 28.8 17.5
The Council is still to finalise work required for the adoption of IFRS16 linking
to the accounting for leases which must be implemented by the 2024/5
financial year.
3.9 Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be

repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from
revenue which is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively,
proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used
to replace debt finance. Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows:

Table 3: Replacement Qf prior years’ debt finance in £ millions

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

actual forecast budget budget budget
Minimum Revenue Provision 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.2
Capital Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0




Page 85 Agenda Item 6.3

» The Authority’s minimum revenue provision statement is available as part
of these papers.

3.10 The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by
the capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed
capital expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace
debt. The CFR is expected to increase by £1m during 2023/24. Based on the
above figures for expenditure and financing, the Authority’s estimated CFR is
as follows:

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund 15.1 11.0 1.7 -1.2 6.3
HRA 122.2 122.2 122.2 122.2 122.2
Regeneration 0.0 2.2 9.6 10.5 2.9
TOTAL CFR 137.3 135.4 133.5 131.5 131.4

The Council is still to finalise work required for the adoption of IFRS16 linking
to the accounting for leases which must be implemented by the 2024/5
financial year.

3.11 Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term
use, the Authority has an asset management strategy in place: Individual
properties and associated land will be further evaluated to determine:

e The operational necessity and benefit.

e Projected costs of ensuring all elements of the buildings continue to meet
legislative requirements and performance standards.

e Planned and cyclical maintenance costs for elements nearing the end of
their ‘life’ expectancy, ensuring service provision is maintained without
unnecessary interruption. Costs associated with meeting future EPC
rating minimum requirements.

e Rent levels (and net costs for each building) and revised leases.

e Alternative or rationalised portfolio or joint enterprises for service
delivery

By evaluation of all factors cited above, informed decisions can be made to
determine which assets are:

e No longer cost effective to run, where outlay exceeds earning potential
¢ No longer viable for effective service delivery
e Surplus to requirements

Asset considerations will be presented to Executive on a half yearly basis, for
approval for disposal, unless there is an urgent requirement for a decision.



Page 86 Agenda Item 6.3

The Authority’s asset management strategy can be read here: Executive 25"
October 2022.

3.12 Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so
that the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to
repay debt. The Authority is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts
“flexibly” on service transformation projects until 2023/24 although none are
planned. Repayments of capital grants, loans and investments also generate
capital receipts. The Authority plans to receive £9.9m of capital receipts(%.1m
linked to right to buy receipts) in the coming financial year as follows:

Table 5: Capital receipts receivable in £ millions

- m—pem— -

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

actual forecast budget budget budget
Asset Sales 0.000 1.800 4.700 3.500 1.700
Loans etc Repaid 0 0 0 0 0

» Further details of planned asset disposals are on set out in the 3.11 above:

Treasury Management

3.13 Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive
cash available to meet the Authority’s spending needs, while managing the
risks involved. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash
will be met by borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the
bank current account. The Authority is typically cash rich in the short-term as
revenue income is received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as
capital expenditure is incurred before being financed. The revenue cash
surpluses are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

3.14 Due to decisions taken in the past, the Authority currently has £104m borrowing
at an average interest rate of 3.42 % and £35m treasury investments at an
average rate of 0.08%.

3.15 Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing are to
achieve a low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans
change in future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority
therefore seeks to strike a balance between cheaper short-term loans and long-
term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher.

3.16 The Authority does not borrow to invest for the primary purpose of financial
return and therefore retains full access to the Public Works Loans Board.

3.17 Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt (which comprises
borrowing, PFI liabilities, leases and transferred debt are shown below,
compared with the capital financing requirement (see above).



Page 87

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in

£ millions
31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026
actual forecast budget budget budget
Debt HRA 103.9 103.9 103.9 103.9 103.9
Debt General Fund (incl. PFI & leases) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Capital Financing Requirement 137.3 135.4 133.5 131.5 131.4

3.18 Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing
requirement, except in the short-term. As can be seen from table 6, the
Authority expects to comply with this in the medium term.

3.19 Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an
alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the
lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes that cash and investment balances
are kept to a minimum level of £0.2m at each year-end. This benchmark is
currently negative give the Council internal resources and will only turn positive

in 2025/26.

Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark in £ millions

31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023 | 31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026
actual forecast forecast forecast forecast
Outstanding borrowing - General Fund 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Liability benchmark -3.4 -2.5 -1.8 -2.9 -2.2

3.20 The table shows that the Authority expects to remain borrowed above its liability
benchmark. This is because cash outflows to date have been below the
assumptions made when the loans were borrowed.

3.21 Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an
affordable borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt)
each year and to keep it under review. In line with statutory guidance, a lower
“operational boundary” is also set as a warning level should debt approach the

limit.

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external
debtin £m

2021/22 2023/24

2022/23 2024/25 2025/26

limit limit limit limit limit

Authorised limit - borrowing 170 175 180 185 190
Authorised limit - PFl and leases 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Authorised limit - total external debt 171.5 176.5 181.5 186.5 186.5
Operal'!onal boundary - borrowing 160 165 170 175 180
Operational boundary - PFl and leases 1.5 1.5 15 15 15
gepstram“al boundary - total external 161.5 166.5 171.5 176.5 176.5




Page 88 Agenda Item 6.3

3.22 Treasury investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving
cash before it is paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or for
pure financial gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury
management.

3.23 The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and
liquidity over vyield, that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising
returns. Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for
example with the government, other local authorities or selected high-quality
banks, to minimise the risk of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms is
invested more widely, including in bonds, shares and property, to balance the
risk of loss against the risk of receiving returns below inflation. Both near-term
and longer-term investments may be held in pooled funds, where an external
fund manager makes decisions on which particular investments to buy and the

Authority may request its money back at short notice.

Table 9: Treasury management investments in £millions

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget budget
Near-term investments 34 35 30 20 20
Longer-term investments 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 34 35 30 20 20

3.24

3.25

» Further details on treasury investments are in Treasury Management
Strategy part of this appendix.

Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime
objectives of the Authority’s treasury management activities. The treasury
management strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to
constrain the risk of unexpected losses and details the extent to which financial
derivatives may be used to manage treasury risks.

» The treasury management prudential indicators are in the treasury
management strategy which are part of these appendices.

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing
are made daily and are therefore delegated to the Director of Finance and staff,
who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by
Council. Half Yearly reports on treasury management activity are presented to
Executive. The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee is responsible for
scrutinising treasury management decisions.



Page 89 Agenda Item 6.3

Investments for Service Purposes

3.26 The Authority can make investments to assist local public services, including
making loans to local service providers, local small businesses to promote
economic growth, the Authority’s subsidiaries that provide services. Total
investments for service purposes are currently valued at £0m

3.27 Risk management: In light of the public service objective, the Authority is
willing to take more risk than with treasury investments, however it still plans
for such investments to break even after all costs.. A limit of £2.5m is placed on
total investments for service purposes to ensure that plausible losses could be
absorbed in budgets or reserves without unmanageable detriment to local
services .

3.28 Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant
service manager in consultation with the Director of Finance and must meet the
criteria and limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares
are capital expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part
of the capital programme. The relevant service director is responsible for
ensuring that adequate due diligence is carried out before investment is made.

» Further details on service investments are in the Treasury Management
Strategy.

Commercial Activities

3.29 With central government financial support for local public services declining,
and the Change in PWLB regulations, the Council does not invest in
commercial property purely or mainly for financial gain. It has Towns Funding
of over £15m to deliver schemes over the next three years and an Office
Complex in Oak Tree Park within the Borough (due to shortage) but these are
both regeneration in nature.

3.30 Risk management: The Council will not make investments in commercial
property purely or mainly for financial gain in the future. It might for re-
generational purposes and if that is the case once regeneration have been
delivered the Authority will assesses the risk of loss before entering into
commercial agreements by using specialist advice to understand the market
and the potential future demands of the market and the customers in it. It will
also use benchmarking data from the market to determine future potential risks
which need to be planned for. External advice will be sought from credible
sources eg acknowledged experts in their fields, and officers ensure that they
fully understand any information given to them before decision or advice is
taken



Page 90 Agenda Item 6.3

In 2019 the Council did invest in property at Oak Tree Park Offices. The biggest
issue facing Redditch’s office market is the obsolesce of existing stock. By
investing in existing premises, the Council has control over the condition and
quality of its assets and therefore contributes to a supply of offices that are fit
for purpose and attractive to the end occupiers. Therefore although a return is
made this investment is for regenerative purposes

3.31 Governance: Decisions on commercial investments are made by Head of
Finance and Customer Services in line with the criteria and limits approved by
Council in the Investment strategy. Property and most other commercial
investments are also capital expenditure and purchases will therefore also be
approved as part of the capital programme. The Head of Finance and Customer
Services is responsible for ensuring that adequate due diligence is carried out
before investment is made.

Table 10: Prudential indicator: Net income from commercial and service

investments to net revenue stream

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
actual forecast budget budget budget

Total net income 0 0 0 0 0

Proportion of net Revenue Stream 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Liabilities

3.33 In addition to debt of £104m detailed above, the Authority is committed to
making future payments to cover its pension fund deficit (valued at £5.2m), It
has also set aside £0.5m to cover risks of Insurance Claims.

3.24 Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by
service managers in consultation with the Interim Director of Finance. The risk
of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee. New liabilities exceeding £0.5m are
reported to full council for approval/notification as appropriate.

Revenue Budget Implications

3.35 In addition to debt of £104m detailed above, the Authority is committed to
making future payments to cover its pension fund deficit (which is in a deficit
position of £5.179m as per the 2022 Triennial revaluation and the backlog will
be cleared in 2037). It has also set aside £3.2m for Business Rates Appeals via
areserve.



Page 91

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Table 11: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

2021/22

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25| 2025/26

forecast budget budget budget| budget
Financing costs (Em) 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.2
Proportion of net revenue stream 10.48% 10.48% 9.56% 9.09% 11.47%

The Council is still to finalise work required for the adoption of IFRS16 linking
to the accounting for leases which must be implemented by the 2024/5
financial year.

3.36 Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and
financing, the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next
few years will extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Director of Finance]
is satisfied that that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and
sustainable because of the current Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
forecasts which show that the Council is financially sustainable over that period.

Knowledge and Skills

3.37 The Authority employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior
positions with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and
investment decisions. For example, the Executive Director of Finance and Head
of Service are qualified accountant with significant experience. The Authority
pays for junior staff to study towards relevant professional qualifications
including CIPFA and AAT.

3.38 Where Authority staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is
made of external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The
Authority currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management
advisers, and Bruton Knowles as property consultants. This approach is more
cost effective than employing such staff directly, and ensures that the Authority
has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

» Further details on staff training can be found in the HR Employee
Development section of the website.



Page 92 Agenda Item 6.3

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2023/24

Introduction

3.1 Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows,
borrowing and investments, and the associated risks. The Authority has
borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to
financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of
changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control
of financial risk are therefore central to the Authority’s prudent financial
management.

3.2 Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework
of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA
Code) which requires the Authority to approve a treasury management strategy
before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal
obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA
Code.

3.3 Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered
in a different report, the Investment Strategy.

External Context

Economic background:

3.4 The ongoing impact on the UK from the war in Ukraine, together with higher
inflation, higher interest rates, uncertain government policy, and a deteriorating
economic outlook, will be major influences on the Authority’s treasury
management strategy for 2023/24.

3.5 The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate by 0.75% to 3.0% in
November 2022, the largest single rate hike since 1989 and the eighth
successive rise since December 2021. The decision was voted for by a 7-2
majority of the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC), with one of the two
dissenters voting for a 0.50% rise and the other for just a 0.25% rise.

3.6  The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) forecast a prolonged
but shallow recession in the UK with CPI inflation remaining elevated at over
10% in the near-term. While the projected peak of inflation is lower than in the
August report, due in part to the government’s support package for household
energy costs, inflation is expected remain higher for longer over the forecast
horizon and the economic outlook remains weak, with unemployment projected
to start rising.



Page 93 Agenda Item 6.3

3.7 The UK economy grew by 0.2% between April and June 2022, but the BoE
forecasts Gross Domestic Product (GDP) will decline 0.75% in the second half
of the calendar year due to the squeeze on household income from higher
energy costs and goods prices. Growth is then expected to continue to fall
throughout 2023 and the first half of 2024.

3.8 CPlinflation is expected to peak at around 11% in the last calendar quarter of
2022 and then fall sharply to 1.4%, below the 2% target, in two years’ time and
to 0% in three years’ time if Bank Rate follows the path implied by financial
markets with a peak of 5.25%. However the BoE has stated it considers this
path to be too high, suggesting that the peak in interest rates will be lower,
reducing the risk of inflation falling too far below target.

3.9  The labour market remains tight for now, with the most recent statistics showing
the unemployment rate fell to 3.5%, driven mostly by a shrinking labour force.
Earnings were up strongly in nominal terms by 6% for total pay and 5.4% for
regular pay but factoring in inflation means real total pay was -2.4% and regular
pay -2.9%. Looking forward, the MPR shows the labour market weakening in
response to the deteriorating outlook for growth, leading to the unemployment
rate rising to around 6.5% in 2025.

3.10 Interestrates have also been rising sharply in the US, with the Federal Reserve
increasing the range on its key interest rate by 0.75% in November 2022 to
3.75%-4.0%. This was the fourth successive 0.75% rise in a pace of tightening
that has seen rates increase from 0.25%-0.50% in March 2022. Annual inflation
has been slowing in the US but remains above 8%. GDP grew at an annualised
rate of 2.6% between July and September 2022, a better-than-expected rise,
but with official interest rates expected to rise even further in the coming
months, a recession in the region is widely expected at some point during 2023.

3.11 Inflation has been rising consistently in the Euro Zone since the start of the
year, hitting an annual rate of 10.7% in October 2022. Economic growth has
been weakening with an expansion of just 0.2% in the three months to
September 2022. As with the UK and US, the European Central Bank has been
on an interest rate tightening cycle, pushing up its three key interest rates by
0.75% in October, the third major increase in a row, taking its main refinancing
rate to 2% and deposit facility rate to 1.5%.

Credit outlook:

3.12 Credit default swap (CDS) prices have followed an upward trend throughout the
year, indicating higher credit risk. They have been boosted by the war in
Ukraine, increasing economic and political uncertainty and a weaker global and
UK outlook, but remain well below the levels seen at the beginning of the Covid-
19 pandemic.



Page 94 Agenda Item 6.3

3.13 CDS price volatility has been higher in 2022 compared to 2021 and this year
has seen a divergence in prices between ringfenced (retail) and non-ringfenced
(investment) banking entities once again.

3.14 The weakening economic picture during 2022 led the credit rating agencies to
reflect this in their assessment of the outlook for the UK sovereign as well as
several local authorities and financial institutions, revising them from to negative
from stable.

3.15 There are competing tensions in the banking sector which could impact bank
balance sheet strength going forward. The weakening economic outlook and
likely recessions in many regions increase the possibility of a deterioration in
the quality of banks’ assets, while higher interest rates provide a boost to net
income and profitability.

3.16 However, the institutions on our adviser Arlingclose’s counterparty list remain
well-capitalised and their counterparty advice on both recommended
institutions and maximum duration remain under constant review and will
continue to reflect economic conditions and the credit outlook.

Interest rate forecast (November 2022):

3.17 The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose forecasts that Bank
Rate will continue to rise in 2022 and 2023 as the Bank of England attempts to
subdue inflation which is significantly above its 2% target.

3.18 While interest rate expectations reduced during October and November 2022,
multiple interest rate rises are still expected over the forecast horizon despite
looming recession. Arlingclose expects Bank Rate to rise to 4.25% by June
2023 under its central case, with the risks in the near- and medium-term to the
upside should inflation not evolve as the Bank forecasts and remains
persistently higher.

3.19 Yields are expected to remain broadly at current levels over the medium-term,
with 5-, 10- and 20-year gilt yields expected to average around 3.6%, 3.7%,
and 3.9% respectively over the 3-year period to September 2025. The risks for
short, medium and longer-term yields are judged to be broadly balanced over
the forecast horizon. As ever, there will undoubtedly be short-term volatility due
to economic and political uncertainty and events.

3.20 A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is
in Appendix A.

3.21 For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury
investments will be made at an average rate of 2.00%, and that new long-term
loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 4.57% which is the PWLB rate for
40 year debt on the 16" January 2022.



Page 95 Agenda Item 6.3

Local Context

3.22 On 31st December 2022, the Authority held £103.9m of borrowing and £29m
of treasury investments. This is set out in further detail in this report. Forecast
changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1

below.

Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast

31.3.22 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26
Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast
£m £m Em Em Em

General Fund CFR 15.1 13.2 11.3 9.3 9.2
Investments CFR 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total CFR 15.1 13.2 11.3 9.3 9.2
Less: External borrowing ** 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Internal (over) berrowing 15.1 13.2 11.3 9.3 9.2
Less: Usable reserves -12.5 -9.7 -7.1 -6.2 -5.5
Less: Working capital -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2
::::x:g‘;wmme"t‘ (or New 3.6 2.7 2.0 3.1 2.4

* leases that form part of the Authority’s total debt

** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional

refinancing
3.23 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while balance sheet resources are the
underlying sums available for investment. The Authority’s current strategy is to
maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes
known as internal borrowing.

The Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but minimal
investments and will not need to borrow in the short term to finance its capital
programme until 2025/26.
3.24 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends
that the Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over
the next three years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with
this recommendation during 2023/24

3.25 Liability benchmark: To compare the Council’s actual borrowing against an
alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the
lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1
above, but that cash and investment balances are kept to a minimum level of
£0.2m at each year-end to maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise credit risk.
3.26 The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the
Council is likely to be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future,
and so shape its strategic focus and decision making. The liability benchmark
itself represents an estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing

the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans while



Page 96 Agenda Item 6.3

keeping treasury investments at the minimum level required to manage day-to-
day cash flow.

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Liability benchmark

31.3.21 31.3.22 31.3.23 31.3.24 31.3.25
Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast
£m £m Em £m Em
CFR 15.1 13.2 11.3 9.3 9.2
Less: Usable reserves -12.5 -9.7 -7.1 -6.2 -5.5
Less: Working capital -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2
Plus: Minimum investments 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Liability Benchmark -3.4 -2.5 -1.8 -2.9 -2.2

3.27 Following on from the medium-term forecasts in table 2 above, the long-term
liability benchmark assumes capital expenditure funded by internal resources.

Borrowing Strateqy

3.28 The Authority currently holds £104 million of loans, no change on the previous
year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The
balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that the Authority does not expect to
need to borrow in 2023/24. The Authority may also borrow additional sums to
pre-fund future years’ approved requirements, providing this does not exceed
the authorised limit for borrowing.

3.29 Objectives: The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike
an appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required.
The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans
change is a secondary objective.

3.30 Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to
local government funding, the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to
address the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term
stability of the debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower
than long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to
either use internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead.

3.31 By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite
foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of
internal and short-term] borrowing will be monitored regularly against the
potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years
when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will
assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output
may determine whether the Authority borrows additional sums at long-term
fixed rates in 2023/24 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if
this causes additional cost in the short-term.



Page 97 Agenda Item 6.3

3.32 The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from
the PWLB but will consider long-term loans from other sources including banks,
pensions and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing
bonds and similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-
reliance on one source of funding in line with the CIPFA Code. PWLB loans are
no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets
primarily for yield; the Authority intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its
access to PWLB loans.

3.33 Alternatively, the Authority may arrange forward starting loans, where the
interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This
would enable certainty of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry
in the intervening period.

3.34 In addition, the Authority may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash
flow shortages.

3.35 Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term
borrowing are:
 HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)
« any institution approved for investments (see below)
« any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK
« any other UK public sector body
» UK public and private sector pension funds (except Worcestershire Pension
Fund)
» capital market bond investors
« UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created
to enable local authority bond issues.

3.36 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by
the following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt
liabilities:

» leasing

« hire purchase

« Private Finance Initiative
» sale and leaseback

3.27 Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established
in 2014 by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It
issues bonds on the capital markets and lends the proceeds to local authorities.
This is a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons:
borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee
to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any
reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to
borrow and knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the
Agency will therefore be the subject of a separate report to [full Council].



Page 98 Agenda Item 6.3

3.29 Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Authority exposed
to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the
interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below.
Financial derivatives may be used to manage this interest rate risk (see section
below).

3.30 Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before
maturity and either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set
formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to
negotiate premature redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of
this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a
reduction in risk. The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable
debt rescheduling opportunities should arise than in previous years.

Treasury Investment Strategy

3.31 The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12
months, the Authority’s treasury investment balance has ranged between £20
and £40 million, and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the
forthcoming year.

3.21 Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its treasury funds
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments
before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective
when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and
return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of
receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to
be invested for more than one year, the Authority will aim to achieve a total
return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to
maintain the spending power of the sum invested. Redditch Borough Council
aims to be a responsible investor and will consider environmental, social and
governance (ESG) issues when investing.

3.33 Strategy: As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Authority
expects to be a funding borrowing from internal resources and new treasury
investments will therefore be made primarily to manage day-to-day cash flows
using short-term low risk instruments. The existing portfolio of strategic pooled
funds will be maintained to diversify risk into different sectors and boost
investment income.

3.34 The CIPFA Code does not permit local authorities to both borrow and invest
long-term for cash flow management. But the Authority may make long-term
investments for treasury risk management purposes, including to manage
interest rate risk by investing sums borrowed in advance for the capital



Page 99 Agenda Item 6.3

programme for up to three years; to manage inflation risk by investing usable

reserves in instruments whose value rises with inflation; and to manage price

risk by adding diversification to the strategic pooled fund portfolio.
3.35 ESG policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are
increasingly a factor in global investors’ decision making, but the framework for
evaluating investment opportunities is still developing and therefore the
Authority’s ESG policy does not currently include ESG scoring or other real-
time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in banks and
funds, the Authority will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles
for Responsible Banking and funds operated by managers that are signatories
to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers
Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.
3.36 Business models: Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain
investments depends on the Authority’s “business model” for managing them.
The Authority aims to achieve value from its treasury investments by a business
model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other
criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at
amortised cost.
3.37 Approved counterparties: The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any
of the counterparty types in table 3 below, subject to the limits shown.

Table 3: Treasury investment counterparties and limits

Credit Banks Banks Registered
. Government Corporates -
rating unsecured secured Providers
UK Govt n/a n/a £ Unlimited n/a n/a
50 years
AAA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 20 years 50 years 20 years 20 years
AA+ £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 10 years 25 years 10 years 10 years
AA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
4 years 5 years 15 years 5 years 10 years
AA- £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
3 years 4 years 10 years 4 years 10 years
£3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
A+
2 years 3 years 5 years 3 years 5 years
A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
13 months 2 years 5 years 2 years 5 years
A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
6 months 13 months 5 years 13 months 5 years
None £1.5m n/a £3m £1m £500k
6 months 25 years 5 years 5 years




Page 100 Agenda ltem 6.3

Pooled funds and real
estate investment £2.5m per fund or trust
trusts
3.38 * Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

asterisk will only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit
rating is no lower than A-. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the
specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty
credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made solely
based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice
will be taken into account.

For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either
(a) where external advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or
(b) to a maximum of £500,000 per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g.
via a peer-to-peer platform.

Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development
banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a
lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the
UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its ability to create
additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to
50 years.

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which
limits the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of
the security will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and
reverse repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt
from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the
collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher
of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used. The
combined secured and unsecured investments with any one counterparty will
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates
of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other
than multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the risk
of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing
or likely to fail. See below for arrangements relating to operational bank
accounts.

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or
guaranteed by, registered providers of social housing or registered social
landlords, formerly known as housing associations. These bodies are regulated
by the Regulator of Social Housing (in England), the Scottish Housing
Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for Communities (in



Page 101 Agenda ltem 6.3

Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of
receiving government support if needed.

3.44 Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity
and very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets.
They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification
of investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager
in return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to money market funds,
the Authority will take care to diversify its liquid investments over a variety of
providers to ensure access to cash at all times.

3.45 Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced
returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow
the Authority to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to
own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds have no
defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their
performance and continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment
objectives will be monitored regularly.

3.46 Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real
estate and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar
manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced
returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially as the share price
reflects changing demand for the shares as well as changes in the value of the
underlying properties.

3.47 Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed
above, for example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Non-bank
companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the Authority’s
investment at risk.

3.48 Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures,
for example though current accounts, collection accounts and merchant
acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and
with assets greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments but
are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept
below £2.0m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that in the event of
failure, banks with assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed-
in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Authority maintaining
operational continuity.

3.49 Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and
monitored by the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings
as they occur. The credit rating agencies in current use are listed in the
Treasury Management Practices document. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

« no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and



Page 102 Agenda ltem 6.3

« full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

3.50 Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for
possible downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below
the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the
next working day will be made with that organisation until the outcome of the
review is announced. This policy will not apply to negative outlooks, which
indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating.

3.51 Other information on the security of investments: The Authority
understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of
investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available
information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, including
credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential
government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and
advice from the Authority’s treasury management adviser. No investments will
be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit
quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria.

3.52 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in
credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these
circumstances, the Authority will restrict its investments to those organisations
of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to
maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in
line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that
insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to
invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the
UK Government, or with other local authorities. This will cause investment
returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested.

3.53 Investment limits: The Authority’s revenue reserves available to cover
investment losses are forecast to be £9.7 million on 31t March 2023 and £7.1
million on 315t March 2024. In order that no more than 45% of available reserves
will be put at risk in the case of a single default, the maximum that will be lent
to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £5.0 million. A
group of entities under the same ownership will be treated as a single
organisation for limit purposes.

3.54 Credit risk exposures arising from non-treasury investments, financial
derivatives and balances greater than £2m in operational bank accounts count
against the relevant investment limits.

3.55 Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee
accounts and foreign countries as below. Investments in pooled funds and
multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single
foreign country, since the risk is diversified over many countries.



Page 103

Table 4: Additional investment limits

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Cash limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central £5m each
Government
UK Central Government unlimited

Any group of organisations under the same
ownership

£5m per group

Any group of pooled funds under the same
management

£5m per manager

Negotiable instruments held in a broker's nominee
account

£5m per broker

Foreign countries

£5m per country

Registered providers and registered social

landlords £2.5m in total
Unsecured investments with building societies £2.5m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £1m in total

Money market funds £20m in total
Real estate investment trusts £2.5m in total

3.55 Liquidity management: The Authority uses detail spreadsheets to determine
the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast
is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced
to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on
long-term investments are set by reference to the Authority’s medium-term
financial plan and cash flow forecast.

3.56 The Authority will spread its liquid cash over at least four providers (e.g. bank

accounts and money market funds) to ensure that access to cash is maintained

in the event of operational difficulties at any one provider.

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators
3.57 The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators.

3.58 Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to
credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its
investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size
of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their

perceived risk.

Credit risk indicator Target




Page 104 Agenda Item 6.3

3.59 Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to
liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected
payments within a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing.

Liquidity risk indicator Target
Total cash available within 3 months £2.5m

3.61 Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s
exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact
of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Interest rate risk indicator Limit
ppper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in £500,000
interest rates

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in
interest rates

£500,000

3.62 The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that
maturing loans and investments will be replaced at new market rates.

3.63 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity
structure of borrowing will be:

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit
Under 12 months 50% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0%
10 years and above 50% 0%

The Council has not taken out debt financing for a number of years, therefore
all debt is presently over 10 years old. This revised ratio gives flexibility for new
debt that will possibly be required. Time periods start on the first day of each
financial year.

3.64 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

3.65 Long-term treasury management investments: The purpose of this indicator
is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long-term
treasury management investments will be:

No
Price risk indicator 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 fixed

date
lélr:glt on principal invested beyond year £15m c1m £0.5m £0m




Page 105 Agenda ltem 6.3

3.66 Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled
funds and real estate investment trusts but exclude money market funds and
bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are considered short-term.

Related Matters
3.67 The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury
management strategy.

3.68 Financial derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial
derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate
risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase
income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable
deposits). The general power of competence in section 1 of the Localism Act
2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone
financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or
investment).

3.69 The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps,
forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to.
Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties,
will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk. Embedded
derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting
transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present
will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

3.70 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that
meets the approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit
rating for derivative exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the
methodology in the Treasury Management Practices document will count
against the counterparty credit limit and the relevant foreign country limit.

3.71 In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will
consider that advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it
fully understands the implications.

3.72 Housing Revenue Account: On 15t April 2012, the Authority notionally split
each of its existing long-term loans into General Fund and HRA pools. In the
future, new long-term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety to one
pool or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-
term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/
credited to the respective revenue account. Differences between the value of
the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA
balance sheet resources available for investment) will result in a notional cash
balance which may be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each
month and interest transferred between the General Fund and HRA at the
Authority’s average interest rate on investments, adjusted for credit risk.



Page 106 Agenda ltem 6.3

3.73 External Funds: The Council does invest funds for its fully owned subsidiary
Rubicon.

3.74 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Authority has retained retail
client status with its providers of financial services, including advisers, banks,
brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a smaller range of services
but with the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small
companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury management
activities, the Director of Finance believes this to be the most appropriate
status.

Financial Implications

3.75 The budget for investment income in 2023/24 is £0.670 million, based on an
average investment portfolio of £30 million at an interest rate of 2.0%. The
budget for debt interest paid in 2023/24 is £0.448m million, based on an
average general fund debt portfolio of £12 million at an average interest rate of
3.42%. If actual levels of investments and borrowing, or actual interest rates,
differ from those forecast, performance against budget will be correspondingly
different

3.76 Where investment income exceeds budget, e.g. from higher risk investments
including pooled funds, or debt interest paid falls below budget, e.g. from cheap
short-term borrowing, then 50% of the revenue savings will be transferred to a
treasury management reserve to cover the risk of capital losses or higher

interest rates payable in future years.

Other Options Considered

3.77 The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management
strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Director of Finance, having consulted
the Executive Member for Finance and Enabling, believes that the above
strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk management and cost
effectiveness. Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk

management implications, are listed below.

Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk
management

Invest in a narrower range
of counterparties and/or
for shorter times

Interest income will be
lower

Lower chance of losses
from credit related
defaults, but any such
losses may be greater

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for
longer times

Interest income will be
higher

Increased risk of losses
from credit related
defaults, but any such
losses may be smaller

Borrow additional sums at
long-term fixed interest
rates

Debt interest costs will
rise; this is unlikely to be
offset by higher
investment income

Higher investment
balance leading to a
higher impact in the event
of a default; however




Page 107

Agenda Iltem 6.3

long-term interest costs
may be more certain

Borrow short-term or
variable loans instead of
long-term fixed rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly
offset by rising investment
income in the medium
term, but long-term costs
may be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment
balance leading to a lower
impact in the event of a
default; however long-
term interest costs may
be less certain




Page 108 Agenda ltem 6.3

Appendix A — Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast — November 2022

Underlying assumptions:

» UK interest rate expectations have eased following the mini-budget, with a growing
expectation that UK fiscal policy will now be tightened to restore investor
confidence, adding to the pressure on household finances. The peak for UK interest
rates will therefore be lower, although the path for interest rates and gilt yields
remain highly uncertain.

* Globally, economic growth is slowing as inflation and tighter monetary policy
depress activity. Inflation, however, continues to run hot, raising expectations that
policymakers, particularly in the US, will err on the side of caution, continue to
increase rates and tighten economies into recession.

» The new Chancellor dismantled the mini-budget, calming bond markets and broadly
removing the premium evident since the first Tory leadership election. Support for
retail energy bills will be less generous, causing a lower but more prolonged peak
in inflation. This will have ramifications for both growth and inflation expectations.

+ The UK economy is already experiencing recessionary conditions, with business
activity and household spending falling. Tighter monetary and fiscal policy,
alongside high inflation will bear down on household disposable income. The short-
to medium-term outlook for the UK economy is bleak, with the BoE projecting a
protracted recession.

« Demand for labour remains strong, although there are some signs of easing. The
decline in the active workforce has fed through into higher wage growth, which could
prolong higher inflation. The development of the UK labour market will be a key
influence on MPC decisions. It is difficult to see labour market strength remaining
given the current economic outlook.

» Global bond yields have steadied somewhat as attention turns towards a possible
turning point in US monetary policy. Stubborn US inflation and strong labour
markets mean that the Federal Reserve remains hawkish, creating inflationary risks
for other central banks breaking ranks.

* However, in a departure from Fed and ECB policy, in November the BoE attempted
to explicitly talk down interest rate expectations, underlining the damage current
market expectations will do to the UK economy, and the probable resulting inflation
undershoot in the medium term. This did not stop the Governor affirming that there
will be further rises in Bank Rate.

Forecast:

* The MPC remains concerned about inflation but sees the path for Bank Rate to be
below that priced into markets.

» Following the exceptional 75bp rise in November, Arlingclose believes the MPC will
slow the rate of increase at the next few meetings. Arlingclose now expects Bank
Rate to peak at 4.25%, with a further 50bp rise in December and smaller rises in
2023.



Page 109 Agenda ltem 6.3

* The UK economy likely entered into recession in Q3, which will continue for some
time. Once inflation has fallen from the peak, the MPC will cut Bank Rate.

» Arlingclose expects gilt yields to remain broadly steady despite the MPC’s attempt
to push down on interest rate expectations. Without a weakening in the inflation
outlook, investors will price in higher inflation expectations given signs of a softer
monetary policy stance.

+ Gilt yields face pressures to both sides from hawkish US/EZ central bank policy on
one hand to the weak global economic outlook on the other. BoE bond sales will
maintain yields at a higher level than would otherwise be the case.

Current Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25

(O fficial Bank Rate

Upside risk o.o0| o.s| osol o7s| 100 1m0l 100l 128 1s0|  azs| es0|  1.2s]  1s
Arlingclose Central Case 300 350 400 425 425 425 425 400 375 350 350 350 3s0
Downside risk o.00] 05| osol o7s| o] ors| os|  o7s| o] tool oo too]  too
3-month money market rate

Upside risk o.00] o025 oso| o7s| 100 1m0l too|  12s] 1so|  izs| 1se| 15| 1S
arlingclose Central Case 3.00| 390 440 440 440 435 430 425 400 375 =375 375 37s
Downside risk o.00 o025 oso| wo7s| o07s| ors| o7s| o7s| 10| tool voo| too] 1w
Syr gilt yield

Upside risk o.00] ool o070 oeo|l o0 1woo] 100 100 10| too| 100 100 1o
Arlingclose Central Case 3.3 3.65] 390 390 390 390 380 370 30| 350 340 330 320
Downside risk o.00] o070l o090l 100l 100 twoof 100 100l 10| 100l so0] 100 100
10y r gilt yield

Upside risk o.00] oeo| o070 oeo|l o0 1woof 100 100 10| toof 100 100 100
Arlingclose Central Case 346 370 37s| a7s| 38| 370l 370l 370l avo| 3vo| 370l 30| 370
Downside risk o.00] o070 o090 100l 100 1wof 100 100 10| 100 to0] 100 100
20yr glt yield

Upside risk o.00] ool o070 oeo| o090 1m0l 100 100l 10| 100l 00| 100 .
arlingclose Central Case 3e8| 400| 400 <400 400 400 350 290 =90 zs0| =90 =90 =0
Downside risk 0.00] o070 oo t1woof 100l twool 100 100l 1ol 100l 100 100

50yr glt yield

Upside risk o.00] ool o070l oeol o0l 1wool toof 1ol too| tool 0| too| 1o
Arlingclose Central Case 1.24[ 3.40[ 340 340 340[ 340[ 330 3.30[] 330] 330 330 330[ 330
Downside risk o.oo] o070 o9l 100l 100 1m0l 100 1ol 10| 100l 00| 100 100

PWLB Standard Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80%
UKIB Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.60%



Page 110 Agenda ltem 6.3

Appendix B — Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

31.12.22 31.3.22

Actual Average

portfolio rate
£m %

External borrowing:
Public Works Loan Board 98.9 3.35
Local authorities

LOBO loans from banks
Other loans 5.0 4.71
Total external borrowing 103.9 3.42

Other long-term liabilities:
Private Finance Initiative

Leases

Transferred Debt

Total other long-term liabilities 0 0
Total gross external debt 103.9 3.42

Treasury investments:
The UK Government 19.7
Local authorities

Other government entities
Secured investments

Banks (unsecured)

Building societies (unsecured)
Registered providers (unsecured)
Money market funds 9.1
Strategic pooled funds

Real estate investment trusts
Other investments

Total treasury investments 28.8 1.56

Net debt 75.1




Page 111 Agenda ltem 6.3

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2023/24

Introduction

3.1  Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside
resources to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to the revenue
budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local
Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to the former
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government's Guidance on
Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in
2018.

3.2 The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is
financed over a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over
which the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing
supported by Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate
with the period implicit in the determination of that grant.

3.3 The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP
Statement each year and recommends a number of options for calculating a
prudent amount of MRP. The following statement incorporates options
recommended in the Guidance as well as locally determined prudent methods.

e For unsupported capital expenditure incurred after 31st March 2008, MRP will
be determined by charging the expenditure over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset as the principal repayment on an annuity with an annual interest
rate of 4%, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on
purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50 years. MRP on expenditure
not related to fixed assets but which has been capitalised by regulation or
direction will be charged over 20 years.

e For assets acquired by leases MRP will be determined as being equal to the
element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the balance sheet liability.

e When former operating leases are brought onto the balance sheet due to the
adoption of the IFRS 16 Leases accounting standard, and the asset values
have been adjusted for accruals, prepayments, premiums and/or incentives,
then the annual MRP charges will be adjusted so that the total charge to
revenue remains unaffected by the new standard.

e For capital expenditure loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more
frequent instalments of principal, the Council will make nil MRP, but will instead
apply the capital receipts arising from principal repayments to reduce the capital
financing requirement instead. In years where there is no principal repayment,
MRP will be charged in accordance with the MRP policy for the assets funded
by the loan, including where appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the
assets become operational. While this is not one of the options in the MHCLG
Guidance, it is thought to be a prudent approach since it ensures that the capital
expenditure incurred on the loan is fully funded over the life of the assets.



Page 112 Agenda ltem 6.3

e There is no requirement to charge MRP where the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) is nil or negative at the end of the preceding financial year
e Where the council makes a capital contribution or loan to another entity or
where responsibility for a council asset with borrowing attached is transferred
to a third party, then no MRP will be set aside if:
o the payments are appropriately covered by assets
o there are detailed plans demonstrating that all the expenditure will be
recovered in an appropriately short time frame

To ensure that this remains a prudent approach the Council will review the expenditure
and income regularly to determine if the income or asset values have decreased to
the point that MRP needs to be provided for. Should evidence emerge which suggests
the expenditure will no longer be recovered MRP will be provided for.
e Where the council uses internal borrowing and receipts of rental income are
greater than the MRP calculated then as there are sufficient revenues to repay
the capital cost no MRP will be set aside.

3.4  Capital expenditure incurred during 2023/24 will not be subject to a MRP charge
until 2024/25 or later.

3.5 Based on the Authority’s latest estimate of its capital financing requirement
(CFR) on 31st March 2023, the budget for MRP has been set as follows:

31.03.2023 2023/24
Estimated Estimated
CFR MRP
£m £
Capital expenditure before 01.04.2008
Supported capital expenditure after
31.03.2008
Unsupported capital expenditure after
31.03.2008 19.8 910.000
Leases and Private Finance Initiative
Transferred debt
Loans to other bodies repaid in instalments Nil
Voluntary overpayment (or use of prior n/a
year overpayments)
Total General Fund 910,000
Assets in the Housing Revenue Account 23.3
HRA subsidy reform payment 98.9
Total Housing Revenue Account 122.2 0
Total 143.0 910,000




Page 113 Agenda ltem 6.3

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2023/24

Introduction

3.1  The Authority invests its money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for
example when income is received in advance of expenditure (known as
treasury management investments),

e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other
organisations (service investments), and

e to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this
is the main purpose).

3.2  This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued
by the government in January 2018 and focuses on the second and third of
these categories.

Treasury Management Investments

3.3  The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants)
before it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It
also holds reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of
other local authorities and central government. These activities, plus the timing
of borrowing decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is invested in accordance
with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
The balance of treasury management investments is expected to fluctuate
between £20m and £40m during the 2023/24 financial year.

3.4  Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives
of the Authority is to support effective treasury management activities.

3.5 Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2023/24
for treasury management investments are covered in a separate document, the
treasury management strategy, which is part of these appendices.

Service Investments: Loans

3.6  Contribution: The Council will lend money to its subsidiaries, local businesses,
local charities, housing associations, to support local public services and
stimulate local economic growth.

3.7  Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be
unable to repay the principal lent and/or the interest due. In order to limit this



Page 114 Agenda Item 6.3

risk, and ensure that total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to
the size of the Authority, upper limits on the outstanding loans to each category
of borrower have been set as follows:

Table 1: Loans for service purposes in £ millions

Category of 31.3.2022 actual 2023/24
borrower Balance Loss Net Approved
owing allowance | figurein Limit
accounts
Subsidiaries 0 1.0
Suppliers 0 0
Parish councils 0 0
Local businesses 0 0.5
Local charities 0 0.5
Housing 0 1.0
associations
Local residents 0 0
Employees 0 0
TOTAL 0 3.0

3.8

3.9

Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside loss allowance for
loans, reflecting the likelihood of non-payment. The figures for loans in the
Authority’s statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance.
However, the Authority makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum
lent and has appropriate credit control arrangements in place to recover
overdue repayments.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into
and whilst holding service loans by using specialist advice to understand the
market and the potential future demands of the market and the customers in it.
It will also use benchmarking data from the market to determine future potential
risks which need to be planned for. External advice is only sought from credible
sources eg acknowledged experts in their fields, and officers ensure that they
fully understand any information given to them before decision or advice is
taken.



Page 115 Agenda ltem 6.3

Commercial Investments: Property

3.10 Contribution: The Council has Towns Fund Funding of over £15m to
regenerate the Town Centre and deliver an Innovation Centre. Although these
schemes will generate an income stream at the end of the process their main
purpose, as per the Grant requirements, is for regeneration. As set out in the
Capital Strategy it invested in offices at Oak Tree Part in 2019 for regenerative
purposes (See Asset Strategy). Fully let these premises will generate £76k per
annum. The Council does not invest in property for commercial gain.

Table 3: Property held for investment purposes in £ millions

Property Actual 31.3.2022 actual 31.3.2023 expected
Purchase | Gains or | Valuein | Gainsor | Valuein
cost (losses) | accounts | (losses) | accounts
N/a 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

3.16 Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a
property investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than
its purchase cost including taxes and transaction costs.

3.17 Where value in accounts is at or above purchase cost: A fair value assessment
of the Authority’s investment property portfolio has been made within the past
twelve months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital
investment. Should the 2022/23 year end accounts preparation and audit
process value these properties below their purchase cost, then an updated
investment strategy will be presented to full council detailing the impact of the
loss on the security of investments and any revenue consequences arising
therefrom.

3.18 Where value in accounts is below purchase cost: The fair value of the
Authority’s investment property portfolio is no longer sufficient to provide
security against loss, and the Authority is therefore taking mitigating actions to
protect the capital invested.

3.19 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into
and whilst holding property investments by involving specialist advisors with
expertise in the type of property being purchased, looking at historic data and
speaking to other councils undertaking similar activities.

3.20 Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult
to sell and convert to cash at short notice, and can take a considerable period
to sell in certain market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be
accessed when they are needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the



Page 116 Agenda ltem 6.3

Authority the Authority ensures that properties purchased are in an active
market where there is demonstrable demand to ensure that the authority does
not purchase assets which it will not be able to sell on at a later date.

Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees

3.22 Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has exchanged
hands yet, loan commitments and financial guarantees carry similar risks to the
Authority and are included here for completeness.

Proportionality

3.24 The Authority does not plan to become dependent on profit generating
investment activity to achieve a balanced revenue budget.

Borrowing in Advance of Need

3.25 Government guidance is that local authorities must not borrow more than or in
advance of their needs purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra
sums borrowed. The Authority would only not follow this guidance if interest
rate forecasts and treasury advisor guidance set out that it was more cost
effective, in terms of significantly reduced debt interest charges, for the
Council to borrow for the Approved 3 year capital programme at a point of
time rather than when that expenditure is taking place over that 3 year period.
It is unlikely that this will happen however the option should not be closed off.
Funds would be invested The Authority’s policies in investing the money
borrowed, including management of the risks, would be as per normal short
term Treasury Investments.

Capacity, Skills and Culture

3.26 Elected members and statutory officers: Member training will take place
annually as part of the induction process. External advisors will provide reports
to support investment decisions with officers ensuring that they fully understand
them and can relate them to the strategic objectives and risk profile of the
authority.

3.27 Commercial deals: Significant work has been undertaken using external
advisors and relevant training courses have been attended to ensure that
officers are fully aware of the code and statutory requirements of a local
authority which is investing.

KPMG have developed a modelling tool for the authority to use when assessing
potential purchases as a precursor to engaging with external consultants to



Page 117 Agenda ltem 6.3

ensure that potential purchases are likely to make sense from the perspective
of the authority before incurring advisor costs. However, following an internal
review of policy, it has been decided that the council may wish to make
purchases which do not make a financial return or may indeed make a loss in
the short term. On these occasions a business case will be developed which
specifies the non-financial benefits of the investment. These are likely to be
regenerative schemes for the greater good of the area with an intended long
term impact. The regenerative and redevelopment benefits which will flow from
the investment will be taken into account in the development of the business
case, so if the net investment yield falls below 0.75% it can still proceed if these
benefits are deemed to outweigh the lower than target yield.

3.28 Corporate governance: when investment decisions are to be made, they are
to be led by the Council’s Executive Director of Finance in consultation with the
Corporate Management Team. They will assess the potential investment
opportunity, consulting North Worcestershire Economic Development and
Regeneration (NWEDR) and using the KPMG finance appraisal model, and
should they decide it presents a strong opportunity for the authority and
complies with the relevant criteria a conditional offer can be made. A business
case will then be developed and presented ensuring that once greater detail is
included, it makes a satisfactory income yield and/or economic redevelopment
and regeneration impact. When the business case is completed, if it is still
compliant with the council criteria, it will be presented to Executive for approval
before purchase is completed.

Investment opportunity identified
Initial screening (NWEDR/KPMG model)
High level opportunity assesment (NWEDR/Finance)
Pre offer evaluation (KPMG model/Savills initial report)
Conditional offer (Executive Director of Finance)
Full business case (Presented to Finance & Budget Working Group)
Full business case (Presented to Cabinet)
Member approval (Cabinet)

Proceed



Page 118

Once a purchase has been made, the Director of Finance will provide quarterly
updates, in line with finance and performance monitoring reports, on the status
of the investment.

Investment Indicators

3.29

3.30

The Authority has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected
members and the public to assess the Authority’s total risk exposure as a result
of its investment decisions.

Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Authority’s total exposure to
potential investment losses. This includes amounts the Authority is
contractually committed to lend but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees
the Authority has issued over third party loans.

Table 5: Total investment exposure in £millions

Agenda Iltem 6.3

) 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2024

Total investment exposure
Actual Forecast Forecast

Treasury management 35 30 20
investments
Service investments: Loans
Service investments: Shares
Commercial investments: 0 0 0
Property
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 35 30 20
Commitments to lend
Guarantees issued on loans
TOTAL EXPOSURE 35 30 20

3.31 How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators

should include how investments are funded. Since the Authority does not
normally associate particular assets with particular liabilities, this guidance is
difficult to comply with. However, the following investments could be described
as being funded by borrowing. The remainder of the Authority’s investments
are funded by usable reserves and income received in advance of expenditure.



Page 119

Table 6: Investments funded by borrowing in £millions

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Investments funded by 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2024
borrowing Actual Forecast | Forecast
Treasury management 0 0 0
investments

Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Service investments: Shares 0 0 0
Commercial investments: 0 0 0
Property

TOTAL FUNDED BY 0 0 0
BORROWING

3.32 Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received
less the associated costs, including the cost of borrowing where appropriate,
as a proportion of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local
government accounting framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the
revenue account in the year they are incurred.

Table 7: Investment rate of return (net of all costs)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Investments net rate of return

Actual Forecast | Forecast
Treasury management 0.08% 1.56% 2.0%
investments
Service investments: Loans
Service investments: Shares
Commercial investments:
Property
ALL INVESTMENTS 0.08% 1.56% 2.0%

Table 8: Other investment indicators
. 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Indicator

Actual Forecast | Forecast
e.g. Debt to net service 0% 0% 0%
expenditure ratio




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121 Agenda Annex

Labour Group’s Alternative budget

We agree that the right approach for the use of the Town Hall is as a Community
Hub, but are opposed to the Library moving in as a tenant as they should remain at
their present site. We know, with the present 2023/24 to 25/16 Medium Term
Financial Plan, that this will result in a deficit of circa £260k. However, we agree with
the Community Hub concept and our approach will be to attract other Public and
Voluntary Sector Tenants to ensure there is no shortfall in 2025/26.

We want to invigorate the area running down from the Church past the library with a
static market, which for three days in the week would be a normal market and on
Saturdays be a specialist Market. We need to ensure that we attract footfall to this
area to attract business both to the Market and existing shops. As such we propose
investing in high quality Stalls (such as Wells) which would cost £50k. This equates
to a capital cost of £5k a year (over 20 years) and net running costs of £33k a year -
£38k in total.

We propose funding The Market initiative from the following two sources

1) The revised member Allowance Scheme. The Original costs of the Scheme
are £236,600 and our proposals reduce the cost to £214,728 — a £21,872
reduction

2) The remaining £16,128 would be a reduction in Rubicon Management
fee. Any additional costs due to Utilities over and above this difference would
be funded from the Utilities Reserve.

In year three there is a proposal, approved at Council in January, to move to all out
elections which we oppose. The savings in the 2025/26 financial year is

£170,000. We feel there needs to be a debate at full Council before a measure like
this is implemented as it has a significant impact on all Political parties.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset
management strategy for council housing

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Craig Warhurst
(Housing and Procurement)
Councillor Karen Ashley
(Finance and Enabling)
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Sue Hanley

(Deputy Chief Executive)

Peter Carpenter

(Executive Director of Finance)
Guy Revans

(Head of Environmental Services and
Housing Property Services)

Judith Willis
(Head of Community and Housing
Services)
Report Author Job Title:
Simon Parry - Housing Property Services
Manager

Contact email:
simon.parry@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel:

01527 64252

Wards Affected All Wards

Ward Councillor(s) consulted No

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) ‘Finding somewhere to live’

‘Living Independent, active, and
healthy lives’

‘Communities which are safe, well
maintained and green’.

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Executive Committee RECOMMEND that: -

1) The Housing Revenue Account 30-year Business Plan 2023-
2053 be approved as set out in Appendix 1.

2) The Housing Asset Management Strategy be approved as set
out in Appendix 2.

3) The Housing Capital Programme 2023-2027 be approved as set
out in Appendix 3



Page 124 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is the financial account that is
used to manage the Council’s Landlord activities. The HRA account
can only be used to provide services to Council Housing tenants
through the collection of rent and other service charges.

2.2  The HRA covers a wide range of services to tenants and Leaseholders
including

Maintenance & Improvements
e Day to Day Repairs
e Managing Empty Homes
e Major Improvements
e Estate based and environmental improvements
e Aids and Adaptations
e Cleaning of communal areas in flats

Compliance activities

e Gas Servicing

e Electrical Testing

e Fire Safety

e Lift Maintenance

e Asbestos Management

Housing Management

e Rent Collection including service charges
e Income advice and support

e Tenancy and Estate Management

e Allocations

e Right To buy

e Garage rentals

e Homelessness

2.3  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan sets out the
priorities and provides direction for the management of the Council’s
Social Housing Stock over the next 30 years. The Business Plan has
been reviewed, at the same time as developing a new HRA Asset
Management Strategy, to ensure that the investment in the Council’s
Housing stock provides homes that have modern facilities, are safe
and warm as contained within the 5-year Housing Capital Programme.



Page 125 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February

2023

2.4

24.1

2.4.2

2.4.3

244

2.4.5

HRA Business Plan

The HRA Business Plan (Appendix 1) sets out the Council’s income
and expenditure plans for delivering services to Redditch Borough
Council Housing.

The plan relies on several assumptions including changes in stock
levels, right to buy sales, the number of voids, rent increases, debt,
management costs for delivering the services above and borrowing
costs associated with capital investment requirements that are based
on stock condition information. More detail on these assumptions is
included in the financial implications below. These assumptions are
reviewed annually as a minimum.

The HRA Business Plan ensures that the Council has HRA reserves
that are established and maintained at appropriate levels to provide a
safety net for cost pressures or significant changes to assumptions
made.

The long-term capital forecasts over the 30-year period are based on
the Stock Condition Survey undertaken in 2019/20. This independent
survey was commissioned to undertake a sample stock condition
survey of the housing stock, garages, and parking sites. The survey
provided an independent opinion of the 30-year profile of re-investment
required for the Housing Stock broken down into the various categories
of expenditure.

The reporting categories used within the stock condition data followed
the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
guidance as follows

Catch-up Repairs.

Future Major Works.

Improvements.

Estate Works.

Contingent Major Repairs.
Exceptional Extensive Works.
Cyclical Maintenance.

Disabled Adaptations

Responsive Repairs and Void Works.



Page 126 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.4.6 The survey identified that the housing stock was in a reasonable state
of repair with a proportionally low level of catch-up repairs and early
years works required, however continued investment over a 30 year
period was required in order to ensure that all properties are
maintained to provide a good standard.

2.4.7 The proportion of responsive repairs and voids works at the time of the
survey were deemed higher than expected when compared to the level
of capital investment at that time. The reduced level of Capital
Investment was largely due to the Service Review having restructured
Housing Property Services including the Capital Team in 2019.

2.4.8 Subsequently however the level of repairs required has increased with
the restrictions made during 2020 and 2021 because of the Covid-19
Pandemic. The contents of this report illustrate the Capital Programme
of investment to improve our housing stock over the next 5 years.

2.5 HRA Asset Management Strategy

2.5.1 The Housing Asset Management Strategy (Appendix 2) sets out the
strategic approach to managing the Council’s Social Housing Stock
over the next 5 years. It sets out key principles and strategic priorities
for projects and programmes to ensure that the housing stock is well
maintained.

2.5.2 There are several key objectives within the strategy including to ensure
we provide properties with modern facilities, that are safe and warm,
and that repairs and maintenance activities are conducted in a cost
effective and timely manner. This applies not only to the properties
themselves but also the environment in which they are located.

2.5.3 Over the 30-year period that the stock condition survey results
covered, clear re-investment priorities are identified including

e Kitchens and bathrooms (28%)

e Heating system and space heating (22%)
e Electrical Installations (18%)

e External windows and doors (14%)

2.5.4 The HRA Capital Programme includes a variety of projects that will
seek to ensure properties are improved to provide better safety, more
modern facilities, such as kitchens and bathrooms, and to improve the
thermal efficiency of properties.



Page 127 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.5.5 Compliance functions including Fire, Electric, Gas and Asbestos are a
key part of the Asset Management Strategy to ensure our homes are
safe to live in. Compliance has seen significant improvements over the
last 2 years with works completed and improvement programmes being
delivered. For Fire Prevention the Council is required to undertake Fire
Risk Assessments for our flatted accommodation. This has identified a
range of improvements that are part of a rolling programme of
improvements including new fire doors, fire alarms, preventative works
and signage which continue to be upgraded initially across our
previously ‘sheltered’ accommodation.

2.5.6 The programme of Electrical Inspection and Condition Reports (EICRS)
required to test the electrical installations in our housing units on a 5-
year cycle continues and includes checks on the level of smoke and
carbon monoxide detection equipment in our properties to ensure they
are compliant.

2.5.7 The Council’s internal Gas Team have, over the last two years,
provided increased levels of service and compliance through the
delivery of the annual servicing programme, which checks all
properties with gas to ensure compliance with Regulations, the delivery
of gas repairs, as well as a programme of boiler replacement.

2.5.8 The replacement programme has been developed by targeting various
models of old (14+ years) low efficiency (65%) boilers that have parts
that are difficult to source. To date approximately 700 boilers have
been replaced over the last 2 years with modern, efficient (90+%)
boilers with associated 7-year warranties.

2.5.9 To further test compliance the Gas Engineers are audited by an
external audit company which has seen performance rise from 74%
two years ago to 100% in December 2022.

2.5.10 The Gas Team were also audited by the Internal Audit team in 2022,
looking at ongoing investment in gas appliances in the Council’s
Housing stock, that Annual Gas Safety checks were undertaken,
records were up to date and that Gas Engineers had the required
certification and training. The conclusion of the report gave Significant
Assurance.

2.5.11 A survey of asbestos in our communal areas has been undertaken and
included a programme of removal of those items identified at risk.
Other asbestos containing materials are still present in these areas



Page 128 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

however these are subject to cyclical re inspection in order to ensure
their integrity has not been altered. An internal Audit of Asbestos
Management within Housing Property Services was also conducted in
2022 and this also gave a Significant Assurance outcome.

2.5.12 Improving the Energy Efficiency of our Housing Stock, together with
lowering the impact on the climate, are key drivers within the strategy
with a target of ensuring all of our properties meet a minimum Energy
Performance Certificate Rating of C.

2.5.13 We have seen an increase in reported cases of Damp and Mould
cases over the winter period and following the case and inquest into
the death of Awaab Ishak. A review of our working practices has taken
place and work is being delivered to remove this from our properties
together with customer facing documents to assist in the removal of
condensation from our properties. An internal working group has been
set up to monitor the delivery of the action plan to tackle this particular
issue.

2.6 HRA Capital Programme 2023/24-2027/28

2.6.1 Based on the Capital Investment requirements contained within the
Stock Condition Survey under, predominantly, the Future Major Works
category a 5-year Capital Programme has been identified. This sets out
the investment under various budget heads to complete works that will
in turn reduce the volume and value of responsive and void repairs
over the period.

2.6.2 The programme has been built around the key principles as outlined in
the AMS

1. Maintenance through an effective Repairs Service,

2. Compliance functions being managed through good data
management, processes and cyclical testing or inspection regimes

3. Ongoing investment to ensure compliance with the Decent Homes
standard

4. Improving the thermal efficiency of our properties to achieve an
EPC rating of C or above

2.6.3 The Repairs Service is currently under review regarding its structure
and processes to ensure that it delivers an effective and efficient
service to our tenants. Significant improvements have been made
within the Voids team in ensuring repairs to voids are undertaken in a
timelier manner, as well as significant reductions in the number of voids
open, as this will directly impact on the assumptions made within the



Page 129 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Business Plan with the reduction of rent experienced while properties
are empty.

2.6.4 The Capital Programme is established to ensure our properties remain
compliant with the Decent Homes standard as well as providing
thermal comfort through increased Energy performance.

2.6.5 The 30-year projection is based on the condition of the housing stock
and assets from the stock condition survey. A rolling stock condition
survey will be commissioned with results uploaded into the Asset
Management Database to refresh data as part of the review of the plan
and to ensure that capital investment is targeted accurately as part of
future years programmes. This programme aligns with the Business
Plan and is developed to align with the Asset Management Strategy.

2.6.6 The HRA Capital Programme 2023/4-27/8 (Appendix 3) aligns with the
data from the stock condition data and is established to ensure our
properties have modern facilities are safe and warm. Over the initial 2
years of the programme budgets have been included to ensure that the
Council’s responsibilities regarding compliance activities such as
Electrical Rewires and Smoke detection upgrades are undertaken.

2.6.7 Works to improve fire protection across the housing stock form part of
the programme to ensure that properties have the correct level of fire
compartmentation together with new front and communal entrance
doors.

2.6.8 We are also reviewing our Housing Stock to establish opportunities for
re modelling existing buildings in order to create new housing units in
order to extend both the number and choice of units available for our
customers.

2.6.9 The internal refurbishment programme will ensure that the replacement
and or upgrading of kitchens, bathrooms, associated wiring and heating
works are undertaken across the Borough.

2.7 Regulator of Social Housing (RSH)

2.7.1 In September 2022 the RSH launched a ‘Tenant Satisfaction
measures’ (TSM) document which places a responsibility on all social
housing landlords in England to return performance information, so that
each provider can be assessed for how well it is providing good quality
homes and services. This is part of the strategy to improve services for
people living in social housing that was published in 2020 under the
Social Housing White Paper — The Charter for social housing residents.



Page 130 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.7.2 The TSM document sets out 22 measures covering 5 themes.

Keeping Properties in good repair
Maintaining Building Safety

Respectful and helpful engagement
Effective handling of complaints
Responsible neighbourhood management

abrwnhpE

2.7.3 Of the 22 measures they are split between those that the landlord is
required to measure directly (10 No.) and those that are measured by
tenant perception surveys (12 No.) (Appendix 4)

2.7.4 These new requirements come into force on 1st April 2023 with the
results for 2023/24 to be forwarded to the RSH in the Summer of 2024
which will be subsequently published in Autumn 2024. It is anticipated
that these will form ‘league tables’ so that tenants of their respective
landlord can benchmark against our peers.

2.7.5 Whilst the survey results are not expected to be returned until Summer
2024 the approach adopted across Housing is to seek to develop a
survey based on the criteria and questions specified by the RSH and
release the survey in the new financial year. This will allow the Service
to ensure the survey and its methodology is in line with the criteria of
the survey. It will also allow the service to understand the current level
of perception and to ensure dedicated plans are in place for any
identified areas for improvement.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  Through the development of the 30-year HRA Business Plan a number
of key assumptions have been made. These include the following
points:

e Consumer price index assumed at 2% per year from year 3 in line
with government inflation target.

¢ Retail Price inflation with drives cost assumed at 10% in year one of
the plan, 7.5% in year 2, 5% in years 3 and 4, and 3% thereafter.

e Pay inflation assumed to be 4.4% in year 1, 2.5% in year 2 and 1%
thereafter.

¢ No additional borrowing assumed in this plan.

e Interest rate applied to Housing Revenue Account balances is
1.56%

e Rental Income assumes:



Page 131 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February

2023

3.2

3.3

3.4

» An average rent of £150.41 and £96.65 on a 48 week basis for
affordable and social rent properties respectively

» New tenants will pay target rent.

> Rentincrease of 7% in years 1 and 2 in line with Government
guidance and 3% (CPI +1%) thereafter.

» Rent Loss from voids is assumed to be 1.2% of rental income
per year

» Provision for bad debts assumed to be 2% of rental income for
the next 2 years to allow for the cost-of-living situation, reducing
to 1.5% for the remaining years

e A minimum HRA revenue reserve of £400 per property (£2.1m) will
help to mitigate the risk of unforeseen circumstances. A prudent
level of HRA balance reserve will be determined annually as part of
the budget setting process.

e RTB assumed to be 40 sales per year with 1,200 sales over 30
years.

e Capital charges of £4.2m based on HRA total debt of £122.2m, this
includes £98.9m taken out on a fixed interest only basis in 2012 to
cover the self-financing settlement payment.

e No debt repayment is assumed in this plan

National Rents Policy

The Direction on the Rent Standard 2019 issued by the Government in
February 2019 confirmed that from 1 April 2020 weekly dwelling rents
can be increased by CPI inflation (Consumer Price Index), plus 1% for
the 5 year period through to 2024/25. This is the fourth year following
the new rent standard guidance. An increase of CPI plus 1% in 2023-
24 will have resulted in a rent increase of 11.1%

On the 31st of August 2022, DLUHC published a consultation on a
draft Direction to the Regulator of Social Housing about social housing
rents in England. DLUHC was seeking views on whether a rent cap
should be introduced, where it should be set and whether it should
potentially cover one or two years

In the Autumn statement issued by the Chancellor on the 17th of
November 2022, The government stated that it is capping the amount
that social rents can increase by next year at 7% compared to
circa.11.1% under current rules (CPI plus 1%).

HRA Borrowing Cap



Page 132 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.5 Self-financing placed a limit (Debt Cap) on borrowing for housing
purposes at the closing position for 2011/12 at £122.2 million, however,
the removal of the cap means that the HRA can borrow (within
prudential limits) to pay for investment in our existing stock and provide
new homes.

Capital Investment

3.6  Capital investment in our existing homes, is funded primarily from the
Major Repairs Reserve, which holds the depreciation charge to the
HRA and can be used purely to finance investment in existing stock
and the repayment of HRA debt.

3.7 Capital receipts from Right to Buy sales can also be used to finance
the HRA capital investment programme, although some of these
receipts can only be used to finance new homes to replace those that
have been sold. Borrowing, which is no longer capped, can also be
used to finance the capital programme providing that it is affordable
and complies with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities. No additional borrowing is assumed in this plan.

3.8  Revenue surplus generated by the HRA is transferred to an earmarked
capital reserve and this usable reserve is currently used as match
funding for the new homes program but can also be used to repay HRA
debt.

3.9 The table below summarised capital resource requirements on a 5 year
basis over the full 30 year Business plan. The detailed year by year
plan is set out in Appendix 1.



Page 133 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Cutturn
2022(23 2023-2028 2028-2033 2033-2038 2038-2043 2043-2048  2048-2053
£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Major Repairs Reserve
Internal Fefurbishment 300,000 | 12,500,000 13,671,025 15,545,465 18,372,114 21,293,01 24,631,391
Eoiler Replacements sso000 | 5,850,000 4,101,307 4,754,539 5511814 5,553,703 TADT 4T
High Trees Project 50,000 I TH0,000 0 o] 0 o o
Esternal Riefurbishment zosp0n | 2,500,000 3,251,046 3,505,631 4,409,451 511,765 5,325,354
Electrical Upgrades 300,000 | 500,000 546,541 533,333 734,909 B51,960 957,656
Dioor Entry and Security Upgrades 600,000 I 450,000 410,131 475,454 551,151 E35,370 T4D, AR
Smoke Detection Upgrades 530,000 I 1,100,000 546,541 633,333 T4, 303 G51,360 957,656
Balcony Replacements 10,000 I 00,000 o o ] a a
Najor Woids o000 | 2,500,000 2,754,208 3,163,633 5,674,543 4,253,502 4,355,278
Enerqy Efficiency 70,000 I 3,TR0,000 4,101,307 4,754,533 EETE4 B,553,T03 40T 417
Diisrepair Cases 5000 250,000 273420 316,369 367454 425,950 493,525
Fire Compartmentation 1sa0,000 1 2,250,000 1,367,102 1554,546 1,837,271 2,129,301 2,463,133
Giarage Improvement Works - T 1,100,000 1,367,102 1554, 846 1,837,211 2,129,301 2463,133
Strucutral Fepairs 5,000 375,000 410,151 475,454 551,151 638,370 740,742
Asbestos General 200,000 | 500,000 546,541 533,333 734,909 B51,960 957,656
Capitalized Salaries soooo0 | 2,500,000 2,754,208 3,163,633 5,674,543 4,253,502 4,355,278

6,365,000 36.075.000 36.031.505 41,833,946 48503 365 56,223,383 65.185.273

Capital Receipts

Dizabled Adaptations 200000 1 1,750,000 1,367,102 1,564,546 1,537,2M 2,123,301 2,463,133
HR& Stock - Remadelling - T 500,000 546,541 633,333 734,309 51,960 387,656
Estate & Environmental Improvements 450,000 I 1,250,000 1,367,102 1,554,546 1,537,271 2,123,301 2463153
Estates FParking and Faving - T 650,000 F20,261 350,305 1,102,365 1,217,341 141,455
Stack Condition Survey Fees 750,000 520,261 350,308 1,102,565 1,277,381 1.451,455
Housing Management 550,000

1,000,000 4,900,000 4,921,563 5705447 6,614,177 T.667.644 8888901
Mew BuildlAcquisitions 2,300,000 15,200,000 16,200,000 17,200,000 15,200,000 12,200,000 20,200,000

10,265,000 56175000 57.213.0T4 64.745.394 T3.315.142 83.09T.033 34274174

Financed by

Major Repairs Reserve 555,000 36,075,000 36,091,505 41,559,945 45,503,965 56,228,559 65,155,275
Capital Receipts 1,000,000 4,300,000 4,321,563 5,705,447 6,614,177 TEET 544 &568,301
Capital Receipts earmarked For acquisition 1,160,000 5,060,000 6,450,000 550,000 7,250,000 TE50,000 5,050,000
HRA Capital Reserve 1,740,000 3,120,000 3,720,000 10,520,000 10,820,000 1,520,000 12,120,000

HRA - Borrowing

10,265,000 56,175,000 57,213,074 64,745,394 13,315,142 83,097,033 34,274 174

Financial viability of the Housing Revenue Account

3.10 The Business Plan is based upon financial modelling to ensure the
financial viability of the HRA over the next 30 years.

3.11 The reduction in the number of dwellings from Right to Buy sales
represent a loss of income and can jeopardise the long term financial
viability of the HRA if these dwellings are not replaced. The current
Government policy encourage the council to replace homes with the
proceeds from RTB Sales. To mitigate the impact of the loss of rental
income, the capital investment program will finance 600 replacement
homes over the life of this plan.



Page 134 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.12 We have to look at Right to Buy assumptions as to the viability of the
Housing Revenue Account, as reductions in numbers of dwellings
impacts works required in terms of delivery, magnitude and cost.

HRA Rental income - Sensitivity analysis to net reduction in Number of dwellings

2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28
Net Reduction
i b
'n humBber or £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Dwellings per
year
20 25,658 27,357 28,076 28,815 29,572
25 25,649 27,323 28,015 28,727 29,454
50 25,589 27,136 27,697 28,269 28,849
75 25,534 26,955 27,384 27,316 28,248
100 25,474 26,768 27,066 27,358 27,643
125 25,419 26,587 26,752 26,906 27,043
150 25,360 26,401 26,434 26,448 26,437

The business plan assumes a net reduction of 20 dwellings over the
next five years as highlighted in tables above (RTB less acquisitions).

The sensitivity analysis shows the impact of net reductions in dwellings
on rental income over the medium term or first five years of the

plan. Typically for every additional 25 properties lost, in year 1, the
value of rental income reduces by £60k.

By Year 5 the equivalent rent loss for every additional 25 properties is
approximately £600k.

3.13 The impact of the rental income affects the net operating expenditure.

HRA Net Operating Expenditure Surplus(-) or deficit (+) Sensitivity Analysis to net reduction in number of dwellings

2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28
Net Reduction
in number or £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
dwellins per
year
20 449 11,145 11,370 11,445 11,761
25 ~a42 -1,120 41,325 -1,380 -1,673
50 -308 -081 -1,087 -1,040 11,224
75 -357 -845 -854 -704 -779
100 -312 -706 -616 -364 -330
125 271 571 -382 -29 115
150 -226 -432 -145 311 565




Page 135 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.14 Based on current assumption the plan ensures:

» Adequate level of balance reserves is maintained to help manage
risk and mitigate the impact of unforeseen circumstances

» A robust capital programme that is fully funded from available
resources within the HRA

» Surpluses are generated and transferred to a capital reserve and
used to match fund the costs of replacement homes.

» The council complies with the legal requirement and does not set a
deficit budget for the HRA

3.15 Under the assumptions used in the base business plan, the Housing
Revenue Account can maintain useable reserves at £2.7m and this will
be reviewed annually as part of the budget setting process.

3.16 The HRA will continue to generate surpluses over the 30-year period,
and these will be transferred to earmarked capital reserve. The table
below sets out the income and expenditure assumptions for the next 30
years:
e Taking account of the assumptions set out in 3.1 above
e Summarising on a 5-year basis

Appendix 1 sets out the full 30 year plan
2022/23 | 2022/23 | 2022/23 2023-2028 2028-2033 2033-20382038-20432043-20452048-2053
Revised | Forecast

Budget budzet | Outurn Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME
Dwelling Rents 24,025| 24,025 24,033 | 139,478 | 159,918 | 181,992 | 207,034 | 235,437 | 267,039
MNon-Dwelling Rents 556 556 525 3,135 3,660 4,243 4,919 5,702 6,611
Tenants' Charges for Services & Facilities 692 692 572 3,387 3,954 4,584 5,314 6,161 7,142
Contributions towards Expenditure 46 46 53 260 284 330 382 443 514
Total Income 25,318| 25,318| 25,182 146,260 167,817 191,149 | 217,649 | 247,743 | 281,905
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 6,545 6,545 6,326 | 35,106 39,414 | 43,710 48,588 | 54,137 60,439
Supervision & Management 8,219 8,219 7,991 | 45471 48,973 52,461 | 56,285| 00,487| 65,115
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 264 264 350 1,438 1,756 2,115 2,560 3,096 3,750
Provision for Bad Debts 190 190 360 2,472 2,517 2,867 3,265 3,716 4,229
Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 5,994 5,994 5,994 | 34,708 40,369 | 45,038 | 51,151 | 58,174| 66,097

Interest Payable & Debt Management Costs 4,179 4,179 4,179 | 20,895 20,895| 20,895| 20,895| 20,895 20,895

Total Expenditure 25,390| 25,390| 25,199 140,000| 153,924 167,089 | 182,783 | 200,506 | 220,544
INet Operating Expenditure 12 72 17| 5170 -13,803| -24,060 | -34,866 | -47,238 | -61,361
Interest Receivable = =} -221 -1,044 -1,132 -1,626 -2,521| -3,870| -5,746
Transfer to/{from) general reserves -69 -69 204 0 0 0 0 0 1]
Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 7,214 15,025 | 25,686 | 37,388 | 51,108| 67,107
[Surplus)/Deficit on Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE
Forecast Balance as at beginning of year 2,466 2,515 2,515 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719
Surplus/(deficit) for year -69 -69 204 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forecast Balance as at end of year 2,397 2,446 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719




Page 136 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.17 Alongside assumptions for Right To Buy losses within the stock profile
assumptions have also been included for the development, acquisition
and remodelling of housing stock to provide additional units forms the
strategy for reducing the impact of RTB losses.

3.18 Currently the Council’s housing growth programme has 19 units of
accommodation under construction and 8 sites agreed for development
expected to provide an additional 37 units of accommodation over the
next 3 years. A Housing Development Officer is now in place to deliver
this programme and identify additional sites to be added to the
programme to maintain the delivery of additional properties in the
future.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The HRA consists of expenditure on Council owned assets, primarily
its Housing. There is a statutory requirement that the Council is obliged
to keep its Housing Revenue Account separate from other housing
activities in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (as amended).

4.2  The Council has a duty to disclose specified information in relation to
the HRA and its operation under the Housing Revenue Account
(Accounting Practices) Directions 2016.

4.3  In November 2020 MHCLG (now DLUHC) published guidance on the
operation of the Housing Revenue Account ring-fence and highlighted
the need to be fair to both tenants and council taxpayers and that there
should be a fair and transparent apportionment of costs between the
HRA and General Fund.

4.4  The Localism Act 2011 introduced a system of Council Housing finance
which replaced the HRA subsidy system with self-financing
arrangements.

4.5 In October 2018 the HRA borrowing cap was abolished allowing local
authorities the opportunity to borrow against expected rental income in
accordance with the CIPFA Prudential Code 2021 (as amended).

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1  This report supports the strategic priorities of the Council principally in
ensuring the Council provides a range of Housing for our tenants that



Page 137 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

provide modern, safe and warm housing as part of ‘Finding somewhere
to live’.

5.2  Providing funding and programmes of works to ensure properties can
be adapted to suit the needs of individuals is a key component of
achieving ‘Living Independent, active and healthy lives.’

5.3 Investment within the environment in which the Council’s Social
Housing stock is located including designing out crime, better security
and safety measures as well as well-maintained space will assist in
achieving ‘Communities which are safe, well maintained and green’.
Investing in energy efficiency of our stock as set out in 5.4 below also
supports this Strategic Purpose.

Climate Change Implications

5.4  The Government’s Clean Growth Strategy 2017 and Heat and
Buildings Strategy 2021 sets a target for social housing providers to
achieve a minimum Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of C
by 2030 for all fuel poor properties together with a target to make all
homes ‘net zero carbon’ by 2050. Within the Capital Programme
budgets there are budgets set aside for improving the energy efficiency
of the housing stock in order to meet Government.

5.5 The upgrading of electrical installations including LED lighting, more
efficient gas boilers and further research and implementation of viable
renewable energy technologies will assist in carbon reduction as a
consequence of the use of our housing assets.

5.6 Increased thermal efficiency, more efficient lighting and heating will
assist all of our tenants including those in Fuel Poverty. Support and
Guidance is also offered through our contracted Energy Advice Service
provider regarding energy bills, minimising home energy use, and
referrals for energy saving measures.

5.7  New build properties delivered through the Council housing growth
programme will be constructed to the highest energy efficiency rating
viable and utilise renewable heating systems rather than gas boilers.

5.8  The improvement of the energy efficiency of the Council’s housing
stock is an important step in tackling fuel poverty and improving the
quality of life of tenants and future tenants to reduce fuel bills and
improve their quality of life. This will also assist the Council in reducing
its carbon footprint in line with the Council’s Climate Change Strategy

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS




Page 138 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 Understanding the profile and needs of tenants will give greater insight
into how specific requirements can be addressed and funded. The
ongoing implementation of the new Housing System will assist in the
development of a robust and detailed tenant profile, in conjunction with
planned tenant engagement and wider local demographic data.

6.2  There are positive equalities implications resulting from the proposed
plan, including the focus on heating, thermal efficiency, and window
replacement, which will benefit physical health and wellbeing, those
with long term conditions or disabilities and people in fuel poverty or
struggling with the cost of living. The provision for aids and adaptations
will also support people with a disability to remain, and remain
independent, in their properties.

6.3  The provisions detailed in the plan, such as tenancy support, income
advice and homelessness support will all help vulnerable tenants, such
as those experiencing mental health challenges.

Operational Implications

6.4  As part of the ongoing review within Housing Property Services and the
Housing Management Service Area a core objective is to ensure that
there is sufficient capacity, knowledge and skills to deliver the range of
services contained with this report.

6.5 The implementation and successful utilisation of ICT software,
modernising service delivery and a greater emphasis on Performance
Management will be critical factors in delivering the services.

6.6  The current cost of living situation will impact on some of our tenant’s
ability to pay their rent and could have an impact on this Plan. Several
actions are being undertaken to support tenants and to keep arrears
and bad debts to a minimum, for example:

1. Referrals to Home Finance Advisors who provide money advice
and assist residents to maximise their income.

2. Moving Universal Credit claimants on to Alternative Payment
Arrangements and apply for arrears direct payments as a
preventative measure to avoid legal action.

3. Working with Revenues and Benefits to access additional support,
such as discretionary housing payments and make referrals to the
Citizens Advice.



Page 139 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February

2023

4. Utilising the Homelessness Prevention Support Grant where

applicable.
5. Developing a partnership agreement with Redditch Job Centre to
provide additional support to our residents who visit the job centre.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  The Council may be in breach if a 30-year HRA Business Plan is not
agreed.

7.2  There are a wide range of assumptions that are built into the model,
combinations of these assumptions not being accurate, could impact
significantly on the affordability of the plan. Ongoing and regular review
of these together with the reserves, mitigate against these risks.

7.3  Alarge proportion of the works identified to improve our council housing
stock is reliant on the capacity and performance of contractors. Good
Contract and performance management will allow us to understand and
manage this risk.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS
Appendix 1 — 30 Year HRA Business Plan
Appendix 2 — Housing Asset Management Strategy
Appendix 3 — Housing Capital Programme 2023/4- 2027/8
Appendix 4 — Tenant Satisfaction Measures

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Craig Warhurst (Housing and 14/2/23

Portfolio Holder Procurement)

Karen Ashley (Finance and
Enabling)
Guy Revans 14/2/23

Lead Director / Head of (Head of Environmental

Service Services and Housing Property

Services)
Peter Carpenter 15/2/23

(Executive Director of Finance)
Judith Willis 14/2/23




Page 140 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

(Head of Community and

Housing Services) 15/2/23

Sue Hanley (Deputy Chief

Executive)

Kunmi Joseph 712123
Financial Services

Claire Green 3/2/23
Legal Services

Rebecca Green 13/2/23
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

9/2/23

Climate Change Officer (if | Matthew Bough (Strategic
climate change Housing Manager)
implications apply)

Appendix 1 30 Year HRA Business Plan



Agenda ltem 6.4

Page 141
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

27" February

Executive Committee

2023

GL7 (6T [sut leiT et e lewt el [ewt |ewr lewt |eut o |e (et |eifT 6wt et [suT et |6 (eMt (6T (6HT [T |L66T JE3hJ0 U 1858 20UE[Eg 15E3alny
o0 o o Jo Jo o fo o o o o fo o fo o o o Jo fo o o Tm [ (e Jeak oy yap) emding
LT |67 |eut |eeT o lent el lewt et |ewT |eut o |eT o leut el lent el lewt (et |et st |eif7 lent el ot |oisz [sr | Jeahgo Buundag pese anueeg g
TINYIVE LNMOD0Y JTINAAH SNISTIOH
o o o o o fo foofo o o o o Joofo o foofo oo oo ool o0 e e s3Il U0 Jayaq fsnidng)
e |k [scw lust owt [wee [oms e it [wre |ouh et [t [wet et [t (et [oset [mer |met [T |m SaAS3Y PaNlelLle3 oy ) Jasel]
o0 o o o fo Jjo oo o o o qjo o o o o o o o ol o (e [e sahzsal Jauad (Wou oy el
T N1 o T S 1 S U (S it s 17 1< R < /o o e e EEERETR ]
o5 |SrE (T |6 |0y |sve (0% (e |eors | |wr |90 |oerE oot (6T [T wr o0 lu amypuadeg funesadg jay
GEEE [FT9'%E | Q06U [STZE |OhOE [7aR'E [ovd'st [ewhe [T00% [wOt'se [ocsTe |Tri [SE'TE |0 [auce [sste [osctr s [wist (o' |eesnr ' eevar [oeeT [o6e's ainypuade o]
B |6 et |6t (et (e et (e lemt (e |eTh o (s |ev o (et |sdv o (e e (eI |ecw (6T (e |60 6y |6 [AG | sisoowawaleuey 1gaq g apete e
VEETT SO |BOLOT |[6POT |ZECOr [E6 (TS (s (e |70 |wuch (7SR (o (bo® (60 (ML (RO |TEL|S0L [oB6 |89 (6T wES (PGET (weE'S | Stesey oo uauedul p uogepaitag
A TR T T - O - N T U T T o 1 S 1 = S B < S =B S /T 1T 1 S 131 SJ02(] PR ) O
6 o|es |me s me me e | lew [my o |wor e (e wE T (s e |we o wE | (e e o | [w sall) 13D 1y sate] ‘saley 3y
BETD |BUTD [ OBSTD |WFTT [4STT |SAOTD [OvRT B0 (/9T |ogvOr |seDT |s0rn |seor |s% |zece (oo |oese |eovh (s v (s |oevs TeRL |et® [Aizh uBlUz3euE) § uosiuedng
8501 [0960T |ETOT [EC6 |25 |05 (L6 |7TG |T6® |8 |/SSR|TRES [ST (0% (M8 |07l |Sesy |enyl |y |TS0C |89 |9 ezEd (a9 |opsd AeLEIR psueday
TNLONIA
T80 G0y |98 W% OOSEY |[SETH Q0T |dbrOb |OWCGE |SOTEE |WUCLE |S9UOF |OEESE |OTPME |GbSEE | L9 |[SBTE | L1076 |GZOE |OWSL |EBVEL W6 LBV |WIEST 8IS auwow| oy
T T T T /1 T 1 B T 1 - V7 < SO /N /N A N S SO B [ Iy puade3 lemol uopnguaLe)
GIT (00T |7 Pe0T T |t 0T a5 |we |oe |em o e e e o | @ (e e |me e ;e s | [z a8 IS 1y e SlUeuR)
WT (P07 |BOT |TNT (W6 [p% |96 |05 |68 (®mB 68 (e (W (s | o (e | |09 1w |m9 |us @S (e o SJuRY Bujamguoy
PORSH |0y |B05SD |GSHTr |&lETy (SIEQR |Z06'SE [TOE'E (9766 |GIEUE |GWSE |ESYE [TO0'EE |OOBTE [GORTE |SOTTE |GEUE |TiR (SRS |90 |LSEUT [ 0w [sao |su suay Bugmg
00N

000% | o000 | OOOF | O00F | O0OF | o00F | O0OF | O0OF | O00F | O0OF | OOOF | 00O | O00OF | 000F | oOoOF | O0OF | OO0 | 0003 | O0OF | OOOF | 00O | 0003 000F [ O0OF | 0003

wmpng | 128png
O | G | GO | | GO | R | G | G | | S| | O | | G | G | | A | | A | | | sy Jadpng
CHt07 | PY'EROT | ET0T | THTROC | THOR0T | ¥6E07 | GE'BEOZ | BELE0T | LEOEOT | 9E'CEDT | SEHEOT | BECEOT | SETEOT | ZETEOT | 1E060T | E6I0Z | 6Z'BT0T | STLIOL | L9207 | 9TSI0T | STHIO | vTER07 E2fti0T |erfeaor [sefiio




Agenda ltem 6.4

Page 142
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

27" February

Executive Committee

2023

Appendix 1 Cont’d

6TL'T BTLT BTL'T BTL'T BTL'T 6TL'T BTLT BTLE Jead Jo pua 1e se adJue|eq 15823104
0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 Jeah oy (waap)/sniding
6TL'T BTLT BTLT 6TLE B6TLT 6TL'T BTLT BTLE Jeak yo Buiuuidag 1e se aoue|eg 15833104
FINVIVE LNNOIIY INNIATY DNISNIOH
0 i] 0 0 0 0 0 0 532135 U0 Jalag/(snding)
TZ8'%T TOF'ET | TZLTT | ZO0°ZT | ¥ZF'TT | SOB'OT | £20Z°0T 53MI953Y payleLuLeT (ool Jagsuel )
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sandasal |elauad (woly)/ol Jagsuel)
BTE'T- FET'T- trLT- 090'T- 186~ 006~ QEs- 041 2|geAla0aY 1534a1U]
E6Y'ET- | B9BTT- |£SEZ°TT- | ¢99°TT- | TBO'TT- |815'01- | 696'6- EEV'E ainypuadx3 Suneradp 19N
veg'sy |096'vv | BBO'WY | ovEZ'Er | 9Fv'Ev | 99"ty | vvR'Ov | £BO'OF ainypuadx] ejoL
BLT'Y BLT'Y BLT'F BLT'F BLT'Y BLT'F BLT'Y BLT'Y 51507 Juawafeury 1920 g jgeded 152131u|
CTOG'ET | ZSS'ET | TIT'ET | BLB'ET | ESS'ET | LEZCT | 8TE'TT | LZO'TT 51355y paxid 40 Juawedw| g uoienaidag
068 £98 Sre g £08 8L [AT4 EvL 51420 peg J04 UdIsiAclg
608 844 6L 0L = £99 9 819 sadieyD 1ayip g saxe| ‘saley ‘Juay
CTY'ET | STZ'ET | BTQ'ET | LZ8'ZT | BEQTT | ESPCT | ZLTZTT | ¥EOZT JuawaBeuey g uoisiuadng
BEOZT | BCEZT [ SB0ZT | 6T2'TT | BSS'TT | LOE'TT |[TOO'TT |T1Z2'0T AIUBUSIUIEIN 13 SNIedaY
FHNLIANIdXT
f7e'ss [ L1B'IS | SbE'0S | BOG'vS | LOS'ES | E€vT'ZS | EIR'0S | OTS'6Y SWwaodu| [ejoL
60T 90T €0T 00T i6 e X 68 aInupuadx3 SpIEMOL SUDIINGUIUGD
PIST 0Lt'T LZF'T 98E'T CFE'T a0ET B07'T TE2'T 5311|1984 *g S301MI3S 10} s9EIRYD Slueua)
T0F'T T9ET TZET 8T SFT'T 60Z'T FLTT GET'T §1uay Buljama-uoN
EQE'DS | TBB'¥S | PeF'ES | OPT'ZS |OZB'0S | ¥ES'6Y |TIBT'BY |LS0°LTF sjuay Juljma
FNOINI

000, F 000, F 000, F 000, F 000, ¥ 000, F 000, F 000, F

128png | 128png | 1=8png | 1°3png | 1°8png | 198png | 198png | 1=8png

E9°CS0E | E57ES02 | TS5050¢ | Sev0e | eF'8k0E | BY'LPOE | LPOVOE | 9P SEOE




Page 143 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Appendix 2 — HRA Asset Management Strategy
Redditch Borough Council - Housing Asset Management Strategy 2023-2027

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Redditch Borough Council (the ‘Council’) has a retained stock of
affordable housing located within the county of Worcester. This
document sets our approach to the strategic management of our
assets over the next 5 years; with reference to the anticipated
reinvestment requirements over the next 30 years. It is directly linked to
the Council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024, Local Plan Housing Strategy,
the Worcestershire Housing Partnership Plan and supported by the 30-
year Business Plan and forms a strategic golden thread throughout the
business.

1.1  This strategy helps us ensure a focus on:

e The safety and security of residents in their homes and
communities;

e Achieving net zero carbon (NZC) milestones for our homes;

e Accurate data driven reinvestment decisions;

e Putting in place a properly funded business plan for asset
investment and repair;

e Ensuring our stock is fit for purpose and financially viable.

1.2 We have embraced the principles of effective asset management,
recognising the importance of:

e Accurate stock condition information, accurate and up to date
compliance records;

e A transparent and robust mechanism for assessing stock
viability and sustainability;

o [Effective governance, stewardship and procurement;

e The value of a healthy relationship between the Asset
Management, Housing Operations, Housing Management and
Development functions;

o Effective programme and repairs service delivery.

2.0 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CONSULTATION

This strategy sets out the mission, enablers and strategic objectives for
the Council and its operating functions and how service development is



Page 144 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

driven by these. The Council aims to be recognised as a truly customer
centric organisation. During 2019/20 the Council reviewed and set the
following strategic priorities:

e Run and grow a successful business;

e Finding somewhere to live;

e Aspiration, Work and Financial Independence;

e Living independent, active, and healthy lives; and

e Communities which are safe, well maintained, and Green

2.1 The Grenfell Tower tragedy in June 2017 and thereafter the Fire Safety
Act 2021, Building Safety Act 2022 and Social Housing Bill 2022 have
further highlighted safety issues that remain in the affordable housing
sector and what the Council will need to consider in future
management and investment within homes. Whilst other issues such
as the lack of affordable housing, welfare reform (Universal Credit),
deprivation, homelessness, and demographic changes are all still
relevant there is now a clear priority on the safety of residents in their
communities and providing them with a forum to raise any concerns.
Whilst the Council does not have any higher risk buildings (HRBs) as
currently defined by the Building Safety Act 2022, we still need to
consider other complex buildings (e.g., sheltered, and elderly
accommodation) and those of medium height (11 to 18 meters) which
over time are likely to become prescribed as HRBs.

2.2 In addition, the UK government amended its Climate Change Act in
June 2019 to introduce a legally binding zero carbon target for the UK
for 2050. A further strategic requirement is the eradication of fuel
poverty. The Government has set out its further ambitions for housing
with a target for getting all homes to EPC C by 2030.

2.3  The Corona virus, COVID-19, pandemic affected affordable housing
providers in a variety of ways including the temporary cessation of
planned investment works and emergency repairs as well as impacting
many other services. The impact on resources and the ability to deliver
asset management related investment is a priority against the
backdrop of a difficult economic position impacted by the conflict in
Ukraine and the rising costs of living. In particular the costs of materials
and fuel which have led to higher levels of inflation than have been
seen in the last 40 years.



Page 145 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023
2.4 A key responsibility of the Council is to ensure there is effective

2.5

2.6

3.0

3.1

engagement with its tenants and providing customer focussed services
based on two-way communication. A review of tenant engagement is
ongoing and will include annual surveys as prescribed by the Regulator
of Social Housing, publishing an Annual Report highlighting
performance, successes and areas of improvement required. This will
be supported by bespoke consultation to groups and or individuals
based on the programmes of work to be delivered. The Council
believes that paying attention to the views of residents assists with
improving satisfaction with the service as a whole.

A key focus is to ensure the front-line services are efficient and
customer focussed. The implementation of the new Civica CX system
(Housing Management and Repairs Software) will enable better
business information and performance data regarding the delivery of
the Responsive Repairs service. Analysis of the balance of trades and
their respective skills is being undertaken which will result in further
recruitment to deliver a more productive and efficient service in line
with best practice.

Over the last two years significant improvements have been made to
the management of voids significantly reducing both the number of
properties open and the time that they are void. Both directly impact on
the Council’s ability to receive rental income from these properties.
Further work is ongoing to provide continuous improvement to
processes and resultant performance.

OBJECTIVES
The key objectives of this strategy are:

e Aligning with the Council’s six strategic priorities, which are
based on our commitment to providing residents with effective
and efficient services that not only meet their needs but
understand them.

e Ensuring the health, safety and security of our residents and the
communities in which they live.

e Managing and maintaining homes to a good standard.

¢ Improving and maintaining homes, and as a by-product,
continue to meet the Regulator of Social Housing’s ‘Home
Standard’ (including Decent Homes).



Page 146 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Programming and procuring works so that repairs and
maintenance is conducted cost effectively and responsively, in a
way that reflects residents’ needs, preferences and aspirations.

e Ensuring that necessary re-investment in the stock is made a
key priority within the Council’s financial framework.

e Improving environments on estates and supporting community
regeneration.

e Ensuring all homes meet our landlord obligations for health and
safety compliance.

e Ensuring the stock is fit for purpose and meets the needs of
residents, the business and that demonstrate viability as well as
value for money.

3.2.1 In order to deliver these objectives, the Council must ensure that the
requirements of the stock are affordable in the context of its HRA
Business Plan.

4.0 OUR ASSETS

4.1  Our housing stock includes 5,711 dwellings and 532 leaseholders. All
the stock is all located within Redditch Borough. The Council does not
own any higher risk buildings (HRBs) (defined as properties with at
least 7 storeys or at least 18 metres in height by the Building Safety Act
2022).

4.2  In addition to dwellings, The Council is also responsible for the
management of a number of assets related to dwellings, for example
garages, unadopted roads, street lighting and paths. In October 2019
there were 197 garage sites comprising 1,340 garages and 1,044 off-
curtilage parking sites.

4.3  The extent of any non-traditionally constructed dwellings (including
PRC construction etc.) is to be assessed as part of the new stock
condition survey programme that will continually update information on
our Housing Stock and Assets. Any non-traditional construction will
need to be intrusively assessed by a specialist structural engineer, so
that any structural repairs can be identified within the forecast
expenditure plans. Provisional amounts have been included as an
interim measure.

4.4  The Council recognises that the home remains truly at the heart of our
tenants’ needs and wellbeing and we aim to provide appropriate



Page 147 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

adaptations to enable our residents to live independently. We also
acknowledge our social responsibility to provide these adaptations and
facilities for disabled and vulnerable people and to comply with the
requirements of the Equality Act. Providing this service not only has a
significant effect on the resident’s welfare but also relieves significant
pressure on the local health service.

5.0 OUR CURRENT POSITION

51 Stock Condition

The Council commissioned a stock condition survey in October 2019
which comprised a 100% inspection of blocks and common parts, as
well as off curtilage garages and parking sites. A sample survey
(55.8%) was undertaken of homes and the data uploaded into a new
asset management database. Where surveys have not been
undertaken yet, information has been cloned within the asset
management database to provide a whole stock assessment.

5.2  The survey identified that the housing stock is in a reasonable state of
repair with a proportionately low level of catch-up and early years work
required. The stock will require continued expenditure over a 30-year
planning term to maintain homes to a good, tenantable standard.

5.3  According to the stock condition survey the priority issues for re-
investment (% of total 30-year expenditure indicated) include:

e Kitchens and bathrooms (28%)

e Heating system and space heating (22%)
e Electrical Installations (18%)

e External windows and doors (14%)

5.4 Initial Tenders have been procured to enable the delivery of internal
refurbishment works (Kitchen, Bathrooms, Electrical and Heating
Works) identified above. Over 2021 and 2022 the Council identified a
programme of replacement boilers to remove old, inefficient, hard to
repair boilers and during this time replaced over 700 units with modern
efficient boilers.

6.0 Decent Homes



Page 148 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

The Decent Homes Standard is a Government led initiative, introduced
in 2000, and now incorporated into the Home Standard which is one of
four consumer standards that registered providers of social housing
must comply with. The Council met the standard in 2010 and now must
maintain homes to it, in a logical and affordable manner.

6.1 The Council plans re-investment works in accordance with the
forecasts of stock condition survey, as part of a wider programme.
Decent Homes works will therefore continue to be delivered as a by-
product of effective works planning, founded from an ethos of pre-
planned and programmed ‘just in time renewals’ (as promoted by the
DLUHC in their Decent Homes and stock condition survey guidance)
and in logical geographical groups.

6.2 The asset management database identified an overall Decent Homes
failure rate of 3.33% (i.e., 41 of the 1,230 surveyed dwellings as part of
the stock survey), however at that time, 9.93% was Potentially Non-
Decent, within the next two years. The Council will assess Potentially
Non-Decent over a 5-year period as part of its Capital Programme of
works.

6.3  The Council plans to maintain Decent Homes by developing works
programmes in 5-year bands. An amount of non-decency may
therefore be experienced within any 5-year period, although zero non-
decency will be delivered at the end of each programme period. In this
way the Council can maintain a logical programme of work that afford
economies of scale and value for money and avoid the need to
‘pepper-pot’ works year on year to meet this standard.

7.0 Compliance

The Council has and will continue to undertake regular reviews of
housing compliance risks using both internal and external resources.
These reviews will ensure that related policies, management plans,
procedures and processes for each of the core compliance risk align
with our landlord obligations. This will ensure the health and safety of
our residents, visitors and other stakeholders are maintained.

7.1  The key risk areas that will be reviewed are:

e Asbestos containing materials
e Fire including Fire Risk Assessments



Page 149 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Electrical safety (a 5-year testing programme);

e Water safety (legionella and scalding risks);

e Lifts and lifting equipment; and

e Fuel and Gas Safety (annual testing and servicing of boilers)

7.2  The Council have developed related policies, management plans,
procedures, and processes for each of the core compliance risks,
aligned with our Landlord Obligations. These are subject to regular
review and auditing using both internal and external resources as
verification. This will ensure the health and safety of our residents,
visitors and other stakeholders are maintained.

7.3  Programmes of work have and continue to deliver a range of
compliance functions including fire prevention works to previously
sheltered accommodation, upgrading of smoke and carbon monoxide
detection, an ongoing programme of Fire Risk Assessments, cyclical
testing of fire alarms, emergency lighting, lift installations, electrical
systems and boilers.

8.0 ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Based on the 2019 sample Stock Condition Survey, the average
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) score for Redditch’s homes is
67.9, which is EPC band D (band C beginning at SAP 69).
Approximately 40% of the stock has an EPC lower than C. The stock
will need improvement works to improve it to band C by 2030 and
thereafter NZC (band A) by 2050. These targets should ensure that
where practical all our stock achieves the Government low carbon
emission targets.

8.1  The current financial forecast does not include for retrofit
improvements, although it does include for component replacement
which can help to deliver improved energy efficiency, for example,
window replacement. Over the next year we will undertake more
detailed analysis and modelling of our stock to determine the measures
needed to improve energy efficiency and reduced carbon emissions.
This will enable us to determine the funding required and put in place
programmes of works which align with cyclical and planned works, to
minimise disruption to residents and obtain better value for money.

8.2  As part of the strategy to attract external funding to support Energy
Efficiency Works the Council has applied for funding via the Social



Page 150 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Housing Decarbonisation Fund with results to be announced around
March 2023. These works are tackling the worst performing properties
based on a ‘fabric first’ approach. In 2022 the Council were successful
in attracting Local Authority Delivery 2 (LADs) funding that improved
properties in Laurel Close.

8.3  The selection of energy efficient measures likely to be required and
that form part of the criteria of funding streams based on the ‘fabric
first’” approach will include:

e The installation of double/triple glazing;

e The installation of cavity wall insulation;

e The addition of External Wall Insulation (EWI);

e The improvement of loft insulation to at least 300mm thickness;

e Proper insulation of hot water cylinders and pipework; and

e Air and ground source heat pumps, especially to off gas grid
homes.

8.4  Before considering options, it is important for the Council to fully
understand its starting point through a detailed analysis of the energy
efficiency performance of its stock. The Council has commissioned a
consultant to undertake specialist energy efficiency modelling to assist
with the understanding of our strategic needs and the related delivery.

8.5  The modelling will use the latest RASAP method, with additional and
enhanced analysis using georeferenced data. The model will use all
relevant asset data to produce a full energy model of the Council’s
housing stock. The collation and cleansing of data will usually involve
some cloning and highlight conflicting or missing data. To reflect this,
the model stores a data confidence score for every data point. This
allows the highlighting of homes with the poorest data confidence as
priority for survey, or to identify particular data areas (for example
heating information, or floor information) that need improving across
the stock. This could be used to focus a programme of energy surveys
designed to improve the quality of energy data if required.

8.6  Once the data is in the model, the Council can view and report on the
stock’s baseline performance and profile and identify installation
options. As well as identifying all potential measures for each property
and across the stock, the model tests user-defined investment
scenarios. These can:



Page 151 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Seek the most cost-effective ways of reaching energy targets,
such as minimum SAP rating or Net Zero, across all stock or a
specified group;

e Model the effect of a planned installation programme;

¢ |dentify additional measures that meet various criteria that could
be added to an existing programme; and

e Calculate SAP, fuel bill and CO2 savings for all options and
scenarios evaluated.

8.7  The outputs of this modelling will then be used to determine the
investment priorities to achieve NZC milestone and other maintenance
requirements.

9.0 ASSET PERFORMANCE MODELLING

The Council will assess viability and re-investment priorities through a
Stock Viability Model that takes account of a range of factors including
demand and projected costs. This appraisal process results in
individual properties being allocated a red, amber, or green re-
investment status (RAG).

9.1  This will provide an opportunity to tailor our management,
maintenance, improvement and investment of our properties based on
a key range of data.

9.2  The portfolio will therefore be divided into one of three categories:

1. Red — Those properties deemed to be of high risk (i.e. requiring
higher than average levels of reinvestment (or cost) in order to
maintain them in a good lettable condition) and/or that are in low
demand (i.e. are difficult to let or which have an unjustifiably
high void turnover rate).

2. Amber — Those properties that offer peripheral performance and
that require further investigation to be reclassified as either red
or green.

3. Green — Those properties that are in high demand and that

require average or below average levels of re-investment. This
category may otherwise be described as ‘core stock’.



Page 152 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

9.3  Property in Red or Amber status is to be the subject of further
investigation, or review through an options appraisal, until they are
either re-classified or until such time as an alternative strategy is
agreed.

9.4 A green status indicates that the stock classified as such is viable with
a long-term future, being of low cost and high demand. The majority of
stock falls within this classification and can be included within
reinvestment plans without concern. The assessment of cost is made
with direct reference to asset management data and associated
reports. Demand will be assessed with reference to housing
management perception informed by void turnover rates and
associated performance indicators.

10.0 LEASEHOLDERS

The Council has made a number of commitments to Leaseholders
which are contained within the Leasehold Management Policy.

10.1 Any reinvestment decisions and resulting works must provide cost
effective services, accurate and timely information and ensure that
service charges reflect actual costs in accordance with statutory
obligations and lease terms.

10.2 The Council will adhere to the statutory requirements for consultation
under Section 20 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act and
work with recognised organisations to ensure that we maintain a good
two way communication with leaseholders.

10.3 Before any work starts on a leaseholder’s property the Council will
consult the leaseholder on the extent, timing and estimated cost of the
work taking into consideration leaseholders’ comments and
recommendations.

11.0 FUNDING

The 30-year HRA Business Plan and associated 5 year Capital
Programmes identifying investment requirements define the resources
available to the Council for the management and maintenance of the
housing stock. There are defined categories to which re-investment
can be directed and the manner in which the business will be regulated
and monitored.



Page 153 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

11.1 The requirements for revenue related activities including the
management and reactive repairs and maintenance of the Housing
Stock are assessed annually.

Appendix 3 -5 Year Capital Programme 2023/24 — 2027/28



Page 154 Agenda ltem 6.4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Qutturn 1 2 3 4 5

022/23 02314 02425 202526 202627  2027.28

i £ £ £ £ £

Major Repairs Heserye
Internal Reburbishment 300,000.00 2,500,000 2,500,000 2500000 AB00000 2500000
Boiler Feplacements 450,000.00 860,000 780,000 780,000 750,000 750,000
High Trees Project 30,000.00 380,000 400,000 0 1] 1]
Erternal Refurbishment 225,000.00 300,000 500,000 700,000 00,000 £00,000
Electrical Upgrades 300,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Dioor Entry and Security Upgrades B00,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 78,000 76,000
Smake Detection Upgrades 530,000.00 300,000 300,000 300,000 100,000 100,000
Balzony Feplacements 10,000.00 100,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 1]
Major Woids T0,000.00 500,000 500,000 500,000 B0, 000 B00,000
Energy Efficiency 270,000.00 740,000 740,000 760,000 780,000 50,000
Disrepair Cazes T85,000.00 B0,000 B0,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Fire Compartmentation 1590,000.00 1,000,000 A00,000 260,000 250,000 260,000
(3arage Improvement warks . 100,000 260,000 260,000 260,000 250,000
Strucutral Repairs T5.000.00 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 TA.000
fizbestos General 200,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Capitalized Salaries 500,000 f00,000 500,000 500,000 B0, 000 500,000

6365000 7675000 7675000 7225000 6900000 6,600,000

Capital Receipts

Dizabled Adaptations 200,000 500,000 500,000 260,000 260,000 250,000
HR& Stack - Remodeling - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Estate & Erwironmental Improvements 450,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Estates Parking and Paving - &0,000 160,000 160,000 160,000 150,000
Stock Condition Survey Fees 160,000 160,000 160,000 160,000 160,000

Housing Management 360,000

1,000,000 1050000 1,150,000 300,000 500,000 900,000

Mew BuildlAcquisitions 2900000 3000000 3000000 3000000 3000000 3200000

10265000 11725000 11825000 11125000 10,800,000 10,700,000

Financed by

tajor Repairs Reserve BIEEO00 7BTA000 TETEO00 7225000 GA00000  GEO00,000
Capital Feceipts 1000000 1,080,000 1150,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Capital Receiptz earmarked for acquizition 1160,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1200000 1200000 1280000
HR & Capital Reserve 140,000 1,800,000 1800000 1800000 1200000 1320000

HR - Barrowing

10265000 11,725,000 11,825,000 11125000 10,800,000 10,700,000




Page 155

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee
2023

27" February

Appendix 4 — Tenant Satisfaction Measures

Measured by landlords
directly

TP - Measured by doing
tenant perception surveys

TPO1: Overall satisfaction

RP - Keeping properties in good repair

RPO1: Homes that do not meet the
Decent Homes Standard

TPO2: Satisfaction with repairs

RPO02: Repairs completed within target
timescale

TPO03: Satisfaction with time taken to
complete most recent repair

TPO4: Satisfaction that the home is well
maintained

BS - Maintaining building safety

BSO01: Gas safety checks

TPO5: Satisfaction that the home is safe

BSO02: Fire safety checks

BS03: Asbestos safety checks

BS04: Water safety checks

BSO05: Lift safety checks

Respectful and

helpful engagement

TPO6: Satisfaction that the landlord listens
to tenant views and acts upon them

TPO7: Satisfaction that the landlord keeps
tenants informed about things that matter
to them

TPO08: Agreement that the landlord treats
tenants fairly and with respect

CH - Effective handling of complaints

CHO1: Complaints relative to the size of
the landlord

TPO09: Satisfaction with the landlord’s
approach to handling complaints

CHO2: Complaints responded to within
Complaint Handling Code timescales

NM - Responsible neighbourhood management

NMO1: Anti-social behaviour cases
relative to the size of the landlord

TP10: Satisfaction that the landlord keeps
communal areas clean and well maintained

TP11: Satisfaction that the landlord makes
a positive contribution to neighbourhoods

TP12: Satisfaction with the landlord’s
approach to handling anti-social behaviour

Agenda ltem 6.4




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council
2023

27" February

Recommendations from the Constitutional Review Working Party

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Councillor Karen Ashley

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Head of Service

Claire Felton, Head of Legal,
Democratic and Property Services

Report Author Job Title: Head of Legal, Democratic and
Claire Felton Property Services

Contact email:
c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Wards Affected

N/A

Ward Councillor(s) consulted

N/A

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s)

An Effective and Sustainable Council

Non-Key Decision

advance of the meeting.

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Council is asked to RESOLVE that:-

1) the Section 151 Officer be delegated authority to accept,
administer and distribute ring fenced Government Grant
Funding, or Funding from bodies acting on behalf of
Government, and to make the necessary and corresponding
adjustments to the Medium Term Financial Plan following
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder and subject to
meeting the conditions of grant funding;

2) the Chief Executive be delegated authority, as Proper Officer,
to declare the office of Councillor vacant immediately after a
person has ceased to be a Councillor where s/he has not
attended a Council or Committee meeting for six months or

more; and

3) the Policy Framework be updated to remove reference to
policies that no longer exist or which are considered in an
alternative forum and to add reference to the Contract

Procedure Rules

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 A meeting of the Constitutional Review Working Party took place on

Monday 23rd January 2023.

Agenda Item 7



mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 158 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

2.2  During this meeting, a range of issues were discussed by Members of
the group and a number of recommendations were proposed which have
implications for the content of the Council’s constitution.

2.3 The report provides further information about the background to each of
these recommendations and Council is asked to consider whether to
approve the changes proposed to the constitution.

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

Ring Fenced Grant Funding

3.1  From time to time the Council receives grant funding from the
Government to use for specific purposes.

3.2 These grants are often given with short notice periods and a
requirement to start spending immediately based on the specific
conditions of the grant. This is made more challenging in cases where
at the point in time the authority is made aware of them the
Government announces them to the public which leads to a high level
of contact from the public, pressuring Council officers whilst they are
trying to set schemes up to spend the monies.

3.3  Currently, grant funding can only be utilised by the Council following
approval through the decision-making process, via the Executive
Committee and the Council (unless this is Covid grant funding, for
which officers have received delegated authority).

3.4  Due to the nature of the Council approval cycle, it is often not possible
to get reports through the reporting mechanisms in a timescale which
allows compliance with grant conditions and this can delay the speed at
which monies are paid out in line with the grant conditions. Delegated
authority would allow the Council to respond in an agile and
transparent manner for the benefit of Redditch.

3.5 Unfortunately, Government grant funding is often repayable if it is not
defrayed within a timetable set by Government.

3.6 In this context, Members are asked to consider recommending that
officers should receive delegated authority to accept, administer and
distribute Government Grant Funding, or Funding from bodies acting
on behalf of Government, which has been ring fenced for specific
purposes, and to make the necessary and corresponding adjustments
to the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) following consultation with
the Leader and subject to meeting the conditions of grant funding.



Page 159 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

3.7  Members previously agreed, at a meeting of full Council held on 26th
July 2021, to grant Officers delegated authority to accept, administer
and distribute any grant funding provided by the Government in relation
to the Covid-19 pandemic, which included authority to adjust the MTFP
in response. This delegation enabled Officers to act promptly and
efficiently as soon as Covid grant funding was allocated to the Council,
without delay. The proposed delegation to officers in respect of other
forms of ring fenced Government grant funding would similarly enable
the Council to act promptly and efficiently.

3.8  Where the funding is area specific or for the benefit of area-based
activity, Members are advised that officers will consult with the relevant
ward Councillors.

3.9  Grant monitoring will be in place in line with the financial procedure
rules, with information included in the quarterly finance and
performance monitoring reports and will be accounted for
appropriately.

Six Month Rule — Declaring a Vacancy

3.10 A Councillor ceases to be an elected Member should s/he fail to attend
a meeting of the authority for six consecutive months since their
previous attendance at a meeting. This could involve attendance at
meetings of Council or Committees.

3.11 Currently, at Redditch Borough Council, should a Councillor fail to
attend a Council or Committee meeting in this period, the vacancy can
only be declared at a Council meeting. This could potentially cause
delays between the person ceasing to be a Member and the vacancy
occurring as it is dependent on the date of the next Council meeting.

3.12 The Association of Electoral Administrators (AEA) has provided
guidance indicating that it is considered best practice for the Council’s
constitution to provide delegated authority to the proper officer of the
Council to declare vacancies that occur in these instances.

3.13 Members are therefore asked to consider agreeing to grant the Chief
Executive, as Proper Officer, delegated authority to declare vacancies
that occur in the event of a Councillor failing to attend a Council or
Committee meeting in a six-month period.



Page 160 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

Policy Framework

3.14 Redditch Borough Council has a Leader and Cabinet model of decision
making. Within this structure of decision making, there are some
decisions that must be taken by full Council, some decisions that must
be taken by the Executive Committee, some decisions where there are
shared responsibilities and some “local choice” functions, whereby the
authority determines whether the decision is taken by the Executive
Committee or Council.

3.15 The Council is required to have a policy framework, comprising a list of
important policies and strategies. Only Full Council can make decisions
about policies and strategies included in the Policy Framework.

3.16 A list of items currently included in the Council’s Policy Framework can
be found at Paragraph 4 in the Articles of the constitution (Appendix 1).

3.17 The content of the Policy Framework can be reviewed by the Council
from time to time to ensure that it remains suitable for the authority.
When reviewing the content of the Policy Framework, Members should
take into account the legal requirements in respect of responsibilities for
functions, as detailed in the Responsibilities for Functions at Part 3 of
the Council’s constitution.

3.18 Items that form part of the Policy Framework can only be determined
by Council, although will be debated at a prior meeting of the Executive
Committee. This is a lengthier decision-making process than that in
place for items that can be determined by the Executive Committee
alone, or which have been delegated to other Committees, and so can
cause delays to implementation. It is therefore important for Members
to ensure that the most appropriate items, including those items where
there is a legal requirement to do so, are included in the Policy
Framework.

3.19 At Appendix 3 to the report, Members can view the items in the Policy
Frameworks for other Councils in Worcestershire. Members will
observe that the list of items in the Policy Framework for Redditch
Borough Council is lengthier than for other local authorities in the
county.

3.20 Where items are removed from the Policy Framework, they still form
the basis of reports to the Executive Committee unless delegated
authority is granted to officers to determine particular matters.



Page 161 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

3.21 All the items that are debated at both Executive Committee and
Council meetings are advertised in advance on the Executive
Committee’s Work Programme, which is published on the Council’s
website. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee can select items from
the work programme to pre-scrutinise and this would continue,
regardless of any changes to the Policy Framework.

3.22 The Constitutional Review Working Party reviewed the content of the
Council’s current Policy Framework at their meeting held on 23" January
2023. In considering the content of the Policy Framework, Members
were advised that a number of items no longer existed whilst other items
in the framework were or could more appropriately be considered via
alternative routes.

3.23 Members of the Constitutional Review Working Party agreed that
explanatory notes should be provided in relation to items that it is
proposed should be removed from the Policy Framework. These
explanatory notes are as follow:

o Annual Performance Plan - There is no longer an Annual
Performance Plan. Instead, the Council’'s performance is
monitored in quarterly finance and performance monitoring
reports. These reports are considered by the Executive
Committee and the Budget Scrutiny Working Group (the latter in
respect of the budget.) The Performance Scrutiny Working Group
can also consider the content of this report in relation to the
performance data provided.

o Community Safety Partnership Plan - Overview and Scrutiny has
a statutory duty to scrutinise the work of the local Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnership, which is the North
Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership, on an annual
basis. The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel fulfils this role, with
the latest such meeting taking place on 2nd November 2022. It
is suggested that the Panel could scrutinise the content of the
plan as part of this work.

o Plans and strategies which together form part of the Local
Development Framework / Development Plan — The Head of
Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services has reported that
the Local Development Framework and Development Plan are
essentially the same thing. It is therefore proposed that this
should be reflected in the Policy Framework, with reference made
to the Development Plan as a single item. Members are asked to
note that planning policies require Council approval and cannot



Page 162 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

be determined by the Executive Committee alone. Therefore,
planning policies will continue to be reported to Council.

o Food Law Enforcement Service Plan — The Food Law
Enforcement Plan is covered by the Worcestershire Regulatory
Services (WRS) annual service plan and should have been
delegated to the WRS Board, which makes decisions on behalf
of the shared service, along with discharge of the Food Safety Act
and associated provisions. The service plan will be signed off at
the February 2023 meeting of the WRS Board and a specific
recommendation covers the food element. Redditch Borough
Council has Member representatives on the WRS Board who
participate in the decision-making process.

o The Plan and Strategy which Comprise the Housing Investment
Programme — Officers have advised that this referred to the
Worcestershire Local Investment Plan and Affordable Homes
Programme Framework which went to Committee in 2011. This
was produced as part of the work for Homes England (the then
Homes and Communities Agency) to give them strategic direction
for funding of new affordable homes as part of the affordable
homes programme. This is no longer needed due to the changes
in how affordable homes are funded and the introduction of
continuous market engagement as a way to deliver new
affordable homes. Therefore, this item can be removed.

o The Local Transport Plan — The Local Transport Plan is included
in Worcestershire County Council’'s Policy Framework. Local
transport is a County Council function and it is suggested that it
IS more appropriate for the County Council, which has decision
making powers in relation to transport services, to include this in
their policy framework. In this context, it is suggested that the
item should be removed from Redditch Borough Council’s Policy
Framework.

o Procurement Strategy — The Council does not have a specific
Procurement Strategy but does have Contract Procedure Rules.
Due to the importance of effective Contract Procedure Rules to
good governance, it is proposed that references to the
Procurement Strategy should be replaced with reference to the
Contract Procedure Rules in the Council’s Policy Framework.
This should help to provide Members with assurance that the
Council is complying with best practice.



Page 163 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

o Single Equalities Scheme — The Council does not have a Single
Equalities Scheme. Instead, the authority has equalities
strategies which need to be produced and agreed in a timely
manner. Delays in respect of equalities strategies could have
negative implications for specific groups within the local
community.

3.25 The Constitutional Review Working Party agreed to consider the content
of the Policy Framework further at their next meeting, with a focus on the
following areas, for which officers have been asked to supply additional

information:

o Emergency Plan

o Enforcement Policy

o Sustainable Community Strategy

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The proposal that authority be delegated to the Section 151 Officer will
be in line with good financial practice.

4.2  The delegation to accept administer and distribute any Government
Funding or Funding from bodies acting on behalf of Government
relating and to make the necessary and corresponding adjustments to
the MTFP will be done following consultation with the relevant portfolio
holder.

4.3  Any additional funding or expenditure will be spent in accordance with
the conditions of grant and be reported retrospectively to the Executive
Committee and Council either in a stand alone report should it be a
particularly large, or complex grant scheme or in the quarterly finance
monitoring report.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Review and revision of the Constitution is governed by Article 15 of the
Constitution.

5.2  Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) gives a
general power to local authorities to discharge functions through
officers. Local Authorities are required by the same Act to maintain a
list of these, which is referred to as the Scheme of Delegation. This
sets out those powers of the Council which can be carried out by
officers of the Council.



Page 164 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

5.3  The Council is required to review its scheme of delegations on an
annual basis. This generally occurs at the annual Council meeting,
held in May. The Council can also review the Officer Scheme of
Delegations during a municipal year, where requested.

5.4  Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that if a member
of a local authority fails, throughout a period of six consecutive months
from the date of their last attendance, to attend a meeting of the
authority, they shall cease to be a member of the Council. An exception
applies if their non-attendance has been approved by Council before
the expiry of the six-month period.

5.5 Section 86 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that where a
Councillor has ceased to be a Member under these circumstances, the
Council will forthwith declare the office to be vacant.

5.6 The AEA advises that the requirement for the Council to forthwith
declare the office to be vacant places an expectation that this will
happen without delay. By delegating authority to the proper officer, any
such vacancies can be declared in the timely manner anticipated by the
legislation.

5.7  The Local Government Act 2000, in particular Section 13 (Functions
which are the responsibility of an executive) details the matters which
are the responsibility of the Executive.

5.8 The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000 (as amended) gives effect to section 13 of the Local
Government Act 2000 by specifying in Schedule 1 to the regulations
which functions are not to be the responsibility of the Executive. In
other words, the Executive Committee cannot by law make the decision
on those matters.

5.9 The areas that the Executive cannot determine, so instead are the
preserve of full Council, fall under the following headings:

e Functions relating to town and country planning and development
control (planning policies)

e Functions relation to Licensing and Registration (many of which
are delegated in Redditch to the relevant regulatory Committees)

e Functions relating to health and safety at work

e Functions relating to elections (many of which are delegated to
the Electoral Matters Committee)

¢ Functions relating to the name and status of areas and individuals

e Power to make, amend, re-enact or enforce byelaws



Page 165 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

e Power to promote or oppose local or personal Bills
e Functions relating to pensions
e Miscellaneous functions

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqic Purpose

6.1 The Strategic purposes are included in the Council Plan and guide the
Council’'s approach to expenditure ensuring the authority focuses on
the issues and what are most important for the Borough and its
communities. Grants will be paid out in line with grant conditions whilst
ensuring that they align with the Council’s strategic purposes as far as
is possible.

6.2 Regular review of the Council’'s Scheme of Delegations helps Members
to determine whether the delegations remain fit for purpose. This
supports the strategic purpose to be an Effective and Sustainable
Council.

6.3 Itis important to review the Council’s Policy Framework from time to
time to ensure that the content enables the authority to continue to be
‘An Effective and Sustainable Council’.

Climate Change Implications

6.4  The green thread is a priority in the Council Plan. Any grants which
have implications for climate change will be addressed and reviewed
when relevant by climate change officers to ensure the correct
procedures have been followed and that any impacts on climate
change are fully understood.

6.5  Any other changes to the Scheme of Delegations which could have
climate change implications would be reviewed on a case by case
basis.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.6 Removing the Single Equalities Strategy from the Policy Framework
would enable the Council to act more promptly on updating relevant
Equalities Strategies to meet the needs of different groups in the local
community.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT




Page 166 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023

7.1  Grants are monitored in line with the financial procedure rules and grant
conditions.

7.2  There is a risk that if authority is not delegated to officers in respect of
Government grant funding the Council might need to return some of this
grant funding due to not being able to process the grants in accordance
with tight timescales.

7.3  Where the Council does not regularly review and update the Policy
Framework the content becomes out of date. This can hold up the
efficiency of the decision making process.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Extract from the Articles — the Current Policy Framework

Appendix 2 - Extract from the Articles — Suggested Changes to the
Policy Framework

Appendix 3 — Policy Frameworks at other Councils in Worcestershire

Background Papers:

AEA Guidance — ‘Casual Vacancy — Failure to Attend Meetings.’
Redditch Borough Council’s constitution

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder Councillor Karen Ashley

Lead Director / Head of Pete Carpenter, Interim
Service Section 151 Officer

Financial Services Pete Carpenter, Interim
Section 151 Officer




Page 167 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council 27" February
2023
Legal Services Claire Felton, Head of Legal

Democratic and Property

Services

Policy Team (if equalities | Deb Poole, Head of Business
implications apply) Transformation, Organisational
Development and Digital
Strategy




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 169 Agenda Item 7
PART 2

APPENDIX 1 THE ARTICLES OF CONSTITUTION — EXTRACT

ARTICLE 4 - THE FULL COUNCIL

4.1 Meanings
"Policy Framework"
The policy framework means the following plans and strategies:-

Annual Performance Plan;

Climate Change Strategy

Community Safety Partnership Plan

Council Plan;

Plans and strategies which together comprise the Local
Development Framework;

Development Plan;

Emergency Plan;

Enforcement Policy;

Food Law Enforcement Service Plan;

The plan and strategy which comprise the Housing Investment
Programme,

Local Transport Plan;

Procurement Strategy;

Single Equalities Scheme;

Sustainable Community Strategy.

"Budget"
The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different
services and projects, the medium-term financial plan, proposed
contingency funds, setting the Council tax, decisions relating to the control
of the Council’s borrowing requirements, the control of its capital
expenditure and the setting of virement limits.

4.2  Functions of the full Council

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

a. adopting and changing the Constitution;

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



Page 170 Agenda Item 7
PART 2

b. approving or adopting the Budget and the Policy Framework and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land
Transfer;

C. subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules in Part 8 of this Constitution, making
decisions about any matter in the discharge of an Executive function
which could have been (but was not) covered by the Budget and Policy
Framework or where the decision maker is minded to make it in a
manner which would be contrary to the Policy Framework or contrary
to/or not wholly in accordance with the Budget;

d. appointing or removing from office:-
(i) the Leader;
(i) the Mayor or Deputy Mayor;

e. confirming the appointment of the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer;

f. agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for the Council’s
committees, sub-committees, etc., deciding on their composition and,
subject to Article 8.3, making appointments to them;

g. the appointment and revocation of appointments of representatives to
outside bodies unless the appointment is an Executive function or has
been delegated by the Council;

h. adopting an allowances scheme;

J. changing the name of the area or conferring the title of Honorary
Alderman or Freeman of the Borough;

k. making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills;

I. all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution
(Responsibilities for Functions) which the Council decides should be
undertaken by itself rather than the Executive; and

m. all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



4.3

4.4

Page 171 Agenda Item 7
PART 2

Council meetings

There are three types of Council meeting:
a. the annual meeting;

b. ordinary meetings;

c. extraordinary meetings, including the Council Tax-setting meeting of
the Council

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure
Rules in Part 7 of this Constitution.
Responsibility for functions

The Council will maintain the tables in Parts 3 - 6 of this Constitution
setting out:

a. those functions which are the responsibility of the Council;

b. those functions which are the responsibility of the Council and which it
has delegated to committees or officers.

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173 Agenda Item 7

PART 2

APPENDIX 2 THE ARTICLES OF CONSTITUTION — EXTRACT
SUGGESTED CHANGES TO THE POLICY FRAMEWORK

ARTICLE 4 - THE FULL COUNCIL

4.1 Meanings
"Policy Framework"
The policy framework means the following plans and strategies:-

e I
o Climate Change Strategy
- ity Safety F o Pl
o Council Plan;
pI . hi I ise the | I
Lossnlocmannt comm oo
° Development Plan;
. Emergency Plan;
o Enforcement Policy;
[ ]

o Sustainable Community Strategy.
"Budget"
The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different
services and projects, the medium-term financial plan, proposed
contingency funds, setting the Council tax, decisions relating to the control
of the Council’s borrowing requirements, the control of its capital
expenditure and the setting of virement limits.

4.2 Functions of the full Council

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

a. adopting and changing the Constitution;

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



Page 174 Agenda Item 7

PART 2

b. approving or adopting the Budget and the Policy Framework and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land
Transfer;

c. subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules in Part 8 of this Constitution, making
decisions about any matter in the discharge of an Executive function
which could have been (but was not) covered by the Budget and Policy
Framework or where the decision maker is minded to make it in a
manner which would be contrary to the Policy Framework or contrary
to/or not wholly in accordance with the Budget;

d. appointing or removing from office:-
(i) the Leader;
(i) the Mayor or Deputy Mayor;

e. confirming the appointment of the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer;

f. agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for the Council’s
committees, sub-committees, etc., deciding on their composition and,
subject to Article 8.3, making appointments to them;

g. the appointment and revocation of appointments of representatives to
outside bodies unless the appointment is an Executive function or has
been delegated by the Council;

h. adopting an allowances scheme;

j- changing the name of the area or conferring the title of Honorary
Alderman or Freeman of the Borough;

k. making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills;

[. all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution
(Responsibilities for Functions) which the Council decides should be
undertaken by itself rather than the Executive; and

m. all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



4.3

4.4

Page 175 Agenda Item 7

PART 2

Council meetings

There are three types of Council meeting:
a. the annual meeting;

b. ordinary meetings;

c. extraordinary meetings, including the Council Tax-setting meeting of
the Council

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council Procedure
Rules in Part 7 of this Constitution.
Responsibility for functions

The Council will maintain the tables in Parts 3 - 6 of this Constitution
setting out:

a. those functions which are the responsibility of the Council,

b. those functions which are the responsibility of the Council and which it
has delegated to committees or officers.

RBC CONSTITUTION JULY 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177

Appendix 3 — Policy Frameworks — Other Worcestershire Councils

Bromsgrove District
Council

ARTICLE 1 - THE
CONSTITUTION
(bromsgrove.gov.uk)
(Article 4.1)

Annual Performance Plan

Crime and Disorder Reduction Plan

Plans and strategies which together comprise the
Local Development Framework

The Development Plan

The Council Plan

Inclusive Equalities Scheme

Pay Palicy.

Malvern Hills District
Council

MHDC Constitution -
Article 4

The Council’s Five-Year Plan

Community Safety Partnership

Plans and strategies which together form the Local
Development Scheme

Any other plan which is required by statute to be

approved by the Council.

Worcester City Council

Part 2: Articles of the

Constitution

Plans and strategies which together comprise the
Local Development Scheme

Worcestershire Housing Strategy

Plans and Strategies for Finance and Asset
Management

Corporate Plan

Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act
2003

Worcestershire County
Council

WCC Constitution -
Appendix 1 - Scheme of

Assignment of
Responsibility for

Functions

Sustainable Community Strategy (if any)

Corporate Plan

Children and Young People's Plan

Local Transport Plan

The approval, for the purpose of its submission to the
Secretary of State for independent examination under
section 20 (independent examination) of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, of a
development plan document

Youth Justice Plan

'Act Local in Worcestershire' framework

Agenda ltem 7



https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/s51346/2%20Articles%20updated%20July%202021.pdf
https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/s51346/2%20Articles%20updated%20July%202021.pdf
https://moderngovwebpublic.bromsgrove.gov.uk/documents/s51346/2%20Articles%20updated%20July%202021.pdf
https://www.malvernhills.gov.uk/?option=com_fileman&view=file&routed=1&name=Constitution%202019%20paginated.pdf&folder=Documents%2FAbout%20Your%20Council&container=fileman-files
https://www.malvernhills.gov.uk/?option=com_fileman&view=file&routed=1&name=Constitution%202019%20paginated.pdf&folder=Documents%2FAbout%20Your%20Council&container=fileman-files
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54312/Part2ArticlesUPDATEDJuly2022.docx.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54312/Part2ArticlesUPDATEDJuly2022.docx.pdf
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3502/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Dec-2019%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3502/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Dec-2019%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3502/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Dec-2019%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3502/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Dec-2019%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3502/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Dec-2019%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1

Page 178 Agenda Item 7

Appendix 3 — Policy Frameworks — Other Worcestershire Councils

» Such other plans and strategies as required by law to
form part of the Policy Framework or which may be

and have been adopted to be part of that Framework

Wychavon District = Corporate Strategy
Council » Financial Strategy
= Business Plan

WDC Constitution — * Housing Strategy
Chapter 3 = The Development Plan
= Neighbourhood Plans
Wyre Forest District » Plans or strategies that are required under statute
Council » Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy

= Development Plan documents

Section 4 WEDC » Licensing Authority Policy Statement

Constitution — » Plans and alterations which together comprise the
Responsibility for Development Plan

Functions = Corporate Plan

» Financial Strategy, including any plan or strategy for
the control of the authority’s borrowing, investments or
capital expenditure or for determining the authority’s
minimum revenue provision

» Shared Services Strategy

» Fees and Charges Strategy

* Property Rationalisation Strategy



http://mgov.wychavon.gov.uk/modern.gov/documents/s56642/Full%20Council.pdf
http://mgov.wychavon.gov.uk/modern.gov/documents/s56642/Full%20Council.pdf
https://www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-committees-and-meetings/constitution/section-4-responsibility-for-functions/
https://www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-committees-and-meetings/constitution/section-4-responsibility-for-functions/
https://www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-committees-and-meetings/constitution/section-4-responsibility-for-functions/
https://www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-committees-and-meetings/constitution/section-4-responsibility-for-functions/

Page 179 Agenda Item 8

Redditch Borough Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Annual Report 2022 — 2023

Making a dlfference P e

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL
= %>

a\g«\
Lo

www.redditchbc.gov.uk



Page 180 Agenda Item 8

CONTENTS
TITLE PAGE NO.
CHAIR’S FOREWORD 3
INTRODUCTION 4
THE ROLE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 4
MEMBERSHIP 5
ACTIVITIES AND OUTCOMES DURING 2022/2023 6
CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL 18
TASK GROUPS AND SHORT SHARP REVIEWS 19
WORKING GROUPS 21
EXTERNAL SCRUTINY BODIES 22
CONCLUSION 23

SCRUTINY PROPOSAL FORM - APPENDIX A 24

Page 2 of 24



Page 181 Agenda Item 8

CHAIR’S FOREWORD

| would like to extend my thanks to the Democratic Services Officers Jo Gresham,
Jess Bayley-Hill and Mateusz Sliwinski, who have been very helpful and supportive to
the Committee during the year.

It has been a very busy year for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with nine
meetings having taken place at the Town Hall between May and the end of December,
with a further three meetings scheduled during February and March.

| would like to thank all Members of the Committee for their contributions and
participation, and in particular extend my thanks to Councillor Joanna Kane, who is
the Vice-Chair of Overview and Scrutiny and the Chair of both the Performance
Scrutiny and Budget Scrutiny Working Groups. | would also like to extend my thanks
to Councillor Michael Chalk for his regular written reports and updates from the
meetings he attends as the Council’s representative on the Worcestershire County
Council Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the West Midlands Combined
Authority Overview and Scrutiny.

Although the Committee have not completed any Task and Finish Group reviews, the
Committee have several which have been agreed, scoped and ready to be launched.

The Committee have both taken an overview of and scrutinised a wide range of topics
including: - Town Investment Plan Business Case, Levelling Up Fund Bid 2, Future
Use Of Town Hall And Customer Access, Leisure Strategy, Council Plan, Town Hall
Hub, Asset Disposal Strategy, HR and Organisational Development / Workforce
Strategy / People Strategy, Climate Change / Carbon Reduction Strategy, and support
provided by the Council to residents of Redditch in respect of the rise in the cost of
living.

During Committee meetings, Members have asked
detailed questions of senior officers and portfolio
holders including the Leader of the Council. This has
supplemented information received in the reports, led
to constructive debates, and enabled Members to
come to informed decisions.

The Committee have regularly made comments and
recommendations to the Executive Committee.

| am pleased to report that at several meetings during
the year members of the public have requested and

addressed the Committee, speaking on items on the
agenda. Councillor Bill Hartnett

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 3 of 24



Page 182 Agenda Item 8

INTRODUCTION

This report outlines the work undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of
Redditch Borough Council during 2022 — 2023.

THE ROLE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

The role of overview and scrutiny is an important one in the Council’s governance
structure, in providing challenge and driving improvement. It is often referred to as the
“critical friend” of the Council and can review any issues of concern or of real interest
to local residents.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a number of roles within the Council.
These include:

e Holding the Executive Committee to account by thoroughly scrutinising their
decisions to ensure that the Council continues to provide the best services
possible for Redditch residents. As part of this role, the Committee has the
power to ‘call-in’ decisions made by the Executive Committee and to request
that the Executive Committee review the original decisions, taking into account
the issues raised by the Committee.

e Acting as a ‘critical friend’ to the Executive Committee by reviewing Council
policies and strategies, making recommendations where appropriate.

e Performance and financial monitoring, to ensure the Council’s services are
sustainable and delivered to the highest possible standard.

e Commissioning reviews of services/topics that impact on the Council or on the
lives of Redditch residents.

e Pre-scrutiny of items prior to a decision being made by the Executive
Committee.

e Setting up Task Groups to focus on specific subjects and recommend ways to
improve existing practices within the Council and community as a whole. A flow
chart on how to consider potential scrutiny reviews can be found on the
Council’s information management system and the Council’s scrutiny scoping
form at Appendix A.

Page 4 of 24



Page 183 Agenda Item 8

MEMBERSHIP

The Committee appoints individual Members to oversee the work of Overview and
Scrutiny. Membership of the Committee for 2022/23 is as follows:

Clir Bill Hartnett (Chair)

CliIr Imran Altaf Clir Michael Chalk

Clir Brandon Clayton CliIr Sid Khan CliIr Timothy Pearman

4

A

Clir Gareth Prosser Clir Tom Baker-Price
May 2022 - October 2022 October 2022 —present

Page 5 of 24



Page 184 Agenda Item 8

ACTIVITIES AND OUTCOMES DURING 2022-23

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee held a scrutiny training and work programme
planning session in June 2022 at the start of the municipal year. This session was held
online and provided an opportunity for both existing and new Members of the
Committee to understand the importance of the scrutiny process at the Council and
the function of the Committee. During the training session, areas of interest were
identified by Members for potential Overview items that could be considered during
the municipal year 2022/2023. These Overview items are subjects for discussion at a
single meeting of the Committee and are of particular interest to residents within the
Borough. In addition to this the following were identified by Members:

e Items for pre-scrutiny, identified from the Executive Committee’s Work
Programme.

e Subjects considered suitable for further scrutiny through a Task Group
investigation.

Covid-19 And Remote Meetings

In May 2021 the Government removed the temporary legislation that allowed local
authorities to hold public meetings virtually. This meant that Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meetings were once again held in person after May 7™, 2021. Meetings
continue to be live streamed if there is significant local interest in the items being
considered at Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings. Meetings of scrutiny Task
Groups and Working Groups continue to be held remotely, since these meetings are
private and not live streamed.

The Death of Queen Elizabeth I

Following the death of Queen Elizabeth Il, it was agreed by Members that, as a mark
of respect, Committee meetings due to be held during the mourning period would be
postponed. This resulted in the postponement of the following meetings:

e Overview and Scrutiny Committee — 22" September 2022 (rearranged to 6t
October 2022)

e Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel — 215t September 2022 (rearranged to 2"
November 2022)

This report provides a summary of the work undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee during the 2022-2023 municipal year. Further information on the agendas

and minutes from these meetings can be found using the link below:

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings - 2022-2023

Page 6 of 24


https://moderngovwebpublic.redditchbc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=200&Year=0

Page 185 Agenda Item 8

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee monitors the impact of all of its
recommendations that have been endorsed by the Executive Committee. A tracking
report is presented to the Committee during the year stating progress made to date.

During consideration of the Executive Committee’s Work Programme, Members
agreed to pre-scrutinise the following items:

e Redditch Town Investment Plan Business Cases

e Levelling Up Fund 2 Bid

e Future Us

e Leisure Strategy

e Climate Change/Carbon Reduction Strategy and Action Plan

e Voluntary Bodies Scheme

e Appropriation of Land off Ipsley Church Lane for Planning Purposes
e HR and Organisational Development / People Strategy

In addition to pre-scrutiny of the Executive Committee Work Programme items, the
following items were included in the Committee’s Work Programme and were
considered at meetings throughout the municipal year:

e Support Provided by the Council to residents in respect of the cost of living
e Overview and Scrutiny Training Event — June 2022

Portfolio Holders for the relevant reports are invited to each meeting of the Committee
in order to answer questions and to provide further information to the Executive
Committee on the areas that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee raise at their
meetings.

Recommendations to the Executive Committee

During the municipal year 2022 the majority of the recommendations contained within
Executive Committee reports were endorsed by the Committee. There were two
instances when the recommendations made by the Committee were rejected by the
Executive Committee. In respect of the additional recommendation made during
consideration of the Leisure Strategy the Executive Committee amended its proposed
recommendation to reflect the changes suggested by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

As stated earlier in this report all of the minutes and agendas for these
meetings can be accessed via this link below.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings - 2022-2023

Page 7 of 24


https://moderngovwebpublic.redditchbc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=200&Year=0

Page 186 Agenda Item 8

Further information about the issues discussed by the Committee during the year
and Members’ findings are detailed below.

oth June 2022

Council Plan (Recovery and Restoration Plan)

During consideration of this report, it was noted that the current Council Plan was
developed prior to the Covid-19 pandemic and therefore a review of the priorities
contained within the Plan was undertaken in 2021 and an Addendum produced,
designed to sit alongside the Plan. This Addendum would provide an intermediary
position prior to the review of the Council Plan due to take place in 2024.

During consideration of this report Members highlighted the following areas of
interest:

The procurement of an energy advice service

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD)

The allocation of Safer Streets Funding

e Redeployable Cameras

e Green Thread

e Face-to face interaction with officers within the Council
e Rough Sleepers

e Recruitment and Retention of staff

Council Tax Support Scheme - Update - Pre-Scrutiny

This report provided information on the review of the current Council Tax Support
scheme and the proposed consultation process for the 2023/2024 scheme. It was
clarified that the consultation was a legal requirement under Section 1A (3) of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992 and that this would be carried out later this
year.

During consideration of this matter it was highlighted that along with the public that
major precepting authorities must also be consulted with regarding review of the
Council Tax Reduction scheme. As this was a very technical scheme, at this meeting
Members were informed that the documentation would be vastly simplified in order
for it to be more understandable to all residents and that the consultation would be
carried out so that it could be accessed by as many residents as possible.

Page 8 of 24



Page 187 Agenda Item 8

23" June 2022

Redditch Town Investment Plan Business Cases - Pre-Scrutiny

This was a detailed presentation for Members and the following areas were
highlighted:

e Redditch Borough Council had submitted a bid to the Government in January
2021 and were awarded in excess of £15 million to spend on particular
regeneration projects in the town centre.

o Three projects that had been approved were the Redditch Digital
Manufacturing and Innovation Centre, Redditch Town Centre Public Realm
and the Redevelopment of Redditch Library Site.

e The business cases included in the report provided more detailed information
regarding the agreed projects and would inform the summary statements to
the Government which were due to be submitted by 29th June 2022.

e The bid would continue to be worked on until submitted to the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing & Communities on 29th June 2022.

At this meeting, Members raised their concerns that there was little detail in the late
reports; and highlighted that it was important to be able to see more detail when
looking at significant amounts of funding.

Further detailed discussion followed regarding the positive impact the funding would
have on the Town Centre and that it was important to get the business cases in by
the required deadline, in order to ensure that all available monies would be able to
be drawn down. Members were in agreement that this was an exciting and
aspirational opportunity for Redditch Town Centre.

Levelling Up Fund 2 Bid - Pre-Scrutiny

Included in this presentation of this report was further information on the Levelling Up
Fund.

At this meeting Members were informed that the second round of Levelling Up
funding focussed on the following three key themes:

e Transport
e Regeneration and Town Centre
e Culture and Heritage

Members were informed that the Regeneration and Town Centre theme provided the
greatest chance of successfully bidding for funding and that Matchborough and
Page 9 of 24



Page 188 Agenda Item 8

Winyates District Centres would be the focus of the proposal due to the significant
amount of preparatory work that had already been undertaken.

Members commented that this was an exciting prospect for the Borough and

thanked all of the Officers involved in the preparation of the bid for the second phase
of Levelling Up funding.

7th July 20222

Asset Rationalisation for Easemore Road - Pre-Decision-Scrutiny

This matter was considered by Members, and it was reported that following a recent
detailed condition survey and report, it was envisioned that over the following 5 years
a minimum sum of £340,000 needed to be spent on maintenance of Easemore
Road. Members were informed that the tenants, mainly from Voluntary and
Community Sector (VCS) organisations, would be displaced and that alternative
properties had been located for all of the tenants.

During consideration of this item, Members discussed the importance of the
community centre to local residents, and it was noted by some Members that a
better solution might potentially be to sell part of the site and use that income to
improve the existing building. However, it was thought by some Members that it
would not be wise to postpone this due to significant repairs and problems with the
building.

Future Use of the Town Hall and Customer Access - Pre-Decision-Scrutiny

This report was in respect of the future use of the Town Hall and closure of the
cashier service. It was explained that the effects of the pandemic had led to fewer
users accessing the Town Hall in person to make payments.

At this meeting it was explained that there would be a dedicated manned customer
service desk opened and telephone and internet access; and that this would allow
colleagues to assist the public to access alternative forms of payment while the
transition was being undertaken.

It was highlighted that if the cashiers’ area were to be sublet to public sector tenants,
that revenue would be generated for the Council.

There were some queries as a result of this report including data collection,
redundancies, parking for any new tenants in the Town Hall and the improvement of
IT literacy for those residents who needed extra support.

Page 10 of 24



Page 189 Agenda Item 8

At this meeting Members were pleased that there would be no redundancies.
However, there were concerns raised with regard to the need for the continuation of
some face to face interactions with residents.

Overview and Scrutiny Training Event June 2022

Officers informed the Committee that the Overview & Scrutiny (O&S) Work
Programme Planning Event was well attended, and all Non-Executive Members
were invited. At this meeting, Officers reported that during the event a series of items
were raised by Members to add to the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme.

Members requested that a report regarding the Cost of Living Crisis be presented to

the Committee later in the municipal year. This report was considered at a meeting
held on 15t December 2022.

215t July 2022

Pre-Decision Scrutiny - UK Shared Prosperity Fund

The Head of Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services presented a report on the
subject of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.

The Committee was advised that the UK Shared Prosperity Fund formed part of the
national Levelling Up scheme. It was explained to Members that the investment plan
was a high level, strategic document and that the Council needed to demonstrate
how the proposed use of the funding in the Borough matched key interventions that
had been identified by the Government

During consideration of this report there were discussions regarding the surety of
receiving the full funding of £2.5m, the length of time in which the UK Shared
Prosperity Fund would be available, the challenges faced by the Council in terms of
ensuring the sustainability of projects that received funding after the end of the three-
year period; and the consequences arising should the Council fail to demonstrate
that the targets for expenditure of the funding were being met.

5th September 2022

Page 11 of 24



Page 190 Agenda Item 8

Nomination of the Community Centre at Easemore Road - Asset of Community
Value - Pre-Scrutiny

The Nomination of the Community Centre at Easemore Road - Asset of Community
Value was presented at this meeting for consideration by the Committee. It was
confirmed to the Committee that included within the Localism Act 2011 was a
‘Community Right to Bid’ enabling communities the right to identify a building they
believed to be of importance to their community.

An independent evaluation had highlighted that a Condition Survey carried out in
November 2021 had identified costs of repairs and maintenance of £340,407 and
that Community House had been valued between £1.2m and £1.5m which was
deemed a sum well beyond RCNT’s means.

Members were interested in the consultation process that had been undertaken with

the tenants and it was explained that there had been contact made with the tenants
prior to the previous report presented to the Executive Committee on 12th July 2022.

6t October 2022

Redditch Tip Library Development - Business Case

This report included the business case and summary documents due to be
submitted to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on 15th
October 2022.

The high level objectives of the Redditch Library Redevelopment were to improve
connectivity between the Kingfisher Centre and the Conservation Area. The report
also included plans in respect of the demolition of the current library building.

At this meeting some Members expressed considerable concern regarding the plans
for the project which resulted in a robust debate amongst Members regarding risk,
archives from the current library, the timeline of projects, the lease on the library
building and the procurement of contractors.

Town Hall Hub

During consideration of the Town Hall Hub report Officers reported that the cost of
the refurbishment project would be £5.2m and would be funded by capital receipts
and the sale of Council assets which had been valued by Savills as between £3.45m
and £5.65m.

Page 12 of 24



Page 191 Agenda Item 8

Some Members felt that establishing a Community Hub within the Town Centre was
a great opportunity to create a vibrant workplace alongside wider financial and social
benefits. However, at this meeting, concerns were raised by some Members
regarding the costs of the demolition of the current library combined with the costs of
the Town Hall Hub and whether this was good value for money for residents.

20t October 2022

Leisure Strateqgy - Pre-Decision Scrutiny

The Head of Planning, Regeneration and Leisure Services together with the Cultural
Services and Parks Manager and, the Development Services Manager provided a
detailed presentation on the Leisure and Culture Strategy.

The strategy comprised of several different parts, including the main Leisure and
Cultural Strategy and two other strategies which underpinned this document,
including the Arts and Culture Strategy and the Parks and Open Spaces Strategy.
Two further leisure strategies were due to be presented for the consideration of the
Executive Committee in 2023 on the subjects of built facilities strategy and playing
pitches strategy. The Leisure and Culture Strategy covered a wide range of topics
including arts, heritage, physical activity and sport, events, parks, open space
facilities, venues, sites and services.

Asset Disposal Strateqy - Pre-Scrutiny

At this meeting, the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services presented a
report on the proposed implementation of an Asset Disposal Strategy and explained
that the Council held a comprehensive asset register which provided a valuation of
those assets in monetary and service delivery terms.

It was reported to Members that the Council had a duty to ensure that its fixed assets
were reviewed on a continual basis to ensure that they remained fit for their strategic
purpose, complied with legislative and regulatory requirements, and did not lose
value.

Climate Change/Carbon Reduction Strategy and Action Plan- Pre-Scrutiny

Page 13 of 24



Page 192 Agenda Item 8

The Vice-Chair welcomed the Net Zero Projects Manager from the Midlands Net
Zero Hub to the meeting who provided a detailed presentation regarding the
Redditch Borough Council’'s Carbon Reduction Strategy and Action Plan.

The Carbon Reduction Strategy and Action Plan covered exclusively the carbon
dioxide emissions of the Council and would need to be reviewed annually and
progress against targets monitored twice a year.

Members were informed during consideration of this item that a Climate Change
Officer would be appointed and that there would be a further resource requirement

as the Strategy was implemented.

Voluntary Bodies Scheme Pre-Decision Scrutiny

This report was considered by the Committee at its meeting held on 20" October
2022.

At this meeting options for the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Grants
Scheme for the next three years, after the current scheme expired in March 2023,
were outlined for Members’ consideration. It was reported that VCS groups
respondents had expressed a preference for option 2 to be adopted by the Council.

There was detailed discussion regarding the concessionary rents during
consideration of this item and the impact of this on smaller, locally based community
and voluntary groups in Redditch. However, Officers reminded the Committee that
there was currently no concessionary rents scheme offered by the Council.

1st December 2022

Cost of Living

This matter was considered via a report and presentation which the Committee
received at its meeting on 15t December 2022. The report detailed all of the initiatives
that the Council was providing to residents in relation to the cost of living situation.
Specifically, Members considered what financial support was being made available
by the Council for residents impacted by the cost of living crisis and how the support
provided by the Council was communicated to eligible residents.

At the meeting, Members had the opportunity to provide feedback and suggest
improvements, and a recommendation was made to the Executive Committee
regarding seeking external grant funding to enable a borough-wide campaign to
subsidise the insulation of poorly insulated dwellings in the private sector.

Page 14 of 24



Page 193 Agenda Item 8

HR and Organisational Development / People Strategy / Workforce Strateqgy - Pre-
Decision Scrutiny

This report was pre-scrutinised at the meeting held on 15t December 2023 where it
reported that the key aim of the Council’s Workforce Strategy 2022-2026 was to
have a workforce that was for fit for the future and able to deliver the Council Plan
and Strategic priorities whilst promoting the wellbeing of the workforce.

Three key themes of the Strategy were outlined as follows:

e Workforce Planning and Talent Management
e Engagement
e Health, Safety and Wellbeing.

The Committee was informed that action plans would be devised and implemented
during the course of this Workforce Strategy to ensure that the aims of the new
strategy were being implemented in practice.

As part of the discussion the following areas were raised remote working, hot
desking policy and key performance indicators (KPIs) that were being developed in
relation to the strategy and associated action plans.

Revisiting Items Identified at the Overview And Scrutiny Training Event held on 6the
June 2022

Consideration of this item was a follow up to the previously considered item on 7%
July 2022. At this meeting Members were asked to decide which of the outstanding
items they wished to add to the work programme for the rest of the municipal year.

Members were asked to prioritise the task and finish review they wished to
undertake in the first instance, as there was limited Officer resource and time left in
the municipal year to undertake a substantive task and finish group review. It was
agreed that a Task and Finish Group review of bulky waste collections should be
prioritised by the Committee in the first instance and that it was possible to tie this
topic together with the issue of fly tipping. Time and resource permitting, the
Committee could then investigate launching the other task groups which were
previously agreed by the Committee — Health Inequalities within the BME Committee
Task Group and the Road Safety and Speeding Task Group.

Council Motion - Bulky Waste Collection

Page 15 of 24



Page 194 Agenda Item 8

At this meeting Members were reminded of the original motion in relation to bulky
waste proposed at the full Council meeting on 14th November 2022 as follows:

“Council is concerned about the cost-of-living crisis having a new impact on fly
tipping, with the cost of bulky waste collection becoming a disincentive for many
residents. Council asks the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to set up a Task and
Finish review, to consider the costs, consequences and benefits of a pre-booked,
free household bulky waste collection service for those Redditch residents who are
low paid, elderly, disabled or in receipt of benefits, which will enable Members to
consider options and determine what action, if any, to take.”

The Council had a duty to provide bulky waste collections for domestic properties,
although it was entitled to charge for the collection of some waste dependent on
criteria.

It was agreed by Members and Officers that linking the issues of fly tipping and bulky
waste collections in one task group review was a sensible proposal. And therefore, a
scoping document for the task group would be submitted for approval by the
Committee at a meeting later in the municipal year in advance of the launch of the
Task Group.

Road Safety Task Group

As a result of the previous item in this report it was agreed that the Fly Tipping and
Bulky Waste Collection Task Group be launched in the first instance, and the
decision on the launch and membership of the Road Safety and Speeding Task
Group be deferred to a future meeting of the Committee.

8th December 2022

Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Appropriation Of Land Off Ipsley Church Lane For Planning
Purposes

At this meeting, the Bereavement Services Manager presented a report on the
appropriation of Land off Ipsley Church and explained that the report before the
Committee detailed the planning designations of open space and primarily open
space used within the change of use application.

The Bereavement Services Manager clarified the steps that the Council had taken so
far in order to lawfully proceed with the process of appropriation proposal and that
the Council also had to consider any objections to the proposed appropriation.

The details of the objections received were summarised and were categorised into
14 categories, with categories 2-14 having been dealt with via the planning
application of 13th October 2021. The loss of recreational space was the outstanding

Page 16 of 24



Page 195 Agenda Item 8

objection that had to be considered in the appropriation process and 60 objections
were recorded in this category. However, the Committee were informed that if
appropriation was to be approved for this land, it would still be classed as open
space under the legislation

During consideration of this item biodiversity and environmental implications of the
proposed appropriation were discussed and that a commitment to enhance
biodiversity on the site and the wider local area had been made via the planning
process; and that there were conditions attached to the planning permission for the
land off Ipsley Church Lane to the effect of enhancing biodiversity.

It was also raised at this meeting that since all of the objections had not been made
available to Members, they were unable to scrutinise the report sufficiently. However,
it was argued that the objections received had been sufficiently summarised in the
report and by Officers during the course of the meeting to enable Members to
scrutinise the matter.

Page 17 of 24



Page 196 Agenda Item 8

Crime And Disorder Scrutiny Panel — 2"9 November 2022

Local authorities were required to have a Committee designated with responsibility to
review the work of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and that this
Committee must meet at least once a year to discuss the work of the partnership. In
Redditch this role was undertaken by the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel, which
was a permanent Sub-Committee of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The
Panel holds the North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership (NWCSP) to
account for its work in Redditch.

At the meeting of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel on 2" November 2022,
Members received an update on the work of the Partnership in the Borough in the
preceding 12 months. This included an update on new funding to tackle fly-tipping on
private land that had been implemented since the last meeting of the panel. In
addition to this, information was provided in respect of tools and powers used to
tackle Anti-Social Behaviour and the work undertaken by the Community Safety
Team in order to carry out one of the responsibilities of the NWCSP, which was to
reduce the fear of crime and raise awareness.

There was also a discussion regarding local initiatives, particularly with young people
including the Empowering Young People Project, Volunteer it Yourself (VIY), Launch
of the W.I.S.E Youth Centre, Community Safety Enhanced Youth Support Workers,
The Respect Programme, and the Virtual Decisions Knife Crime Project.

The Community Safety Partnership Manager presents the updates, and the

information was always well received by Members, who were grateful for such
detailed updates from Officers.

Page 18 of 24



Page 197 Agenda Item 8

TASK GROUPS AND SHORT SHARP REVIEWS

Task Groups were established by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in order to
conduct an in-depth review of any service, policy or issue that affected the Borough.
During this municipal year there were 2 Task Groups proposed and agreed by
Members of the Committee. There was also 1 task group proposed in the 2021/22
municipal year but this had not been launched yet.

Road Safety

The Committee agreed to establish this Task Group at its meeting of 3™ February
2022, whereby the draft scoping document for the Task Group was also considered.

On 1st December 2022, the Committee agreed to prioritise the undertaking of the
Bulky Waste and Fly Tipping Task and Finish review in the 2022-23 municipal year.
It was suggested that the Road Safety and Speeding Task Group would be launched
following the completion of this review.

Health Inequalities within the BME Communities in Redditch

The Committee agreed to launch this Task Group at its meeting of 5" September
2022, whereby the scope and objectives of the investigation were also agreed.

On 1%t December 2022, the Committee agreed to prioritise the undertaking of Bulky
Waste and Fly Tipping Task and Finish review in the 2022-23 municipal year. It was
agreed that the Health Inequalities within the BME Communities in Redditch Task
Group would be launched following the completion of this review.

Bulky Waste and Fly Tipping

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to prioritise undertaking a Task and
Finish review of this matter during the remainder of the 2022/23 municipal year. This
decision was made following on from a Full Council resolution of 14" November
2022, whereby the Overview and Scrutiny Committee was asked to set up a Task
and Finish review to consider the costs, consequences and benefits of a pre-booked,
free household bulky waste collection service for those Redditch residents who were
low paid, elderly, disabled or in receipt of benefits.

It was agreed that before embarking on the Task Group review, a presentation on
bulky waste collections and fly tipping would be considered by the Committee at its
meeting on 2" February 2023. This would enable Members to better understand the
Council’s current position on these issues. It was envisaged that meetings of this

Page 19 of 24



Page 198 Agenda Item 8

task group would commence, once the membership and scope of the Task and
Finish review was agreed by the Committee.

Page 20 of 24



Page 199 Agenda Item 8

WORKING GROUPS

The Council has two permanent scrutiny working groups, the Budget Scrutiny
Working Group, and the Performance Scrutiny Working Group.

Budget Scrutiny Working Group — Chair, Councillor Joanna Kane

The Budget Scrutiny Working Group held 7 meetings on Microsoft Teams in 2022-
2023 recognising the importance of regular scrutiny of the Council’s Budget.

During the year the Budget Scrutiny Working Group considered the following
matters:

e Financial and Performance Monitoring

e Medium Term Financial Plan — Tranche 1

e Fees and Charges

e Financial Outturn

e Housing Revenue Account

e Council Tax Base

e Finance Recovery report

Performance Scrutiny Working Group — Chair, Councillor Joanna Kane

The Performance Scrutiny Working Group met several times throughout the
municipal year 2022-2023 and with more regularity than the during the previous
year.

* Landscaping and Tree Maintenance
* The new Corporate Dashboard

* Energy Advice Services

» Skills in Redditch

* Housing (including Voids)

It was hoped that the regularity of these meetings would continue into the next
municipal year, providing Members with a more in-depth knowledge of performance
across the Council.

Page 21 of 24



Page 200 Agenda Item 8

EXTERNAL SCRUTINY BODIES

West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Overview and Scrutiny Committee —
Council representative, Councillor Michael Chalk

The Committee had received regular updates from Councillor Chalk, the Council’s
representative on the West Midlands Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

During the year Councillor Chalk provided written updates about the work of the
Committee and highlighted the following points:

e Skills Budget
e UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF)

Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) — Council
Representative, Councillor Michael Chalk.

The Committee had received regular updates from Councillor Chalk about the work of
the Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC). Some of the
issues highlighted during the year included:

e Integrated Cares Systems

e Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust including patient flow and bed
shortages

The written updates from Councillor Chalk provided useful information of the scrutiny

work being undertaken by other authorities across the local area and the Committee
were grateful of the time taken by Councillor Chalk in providing these updates.

Page 22 of 24



Page 201 Agenda Item 8

CONCLUSION

A significant amount of pre-scrutiny work has been carried out by the Committee
throughout the year and as you can see from the report there were fewer Overview
items considered by the Committee. The Committee, however, have carried out some
constructive scrutiny throughout this municipal year and have considered issues that
really mattered to the residents of Redditch.

/The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee express his thanks to all Members of the Overview and\
Scrutiny Committee, recognising in particular the valuable contribution made by Members through Task
Group investigations and on the Budget and Performance Scrutiny Working Groups.

For any background information on the work of Overview and Scrutiny Committee in Redditch, please visit
https://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/council/the-council.aspx

Democratic Services, Redditch Borough Council, Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3031 email: mateusz.sliwinski@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

\ /

(This form should be completed by sponsoring Member(s), Officers and / or members of the public
when proposing an item for Scrutiny).

Page 23 of 24


https://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/council/the-council.aspx

Page 202 Agenda Item 8

APPENDIX A

Note: The matters detailed below have not yet received any detailed consideration. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reserves the right to reject suggestions for scrutiny that fall
outside the Borough Council’s remit.

Proposer’s name and Date of referral
designation

Proposed topic title

Link to local priorities
including the strategic
purposes

Background to the issue

Key Objectives

Please keep to SMART
objectives (Specific,
Measurable, Achievable,
Relevant and Timely)

How long do you think is
needed to complete this
exercise? (Where possible
please estimate the number
of weeks, months and
meetings required)

Please return this form to: Jo Gresham, Democratic Services Officer, Redditch Borough Council,
Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH

Email: joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 24 of 24


mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Appendix 1 Mayor's Engagements

	 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 7th February 2023
	6.1 Independent Remuneration Panel Report 2023/24
	RBC IRP Report 2023-2024

	6.2 Pay Policy Statement 2023/24
	2023 RBC pay policy

	6.3 2023/24 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2023/24 to 2025/26 (Including Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Programme)
	Rd Combined Appendices

	 6.3.1 Alternative Budget
	6.4 30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset management strategy for council housing
	7 Constitutional Review Working Party - Recommendations
	Appendix 1 Extract from the Articles - Current Policy Framework
	Appendix 2 - Suggested Updates to the Policy Framework
	Appendix 3 Policy Framework Items for Worcestershire Councils

	8 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2022/23

